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NORTH EASTERN ELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31" MARCH 2024

( X inlakhs )

sl ; Note | Asat31" March | Asat3i® March
No. Particulars No. . 2023
ASSETS
1 |Non-Current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 12,93,125.26 12,42,505.48
(b) Capital work -in- Progress 66,482.49 1,14,194.44
(c) Intangible assets 8,033.31 8,664.64
(d) Intangible assets under Development 4A 124.32 96.00
{e) Financial Assets
(i) Investment in subsidiary and Joint Venture companies 5 445.00 443.13
(i) Loans 6 40.02 28.19
(f) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 7
(g) Other Non-current Assets 8 43,529.96 18,179.20
Sub total - Non-Current Assets 14,11,780.36 13,84,111.09
2 |Current assets
a) Inventories 9 12,457.35 12,516.05
b ) Financial Assets
(i ) Trade receivables 10 83,664.74 94,429.78
(ii ) Cash and Cash equivalents 11 240.10 1,461.34
(iii ) Bank balances other than (i) above 12 276.46 291.50
( iv ) Others 13 32,756.40 23,221.47
¢ ) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14 2,165.84 =
d ) Other Current Assets 15 2,509.48 3,897.78
g) Asset Held for Sale 15 -
Sub total - Current Assets 1,34,070.36 1,35,817.92
3 Regulatory deferral accounts debit balances 16.01 1,14,729.55 99,295.21
Total Assets (1+2 +3) 16,60,580.27 16,19,224.22
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i Particulars Note | Asat31*March | Asat31" March
No. No. 2024 2023
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
4 Equity
(2) Equity Share Capital 17 3,60,981.04 3,60,981.04
(b) Other Equity 18 3,26,159.31 2,97,952.44
Sub total - Equity 6,87,140.35 6,58,933.48
Liabilities
5 | Non-Current Liabilities
a ) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 5,90,470.25 5,94,121.62
(ii) Lease Liabilities 19A 1,015.07 478.64
(iii ) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small entreprises " £
(D) 1013l outstanaing aues or creaitors
other than micro entreprises and < .
small enterprises
b) Long Term Pravisions 20 303.28 319.12
¢ ) Deferred tax liabilities ( Net ) 7 93,534.25 98,881.40
d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 26 19,627.01 21,209.27
Sub total Non-Current Liabilities 7,04,949.86 7,15,010.05
& |Current liabilities
a ) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 1,51,170.54 1,12,426.18
(ii) Lease Liabilities 21A 1,000.48 607.67
(iii } Trade Payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small entreprises 1,242.61 424.73
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors 22
other than micro entreprises and 16,533.13 18,715.71
small enterprises
( iv) Other financial liabilities 23 42,691.00 75,922.85
b) Other current liabilities 24 6,228.16 6,140.42
¢) Provisions 25 19,930.75 18,880.71
d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 14 - 969.40
e) Deferred Revenue 2B6A 11,564.74 11,193.00
6. Total Current Liabilities 2,50,361.41 2,45,280.69
7 | Regulatory deferral accounts credit balances 16.02 18,128.66
Total Equity and Liabhilities (4+5+6+7) 16,60,580.27 16,19,224.22

Summary of material accounting palicies - Note no.1

The accompanying notes 1 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B M!( Gurdeep Si

Date:

Place
w
A. P.Rong

Company Secretary
DIN: 09263864

Director (Finance)-cum-CFO  Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00307037

In terms of our report of even Date
For R.N. Goyal & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.N. 309128E

CA Manish Goyal
Partner
Membership No-061194




NORTH EASTERN ELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

{ & inlakhs )
sl

For the Year For the Year
No. Particulars Notes | ended 31"-Mar- | ended 31"-Mar-
2024 2023
1 |Income
{a) Revenue from Operations 27 4,23,956.74 4,55,726.73
{b) Other Income 28 2,466.09 1,336.77

Total Income (a + b) 4,26,422.83 4,57,063.50

2 |Expenses
(a) Fuel cost 29 1,25,642.24 1,47,687.42
{b) Employee benefits expense 30 43,285.78 51,406.14
(¢) Finance costs 31 52,838.05 53,667.13
(d) Depreciation and amortization expenses 32 85,430.64 83,550.16
(e) Other expenses 33 56,957.35 52,902.05
Total expenses (a+h+c+d+e) 3,64,204.06 3,89,212.90
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items, Tax and Regulatory deferral
? accour{t_‘s bal:mces tle- leﬂ . ¥ : AT 7830
4 | Exceptional Items - {income)/expenses
Share of Profit from Joint Venture 17A 1.87 (1.87)
5 |Profit / (loss) before Tax and Regulatory deferral account balances (3-4) 62,220.64 67,848.73

6 |Tax Expense:
(a) Current tax

Current year 10,252.95 11,488.84
Earlier years - &
Total Current Tax 10,252.95 11,488.84
(b) Deferred tax (Net of DTA) (5,347.15) 22,153.57
Total Tax Expense (a +b) 4,905.80 33,642.41
7 |Profit / (loss) before regulatory deferral account balances (5-6) 57,314.84 34,206.32
8 |Net movement in Regulatory deferral account balances (Net of tax) 37 (2.501.34) 5,482.47
9 |Profit / (loss) for the year (7+8) 54,813.50 39,688.79
10 | Other comprehensive income/(expenses)
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (1,946.77) (642.51)
(ii) Others - FV loss adjustment 0.08
(1,946.77) (642.43)
{iit} Less: Income tax relating to items that will nat be reclassified to (340.14) (112.25)
profit or loss
(b) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (net of tax) = (a+ h) (1,606.63) (530.18)
11 | Total comprehensive income for the year (9 + 10) 53,206.87 39,158.61
12 |Earnings per equity share { Par value 10 each) 35
Basic & Diluted () ( including net movement in regulatory deferral account 152 1.40
balances) : :
Basic & Diluted (%) ( excluding net movement in regulatory deferral account 159 0.95
balances) : ;

Summary of material accounting policies - Note no.1
The accompanving nates 1 to 51 form an inteeral part of these financial statements

In terms of our report of even Date
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors .N. ’
iDate: :
Place RN
A. P.Rong B Maharana Gurdeep Sin / oYy

Company Secretary Directar (Finance}-cum-CFO  Chalirman & Managing Directar
DIN: 09263864 DIN: 00307037
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NORTH EASTERN ELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 31" March 2024

{A) Equity Share Capital

For the year ended 31" March 2024

(% inlakhs )

Particulars _Amount
Balance as at 1" April 2023 3,60,981.04
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period -
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31" March 2024 3,60,981.04
For the year ended 31" March 2023 (¥ in lakhs )
Particulars Amount
Balanice as at 1" April 2022 3,60,981.04
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting period
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31" March 2023 3,60,981.04
(B} Other Equity
For the year ended 31" March 24 (% inlakhs )
Reserve & Surplus
Particuburs Sonds edemation General Reserve| Retained Earnings Total
reserve
Balance as at 1% April 2023 65,054.17 1,97,691.68 35,206.59 2,97,952.44
Changes in other equity due to changes in accounting - =
policies or prior period errars
Restated balance at the beginning of the current - -
reporting period
Profit for the period 54 813.50 54,813.50
Other Comprehensive income (1,606.63) (1,606.63)
Total Comprehensive Income = 53,206.87 53,206.87
Final Dividend paid for FY 2021-22 =
Tax on Final Dividend 2
Interim dividend for the FY 2022-23 - .
Interim dividend paid for the FY 2023-24 (25,000.00) (25,000.00)
Tax on Interim Dividend E
Balance as at 31" March 2024 65,054.17 1,97,691.68 63,413.46 3,26,159.31
For the year ended 31" March 23 (% in lakhs )
Reserve & Surplus
it Bondsr;::::phon General Reserve| Retained Earnings L
Bace as at 17 April 2022 65,054.17 1,97,691.68 32,547.98 2,895,293 83
Changes in other equity due to changas in accounting
policies or prior periad errors
Restated balance at the beginnin_g of the current
repcarting pE‘I’]OCf
Profit for the period 39,688.79 39,68B.79
Other Comprehensive income - {530.18) (530.18)
Total Comprehensive Income 39,158.61 39,158.61
Final Dividend paid for FY 2020-21 (1,500.00) (1,500.00)
Tax on Final Diuidend‘ B
Interim dividend paid for the FY 2021-22 (35,000.00) (35,000.00)
Tax on Interim Dividend
Balance as at 31" March 2023 65,054.17 = 1,97,691.68 35,206.59 2,97,952.44

Date:
Place

A. P.Rong
Company Secretary

B Mah

DIN: 09263864

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gurdeep Si

Director (Finance)-cum-CFO  Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 0030

In terms of our report of even Date

For R.N. Goyal & Co

Chartered Accountan
F.ALN. 309128€
\L_/)

CA Manish Goyal

Partne —
s < TN
F {'6 N
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NORTH EASTERN ELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2024
2 in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended 31" March | For the year ended 31" March
2024 2023
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 62,220.64 67,848.73
Add: Net Movements in Regulatory deferral account (2,501.34) 5,482.47
balances [Net of tax)
Add: Tax on net Moverents in Regulatory deferral (192.98) 1,468.19
account balances
2,694.32)| 6,950.66
Profit before tax including movements in regulatory 59,526.32 74,799.39
deferral account balances
Adjustment for:
Depreciation, amortisation and impairement expense 85,480.64 83,550.16
Provisions/Write off 7,109.36 4,852.11
Regulatory Deferral account credit balances
Regulatory Deferral account debit balances 2,694.32 (6,950.66)
Deferred Revenue (1,210.52) 1,666.58
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 93.56 757.22
Finance costs 52,744.49 52,909.51
Interest/income  from  term deposits/bonds/
investments (358.77) (526.77)
Provisions Written back (493.32) (7.77)
Profit on de-recognision of property, plant and
: (2.93)
eguipment (45.74)
Loss on de-recognision of property, plant and
16.66
equipment 63.96
Delayed Payment Surcharge (848.88) (545.68)
1,45,229.10 1,35,718.83
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,04,755.42 2,10,518.22
Adjustment for:
Trade Receivables 10,909.37 (45,605.48)
Inventories 58.70 2,583.19
Trade pavable.s_, _pmvisions. other financial liabilities (40,522.39) (12,793.77)
and other liabilities
Loans, other financial assets and other assets (10,697.34) 14,257.87
!40,251.66! [41,553.19!
Cash generated from operations 1,64,503.76 1,68,960.03
Income tax (paid)/refunded 10,400.00) 10,300.00)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities - A 1,54,103.76 1,58,660.03
. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipments &| (1,08 766.59) (65,819.50)
intangible assets
Disposal of property, plant and equipments & 71.14 5.04
intangible assets
Interest/income on term deposits/bonds/ 358.77 526.77
investment receivad
Dividend Received - =
Change in Bank balance other than cash and cash 15.04 717.56
equivalents
Delayed Payment Surcharge Received 704 55 497 .88
Net cash from/{used in) investing activities - B (1,07,617.09) (64,068.25)
e —
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C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of equity instruments of the
Company

Proceeds from non-current borrowings

Repayment of non-current berrowings

Proceeds from current borrowings

Payment of finance lease obligations

Interest paid

Dividend paid

Tax on Dividend

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities - C

Net increase/(decrease)
equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year (see Note 1 and 2 below)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year
(see Note 1 and 2 below)*

in cash and cash

1,25,000.00
(1,20,462.09)
30,056.76
(1,056.94)
(56,245.63)
{25,000.00)

—
(47,707.90)

—

(1,221.23)

1,461.34

240.11

95,000.00
(1,32,663.26)
(2,300.00)
(728.69)
(55,282.98)
(1,500.00)
(97,474.93)
=ik bdoinl)
(2,883.15)
s B
4,344.49
1,461.34

=

L]

please refer note no. 11
Notes;

Cash and Cash equivalent consists of cheques, drafts, stamps in hand, balances wi

maturity of upto three months.
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and Cash eguivalents as per note no. 11

Cash & Cash Equivalent consists of NIL amount against CSR Unspent far the year,

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet

th bank, and deposits with original

for liabilities arising from financing

activities.
For the year ended 31" March 2024 T in lakhs
Particulars Non-current | Finance lease Current

borrowings** obligation borrowings

Opening balance as at 1" April 2023 6,84,525.74 1,086.31 22,000.00

Cash Flows during the period 1,25,000.00 (1,056.94) 30,056.76

Principal repayment during the period {1,20,462.09)

Non-Cash Changes due to :

Acquisition under finance lease 1,986.18

Variations in exchange rate 316.06

Transaction cost on borrowings -

Closing balance as at 31" March 2024 6,89,379.71 2,015.55 52,056.76

For the year ended 31" March 2023 Xin lakhs

Particulars MNon-current Finance lease Current

borrowings** obligation borrowings |

Opening balance as at 17 April 2022 7,18,899.93 1011.83 24,300.00

Cash Flows during the year 95,000.00 (728.69) {2,300.00)

Principal repayment during the period (1,32,663.286)

Non-Cash Changes due to

Acquisition under finance lease 803.17

Variations in exchange rate 3,289.07

Transaction cost on borrowings =

Closing balance as at 31*" March 2023 6,84,525.74 1,086.31 22,000.00

** includes current maturity of long term borrowings

iDate:
Place

A. f’ Rong
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A

terms of our report of even Date

Gurdeep Sin
Director (Finance)-cum-CFO  Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 09263864 DIN: 00307037

For R.N Goyal & Co
Chartered Accountants

g S

CA Manish Gayal
Partner
Membership No-061194
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Notes forming part of Standalone Financial Statements
Note 1. Company Information and Material Accounting Policies
A. Reporting entity

North Eastern Electric Power Corporation Limited (“"NEEPCO Lid.” / “the Company™) is a Company domiciled in
India and limited by shares (CIN - U4010IMLI976GOI001658). The Company is a leading power utility, primarily
operating in the North-Eastern Region of India. NEEPCO is a Central Public Sector Enterprise (CPSE) & a wholly
owned subsidiary of NTPC Lid and it is conferred with the Schedule A- Miniratna Category-I CPSE status by the
Government of India. The address of the Company’s registered office is Brookland Compound. Lower New Co lony,
Laitumkhrah, Shillong 793003, Meghalaya. The Company is primarily involved in the generation and sale of bulk
power to State Power Utilities,

NEEPCO Ltd has its debt (Band Xl issue ta XXIiI issue) listed with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

B. Basis of preparation
I.  Statement of Compliance

These standalone financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of accounting
and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind ABS) preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act. 2013 and the provisions of the Electricity Act. 2003 to the extent applicable.

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on the 14" May
2024,

2. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost hasis except for:

*  Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value and

*  Plan assets in the case of employees defined benefit plans that are measured at fair value.
3. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees () which is the Company’s functional currency. All

financial information presented in () has been rounded to the nearest lakhs (up to two decimals), except when
indicated otherwise.

4. Current and non-current classification
The Company classifies its assets and liabilities as current/non-current in the balance sheet considering 12 months
period as normal operating cycle,

C. Material accounting policies

A summary of the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given
below. These accounting policies have been applied consistent ly to all periods presented in the financial statements.

The Company has elected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101-*First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards’
by not applying the provisions of Ind AS 16-"Property. plant and equipment'& Ind AS 38- “Intangible assets’
retrospectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount s a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of
transition to Ind AS i.c. 1 April 2015. Therefore, the carrying amount of property. plant and equipment and intangible
assets as per the previous GAAP as at | April 2015, ie. the Company’s date of transition 10 Ind AS. were maintained
on transition to Ind AS.

D. Basis of Consolidation
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accardance with Ind AS 105.
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Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit and loss of the
joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional

losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

If there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the net investment in a joint venture (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net investment that can be reliably estimated, then it
is necessary to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Group's investment in a joint venture.

When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount,
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.
1. Property, plant and equipment

1.1. Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent measurement is done at cost less
accumulated depreciation/amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

When parts of an item of property. plant and equipment that are significant in value and have different useful lives as
compared to the main asset, they are recognized separately.

Deposits. payments/liabilities made provisionally towards compensation, rehabilitation and other expenses relatable to
land in possession are treated as cost of land.

In the case of assets put to use. where final settlement of bills with contractors is yet to be affected. capitalization is
done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the yvear of final setlement.

Assets and sysiems common © more than one generaling unit are capitalized on the basis of engineering
estimates/assessments.

Items of spare parts. stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of property. plant and
equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognized as expense in the statement of
protit and loss on consumption.

The acquisition or construction of some items of property. plant and equipment although not directly increasing the
future economic benefits of any particular existing item of property, plant and ¢quipment, may be necessary for the
Company to obtain future economic benefits from its other assets. Such items are recognized as property, plant and
cquipment.

Excess ol net sale proceed ol items produced while bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management is deducted from the directly attributable cost
considered as part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

1.2. Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic
benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can he measured reliably.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized. when it meets the asset recognition
criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection and overhaul 1s derecognized.

Page 8 of 106




The cost of replacing major part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized regardless of whether the
replaced part has been depreciated separately. 11 it is not practicable to determine the carrying amount of the replaced
part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of what the cost of replaced part was at the time it
was acquired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property. plant and equipment are recognizad in
the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred.

1.3.  Decommissioning costs

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset afler its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset it the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

1.4. De-recognition

Property. plant and equipment is derecognized when no future cconomic benefits are expected from their use or upon
their disposal. Gains and losses on de-recognition of an item of property. plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between sale proceeds from disposal. if any. and the carrying amount of property. plant and equipment and
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

1.5. Depreciation/amortization

Depreciation on the assets of the generation of electricity business and on the assets of Corporate & other offices of
the Company, covered under Part B of Schedule I of the Companies Act. 2013. is charged on straight-line method
following the rates and methodology notified by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) Tariff
Regulations along with exception for the following assets:

Major overhaul and inspection costs which have been capitalized are depreciated over the period until the next
scheduled outage or actual major inspection/overhaul, whichever is earlier.

Spares parts procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently which are capitalized and added in the
carrying amount of such item are depreciated over the residual useful life of the related plant and machinery at the
rates and methodology notified by CERC.

Right-of-use land and buildings relating to generation of electricity business governed by CERC TarifT Regulations
are fully amortized on straight line method over the lease period or life of the related plant whichever is lower
following the rates and methodology notitied by the CERC Tarift Regulations,

Right-of-use land and buildings relating to generation of electricity business which are not governed by CERC tariff
Regulations are fully amortized on straight line method over the lease period or lile of the related plant whichever is
lower.

Right-of-use land and buildings relating 1o corporate. and other offices are fully amortized on straight line method
over lease period or twenty-five years whichever is lower following the rates and methodology notified by the CERC
Tariff Regulations.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property. plant and equipment during the year is charged on pro-rata
basis from/up to the month in which the asset is available for use/sale. disposal or carmarked for disposal.

Where the cost of depreciable assets has undergone a change during the year due to increase/decrease in long-term
liabilities (recognized up to 31 March 2016) on account of exchange fluctuation and price adjustment change in duties
or similar factors. the unamortized balance of such asset is charged ofl prospectively over the remaining uselul life
determined following the applicable accounting policies relating to depreciation/amortization.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the expenditure incurred will flow 1o the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. subsequemt expenditure on a property. plant and equipment along-
with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged ofT prospectively over the revised uselul e determined by
technical assessment.

Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with Ind AS 105 and the date that the asset is
derecognized.

Assets/procured installed. whose individual cost is Rs. 3000/- or less but more than Rs. 750/~ (hereinafler is called
Assets of minor value) are depreciated during a period of 12 month leaving a nominal balance of Rs. 1/- only.
IT equipment (Personal Computers and Laptops including Peripherals) are depreciated in a period of three years.

Furniture. fixtures. and other facilities provided at the residence of employees for official work are depreciated over
five vears with a residual value of 10%.

Temporary erections/structures are tully depreciated over a period of 12 months,

2. Capital work-in-progress
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Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as on the reporting date. is
classified under capital work- in-progress.

I'he cost of self-canstructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management and the borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying asset.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they are ready for their
intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account received from the
contractors,

Unsettled liabilities for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted for on estimated
basis as per terms of the contracts,

3. Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

3.1, Initial recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company. which have finite useful lives, are recognized at cost. Subsequent
measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets not ready for its intended use as on the date of balance sheet are recognized as “Imtangible Assets
under development™.

3.2.  Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrving amount of the asset when it is probable that future

economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.
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3.3. De-recognition

An intangible agsset is derecognized when no future economic benelits are expected from their use or upon their
disposal. Gain or loss on de-recognition of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any. and the earrying amount of intangible assets and are recagnized in the statement of profit and loss,

34. Amortization

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset. is amortized on straight-line method over a period of legal right {0 use
or 3 years, whichever is less.

“Land Right to yse™ is fully amortised over the period of useful life of the projects from its date of commercial
Operation (COD), Leaschold land are amortised over the period of lease or useful life of the project, whichever is
lower, from its COD, Leasehold Land. in case ol administrative offjces are amortised over the lease period.

The amortization period and the amortization method of intan zible assets with a finite u
financial year end angd adjusted prospectively, wherever required,

4. Regula tory deferral account bala nees

Expense/income recogniz

seful life is reviewed at each

ed in the statement of profit and loss to the extent recoverable from or payable to the
beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations are recognized as ‘Regu latory deferral account
balances,

Regulatory deferral account balances are adjusted in the vear in wh ich the same become recoverable from or payable
to the beneficiaries,

Regulatory deferral account balances are evaluated at each balance sheet dage 1o ensure that the underlying activities
meet the recognition criteria and it is probable that future econumic benefits associated with such bal

ances will flow
to the entity. If these criteria are not met. the regulatory deforral account balances are derecognized.
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5. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense caleulated using the ettective interest method as described in Ind AS
109 — “Financial Instruments® (b) interest expense on lease liabilities recognized in accordance with Ind AS 116

“Leases’ and (¢) exchange differences arising from toreign currency borrowings (o the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment 10 interest costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction/ development or erection of qualifying
assets are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale,

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the Purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing costs
incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of oblaining a
qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs js computed based on the weighted average cost of all
borrowings that are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction or erection of the

qualifying asset. However, borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a

qualifying asset. are excluded from this caleulation, unt) substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset
for its intended use of sale are complete,

Income earned on temporary investment made out of the borrowings pending utilization for expenditure on the
qualifying assets is deducted f rom the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization,

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets
for their intended use are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

The Company can incur borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary o
Prepare an asset for its intended use or sale. Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and is not
eligible for capitalization. However, the “ompany does not normally suspend capitalizing borrowing costs during g
period when it carries out substantial technijcal and administrative wogk The Company also does not suspend
capitalizing borrowing costs when a temporary delay is a necessary part of the process of getting an asset ready for its

6. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Non-moving items of stores and spares are reviewed and diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus
Spares is ascertained and provided for.

7. Government grants

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance tha they will be received and the Company will
comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Grants that compensate the -ompany for the cost of depreciable
assel are recognized as income in statement of profit angd loss on a systematic basis over the period and in the
proportion in which depreciation s charged. Grants tha compensate the Company for expenses incurred are
recognized over the period in which the related costs are incurred and the same is deducted from the related expenses,

8. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event, the Company has 2 present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably. and it js probable that an eutflow of cconomic benefits will be required 1o settle (he
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a Pre=tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specitic to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as a finance cost.

F'he amoum recognized as a provision is the hest estimate of the consideration required 1o settle the present obligation
at reporting date. considering the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

When some or all of the economic benefits required 1o setlle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party. the receivable js recognized as an asset if it js virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can he measured reliably, The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of re imbursement, if any,

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence wil| only be confirmed
by the occurrence or nen-oceurrence of one or more fyture events not wholly within the control of the Company,
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably. the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of Judgment of the management/independent experts, These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

|
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Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from pPast events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company,
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of cconomic benefits is probable on the basis

of judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in
the financial statements,

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An onerous contract
Is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the contract.

9. Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot exchange rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the reporting date are translated at the
functional currency Spot rates of exchange prevailing on that date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the vear in which it arises with the
exception that exchange differences on long term monetary items related to acquisition of property, plant and
equipment recognized up to 31 March 2016 are adjusted to the carrying cost of property, plant and equipment,

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency which are measured in terms of historical cast are recorded
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, In case of'advance consideration received or paid in a foreign
currency. the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is when the C ompany initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration,

10. Revenue

Company’s revenues arise mainly from sale of energy, income on assets under lease. and other income. Revenue from
other income comprises interest from banks, employees. contractors ete.. dividend from mutual fund investments,
surcharge received from beneficiaries for delayed pavments, sale of scrap, other miscellancous income, ele,

10.1. Revenue from sale of energy

The majority of the Company’s operations in India are regulated under the Electricity Act. 2003, Accordingly. the
CERC determines the tariff for the Company’s power plants based on the norms prescribed in the taritt regulations as
applicable from time to time, Tariff is based on the capital cost incurred for a specific power plant and primarily
comprises two components: capacity charge i.e. a fixed charge that includes depreciation, return on equity, interest on
working capital. operating & maintenance expenses. interest on loan and energy charge i.e. a variable charge primarily

Revenue from sale o Fenergy is accounted for based o tariff rates approved by the CERC (except items indicated as
provisional) as modified by the orders of’ Appellate Tribunal for Electricity to the extent applicable. In case of pawer
stations where the tariff rates are ¥el to be approvedfitems indicated provisional by the CERC in their orders.
provisional rates are adopted considering the Annual Fixed Cost submitied before the CERC through petition as per
the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations. Revenue from sale of energy is recognized once the electricity has been
delivered to the beneficiary and is measured through a regular review of usage meters. Beneficiaries are billed on a
periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date. revenue from sale of enerey includes an acerual for sales
delivered to beneficiaries but not yetbilled i.e. contract assets/ unbilfed revenue.

Ihe incentives/disincentives are aceounted for based on the norms notified/approved by the CERC as per principles
enunciaied in Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from contracts with customers. In cases of power stations where the same have
not been notitied/approved, incentives/disincentives are accounted for on provisional basis,

Part of revenue from energy sale where CERC tariff Regulations are not applicable is recognized based on the rates,
terms & conditions mutually agreed with the beneficiarics and trading of power through power exchanges.

Exchange differences arising from settlement/translation of manetary items denominated in foreign currency to the
extent recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per the CERC Tariff Regulations are
accounted as “Regulatory deferred account balances’ and such halances are adjusted in the year in which the same
becomes recoverable/pavable to the beneficiaries.
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Exchange differences on account of translation of foreign currency borrowings recognized up to 31 March 2016. 10
the extent recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per the CERC Tariff Regulations
are accounted as *Deferred foreign currency fluctuation asset” with corresponding credit to *Deferred income from
foreign currency fluctuation’. Deferred income from foreign currency fluctuation account is amortized in the
proportion in which depreciation is charged on such exchange differences and same is adjusted against depreciation
expense. Fair value changes in respect of forward exchange contracts for derivatives recoverable from/payable to the
beneficiaries as per the CERC Tariff Regulations, are recognized in sales,

Revenue from sale of energy through trading is recognized based on the rates, terms & conditions mutually agreed
with the beneficiaries as per the guidelines issued by Ministry of New and Renewable Energy. Government of India,

Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early pavment incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue.

Revenue from sale of energy saving certificates is accounted for as and when sold,

The inuunIi\-'csf’disincenli\-'us.’rcco\-crablc are recognized based on norms notified by the Central I lectricity Regulatory
Commission,

10.2. Other income

Interest income is recognized. when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exist. on g time
proportion basis considering the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate, using the effective interest rate
method (EIR). For debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI). interest income is recognized using the EIR (o the ross carrying amount of the financial asset and
included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCT)
financial assets interest income is recognized by calculating the credit-adjusted FIR and applying that rate to the
amortized cost of the asset,

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in the year of acceptance. Other insurance claims are accounted
for based on certainty of realization.

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreement,

The interest/surcharge on late payment/overdue trade receivables for sale of energy is recognized when no significant
uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

Interest/surcharge recoverahle on advances 1o contractors and suppliers as well as warranly claims wherever there is
uncertainty of realization/acceptance are not treated as acerued and are therefore, accounted for on receipt/acceptance,

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss only when the right to receive s established, it is probable that the
cconomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company. and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably,

11. Employee benefits

11.1. Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is 4 post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions 1o
separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation (o pay further dmounts, Oblications for
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benelits expense in statement of profit and
loss in the period during which services are rendered by emplayees. Prepaid contributions are recagnized as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions 1o g defined contribution
plan that are due after more than 12 months after the end of the period in whick the employees render the service are
discounted to their present value.
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TL2. Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment henefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
liability towards gratuity. post-retirement medical benefit ( PRMB). farewel| gift on retirement, and provident fund
scheme to the extent of interest liability on provident fund contribution are in the nature of defined benefit plans,

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans i calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods:
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The fair vajye of any plan assets is deducted. The discount
rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity

dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which
the benefits are €xpected to be paid,

the caleulation results in a benefit to the Company. the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions (o the plan, An
cconomic benefit is available to the Company if it js realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan
liabilities, Remeasurement comprising of actuaria] gain and losses, return on plan assets (excluding the amoun
included in net interest on the net defined | iability) & effect of asset ceiling (excluding the amount included in net
interest on the net defined liability) and the same  are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in the
period in which they arise,

Past service costs are recognized in statement of profit and loss on the carlier of the date of the plan amendment or
curtailment, and the date that the Company recognizes related Festructuring costs. If g plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement oceurs, the current service cost and the net interest for the period afier the Fe-measurement are determined
using the assumptions used for the re-measurement,

11.3. Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment and gratuity scheme constitute other long term employee benefits,
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The C ompany’s net obligation in fespect of these long-term employee benefits jg calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service jn the current and
prior periods: thay benefit is discounted to determine s present value and the fajy value of any related assets is
deducted. The discount rate s based on the prevailing market vields of Indian government securities as at the
reporting date thar have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are
denominated in the Same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid,

The actuarial caleulation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurement comprising actuarial gain and losses. return on plan assets ( excluding the amount included in net
interest on the net defined liability) & effect of asset ceiling ( excluding the amount included in net interest on the net
defined liability) ang the same are recognized in statement of profit and loss account iy the period in which they
arise.

The obligations are presented as current liabjlitjes in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least twelye months afier the reporting period, regardiess of when the actual settlement
is expected 10 oceur.

11.4. Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
service is provided.

12, Other expenses

Expenses on training & recruitment are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year incurred,

Preliminary EXPenses on account of pew projects incurred prior 1o approval of feasibility reporttechno economie
¢learance are charged to statement of' profit and loss.

Net pre-commissioning income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of related assets and systems,

13. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCT or equity, in which case it is recognized in
OCT or equity, respectively,

Current tax is the expected tax pavable on the taxable income for the year computed as per the provisions of Income
Tax Act, 1961, using tax rates enacted or substantively ¢nacted by the end of the reporting period., and any adjustment
lo tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred rax is recognized using the balance sheel method, on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the lax bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred tay is
Measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied 1o temporary differences when they materialize, hased on the
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tay assets and liabilities are offset
if there is 3 legally enforecable right to offset current lax assets against the current tax liabilitics, and they relate 1o
income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss EXCept 1o the extent thar it relates to items recognized
directly in OCI oy equity. in which case jt js recognized in OCT o Cquity, respectively.

Deferred 1ax liability is recognized for all taxable emporary differences. exeept when the deferred pax liability arises
from the initial recognition of goodwil] or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 4 business combination and.
at the time of transaction, (1) affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and (ii) does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductiple temporary differences.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences 1o the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will pe available against which the deductible temporary ditference can be utilized. Deferred tay assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the sufficient
taxable profits will be available in future to allow all or part of deferred 1ax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assels include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, wh ich is
likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income fax liability,. MAT
credit is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it js
probable that the furyre taxable profit will be available against which MAT credit can be utilized.

Page 16 of 106




) 8.9 3

%

When there is uncertainty regarding income tax lreatments, the Company assesses whether a tax authority is likely to
accept an uncertain tay treatment. If it concludes that the fax authority js unlikely to acee Pl an uncertain tax Ireatment,
the effect of the uncertainty on taxable income, tax bases and unused tax fosses and unused tax credits is recognized.
The effect of the uncertainty is recognized using the method that, in each case, best reflects the outcome of the
uncertainty: the most likely outcome or the expected value. For each case, the Company evalugtes whether to consider
cach uncertain (ay treatment separately, or jp conjunction with another or several other uncertain tax treatments, based
on the approach that best prefixes the resolution of uncertainty.

14, Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, a inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, g
lease if the contract conveys the right to contro| the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether: (1) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from yse of the asset through the periad of the lease and (3) the Company has (he right to direct the
use of the asser.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use assetand a corresponding lease liability for all ease arrangements in which i
is 4 lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and leases for low value
underlying assets, For these short-term and leases for low valye underlying assets, the Company recognizes the lease
pavments as an Operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the OPLions to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the Jease term. Right-
ol use assets and Jease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that the o ption to extend the lease
will be exercised/option to terminate the lease will not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets (other than land and buildings) are initially recognized at cost. which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease pavments made at or prior {0 the commencement date of the legse
plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives, They are subsequently measured at cost Jess accumulated
deprecialion.ramnnizatinn and impairment losses and adjusted for any reassessment of lease liabilities,

Right-ol-use assets are depreciated/amortized from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the
underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset by the end of lease lerm or if the cost of right-
of-use assets reflects that the purchase option will be exercised.  Otherwise, Right-of-use assets are
dcprecimeda’amortizcd from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset,

Right-of-use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that thejr
CAITYIng amounts may not be recoverable, For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (ie. the
higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value-in-use) s determined on an individual assel basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets, [n such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The Jease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the futyre lease payments, [n
calculating the present value, lease payments are discounted using the interest rage implicit in the legse or. il not
readily determinable. using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liahilitios are res-measured with g corresponding
adjustment o the related right-oftyse asset if the Company changes its assessment whether it will exercise an
extension or a termination option,

I5. Tmpairment of non-financial assers

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at cach reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 - ‘Impairment of Assets”. If any sueh
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount jy cstimaled.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating uni s the higher of its fair valye less costs of disposal and s
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present valye using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of he time value of money and the risks specific 1o the assel.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
&roup of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit L or *CGUT).
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An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and logs, | mpairment losses recognized in respect
oFCGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGLJ.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed gt cach reporting date for any indications that the Joss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss g reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, An impairment loss s reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. et of accumulated depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

16. Dividends

Dividends and interim dividends payable 1o the Company’s shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in the
period in which they are approved by the shareholders and the Board of Directors respectively.

17. Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods
presented in which the error oceurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the Opening balances

of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated,

18. Financial instruments

A financial instrument js any contract that gives rise (o a financial asset of ope entity and a financial linbility or equity
instrument of another entity. The Company recognizes a financial asset or g financial liability only when jt becomes
party to the contractual Provisions of the instrument

18.1. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially
measured al transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable (o the acquisition of financial assets,
which are not valued a fair value through profit or loss. are added o the fair value on initial recognition.,

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt instrument” js measured at the amortized cost i’ both the fol lowing conditions ure met:

(a) The asset is held within 4 business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified daies to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

Alter initial Measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured ag amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by considering any discount OF premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement
of profit and loss, The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at ENTOCI (Fair value through 0C)

A “debt instrument® js classified as at the FVTOC] it both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved hoth by collecting contractual cash Mows and selling the financial
assets, and

(b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPP|

Debt instruments included within the FVTOC] category are measured initially as well as 41 cach reporting date af [air
value. Fair value moy CMents are recognized in the OC]. However. the Company recognizes interest income.
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss, On de-recognition
of the asset. cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OC1 is reclassified from the equity to the statement of
profit and loss. Interest carned whilst holding FVTOC] debt instrument js reported as interest income using the EIR
method,

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)
FVTPL is a tesidual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not meet the criteria for

criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recognition incunsislcncy (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Deby instruments included within the FVTPL
Category are measured at fair valye with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Interest income on
such investments is presented under *Other income’.
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Business model assessment

The Company holds financial assets which arise from its ordinary course of business and investment property, The
objective of the business model for these financial assets is to colleet the amounis due from the Company’s
receivables and to earn contractual interest income on the amounts collected.

Investment in Equity instruments

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and Joint venture companies are measured at fair valye,
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as a FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company decides 1o classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

I the Company decides to classity an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC] lo statement of profit
and loss. ¢ven on sale/ disposal of investments, However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity on sale / disposal of the investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss, Dividend on such investments is presented under “Other income’

Equity investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures companies are accounted at cost less impairment, if any.

The Company reviews the carrying value of investments at each reporting date to determine whether there s any
indication of impairment. Ifany such indication exists, then the recoverable amount of the investment is estimated. [f
the recoverable amount is less than the carrving amount. the impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss,

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is
primarily de-recognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or

*  The Company has transterred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement: and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received/receivable is recognized in the
statement of profit and Joss exeept for equity instruments classified as at FVTOCL, where such differences are
recorded in OCL

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109-"Financial instruments’, the Company applies expected eredit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments. and are measured at amortized cost.
(b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTQOC].
(c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116,

(d) Trade receivables. unbilled revenue and contract assets under Ind AS |5,
(e} Loan commitments which are not measured gs at FVTPL.

() Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at PV TPL.

For trade receivables and contract assets/unbilled revenue, the Company applies the simplified approach required by
Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments. which requires lifetime expected losses to be recognized from initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure (other than purchased or originated
credit impaired financial assets), the Company determines that whether there has been g significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used 1o provide for
impairment loss. However. if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If. in a subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. then the entity reverts 1o recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets. a loss al lowance is recognized for the cumulative changes
in lifetime expected credited losses since initial recognition,
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18.2. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

in the case of liabilitjes subsequently measured at amortized cost net of directly attributable transaction cost. The
Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables. borrowings including bank overdrafts. financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial measurement. such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is calculated by takin g into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that dre an integral part of the E[R. The EIR amortization s included in finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss, This category generally applies to borrowings. trade payables and other contractual
liabilities,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or Joss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as al fair value through profit or logs. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also meludes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial
date of recognition. and only if'the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satistied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL. fair + alue
gains/losses attributable 1o changes in own credit risk js recognized in OCI, These gains/losses are not subsequently
transterred o profit and loss, However. the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity on
disposal. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and Joss,

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled Or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantial ly different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
fecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrving
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,

18.3. Interest rate benchmark reform

When the basis for determining the contraciual cash flows of a financial asser or financial liability mcasured at
amortized cost is changed as a resuh of interest rate benchmark reform. the Company updated the effective interest
rate ol the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by the reform, A change in the
basis for determining the contractyal cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform f the following
conditions are mer:

— the change is flecessary as a direct consequence of the reform: and

- the new basis for determining the contractyal cash flows is cconomically equivalent o the previous basis — i.e. he
basis immediately before the change.

When changes were made 10 4 financial asset or financial liability in addition o changes to the basis for determining
the contractual cash Hows required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Company first updates the effective interest
rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is required by interest rate benchmark reform
and does not recognize a modification gain or loss in the profit & loss statement. After that. the Company applies the
policies on accounting for modifications to the additional chanpes,
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I184. Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps lo
hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks of foreign currency loans. Such deri vative financial Instruments
are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair valye, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair valye is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative, Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fajr value of derivatives are
taken to statement of profit and loss,

18.5. Offsetting of financial assets angd financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the per amount is presented in the balance sheet if there js a
currently enforceable legal right to offser the recognized amounts ang there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 1o
realize the assets and settle the liabilitics simultaneously,

19. Non -Current Assets Held for Sale

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will pe
fecovered principally through a sale rather than through contin uing use and a sale is considered highly probable.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected 1o qualify for recognition as 4 completed sale
within one vear from the date of classification as held for sale, and actions required to complete the plan of gale
should indicate that it js unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the plan wil] be withdrawn,

Non-Current Assets held for sale and disposal &roups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair
value less cost of disposal.

retired from active use. however criteria of ‘non-current assets held for sale” as above are not met. such items are not

classified as held for sale and continued to pe depreciated over their revised useful lives, as assessed. Such assets are
evaluated for impairment in accordance with this materja] accounting policy,

D. Useof estimates and management judgements

impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, revenye expenses and related
disclosures concerning the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dare, The
estimates and management’s judgments are based On previous experience & other factors considered reasonable and
prudent in the circumstances, Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods aftected.

In order 10 enhance understanding of the financial staements, information about signilicant areas of estimation,
uncertainty and critical judgmients in applying accounting policies that haye the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial staements is as under:

I Formulation of accounting policies

The accounting policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing releyan and reliable
information about the transactions, other events and conditions to which they applyv. Those policies need not he
applied when the effeet of applying them is Immaterial,

2. Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The estimated useful |ife of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence. demand. competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required 1o obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset,

Useful life of the assets of the generation of electricity business (where tariff is regulated) is determined by the CERC
Tariff Regulations in accordance with Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013,

3. Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The recoverable amount of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on estimates and assumptions
regarding in particular the expected market outlook ang future cash flows associated with the power plants. Any
¢hanges in these assumptions may have a materia impact on the measurement of the recoverable ampun and could
result in impairment.

4. Defined benefit plans and long-term employee benefits
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Employee benefiy obligations are measured on the hasis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality and
withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concern ing future developments in discount rates. the rate of salary increases
and the inflation rate, The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate
and documented, However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting
caleulations,

5. Revenues

The Company records revenue from sale of energy based on tariff rages approved by the CERC as modified by the
orders of Appellate Tribunal for Electricity, as per principles enunciated under Ind AS 1135, However, in cases where
tarill rates are Yet to be approved, provisional rates are adopted considering the Annual Fixed Cost submitted before
the CERC through petition as per the applicable CERC Tariff Regulations.

6. Leases not in legal form of lease

Significant Judgment is required to apply lease accounting rules as per Ind AS 116 in determining whether an
arrangement contains a Jease. In assessing arrangements entered into by the Company. management has exercised
Judgment to evaluate the right to use the underlying asset. substance of the transactions inclug ing legally enforceable
agreements and other significant terms and conditions of the arrangements 1o conclude whether the arrangement meets
the criteria as per Ind AS | I6.

7. Assets held for sale

Significant udgment is required to apply the accounting of non-current assets held for sale under Ind AS 105 - *Non-
Current assets held for sale and discontinued operations®. In assessing the applicability, management has exercised
Judgment 1o evaluate the availability of the asset for immediate sale, management’s commitment for the sale and
probability of sale within one year to conclude if their carrying amount wil] be fecovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use,

8. Regulatory deferral account balances

Recognition of regulatory deferral account balances involves significant judgments including about futyre tariff
regulations since these are based on estimation of the amounts expected to be recoverable/pavable through tariir in

9. Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS
37-"Provisions, contingent liabilitics and contingent assets’, The evaluation of the likelihood ol the contingent events
require best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure 1o potential loss, Should circumstances
change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter,

10. Income taxes
Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax, including amount
expected (o be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions,
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Note no.3 Details of cWIP

As at 31" March 2024
Opening as at [ Additions | Adjustments Capitalised as ar 31™ At 3ter —‘
Particulars ist April 2023 during the during the during the
period period period March 2024 March 2023
Development of Land -
idges, culve
Roads, bridges, culverts & 0.99 933.05 13.44 (475.28) 472.00 0.99
helipads
Main Plant Buildings 393.65 96.42 (88.13) (387.76) 14,18 383.65
Other Buildings 42469 1,247.32 47.07 (1,327.38) 391.70 424,69
CWIP-Leasehold Buildings - - - -
Temporary erection - - - =
. )
Water supply, drainage & 185.97 35.27 (92.80) (117.23) 11,21 185.97
sewerage
Railway siding - -
0am, Dyke, Reservoir & Other 3634497 | 13,90351 160339 | (47,084.59) 4,767.28 36,344.97
Hydraulic Works
Plant and machinery 45,306.06 26,064.38 (2,708.59) (43,251.94) 25,409,91 45,306.06
Furniture and fixtures - . - - -
Other Office Equipment 726.77 (726.77) -
EDP WP SATCOM - - - »
Construction Equipment - - 1376 (33.785) - -
Electrical installations 77.53 421.77 (3874} (460.56) - 77.53
Communication Equipment - - -
Capital expenditure not . =
owned by the company
Gther Equipments - 3496 (26.22) 8.74
Piling and Foundation - . - - = -
Other Civil Works 79.23 364.36 (79.22) (114.80) 249,57 79.23
Environment & Ecology = = = - -
Survey & Investigation 1,828.78 (386.15) - 1,442.63 1,828.78
neidental Expenditure During 27,43211| 2667858 (599.96) (2094197  azse878| 2743241
Construction
1,12,073.98 | 70,471.a3 (2,260.97)|  (1,14,948.a6) 65,335.98| 1,12.073.08
Arovtdon For CwIp (Rafer 1,709.50 (685.05) 1,024.45 1,709.50
Nate 3{v)]
Construction Stores 3,829.96 826.14 {1,754.73) (730.41) 2,170.96 3,829.96
Total 1,14,194.44 71,297.57 (3,330.565) (1,15,678.87)| 66,482.49 1,14,194.44
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3(i) CWIP Aging Schedule

As at 31st March 2024

cwip

Amount in CWIP for a period of

L 1
ess than 1-2 Years 2vean ! More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 50,788.68 13030.46 739,33 1,924.02 66,482.49
Projects temporarily
suspended NIL NIL NIL NIL
3(ii) CWIP Aging Schedule { ®in lakhs )
As at 31st March 2023
Amount in CWIP for a period of
cwip
Less than 1 ’ More than 3 Total
1-2 Years 2-3 years
year years
Projects in progress 63,078.32 ! 40,056.01 7,964.75 3,095.36 1,14,194.44
= -
! RS oy NIL [ NIL NIL NIL NIL

3(iii). CWIP Completion Schedule - Whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to

its original plan

cwip

As at 31" March 2024

To be completed in

Less than 1 More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year ears
Projects in progress/Assets: *

Project NIL NIL NIL NIL

Project NIL NIL NIL NIL

Projects temporarily suspended NIL NIL NIL NIL

LRy

3(iv): cwip Completion Schedule - Whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to

its original plan

ff

As at 31* March 2023

To be completed in

Less than 1 Mare than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
HERTE AR
Projects in progress/Assets: * IS
Project NiL NIL
Project NIL NIL
Projects temporaril suspended NIL NIL NIL

* Assets under capital works in progress for powe

7 plants in commercial Operation
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{2 in lakhs)
As at 31st As at 31st
6 s March 2024 | March 2023
Building (Head Quarter) 027 0.27
Building (Tuirial HEP) - -
Water Supplv.Sewerage & Drainage (Tuirial -
Environment & Echology (Tipaimukh HEP) i -
Surv, Investigation
Tipaimukh HEp - -
Siang HEP 246.45 245,45
Salim HEP -
Tuival HEP - -
Garo Hills Thermal Project - 90.47
Margerita HEP - -
Rokhia & Baramura GT Power Piant -
Gumti HEP -
WK hills HEP =
Leh & Kargil HEP 44.95 44.94
KHER 17.33 17.33
Kiling HEP = 69.67
Bandu HEP
Rangit HEP -
Solar Power
Incidental Expendit durin, nstruction
Tipaimukh HEP - =
Bichom Basin 253.53 253,52
Kiling HEP 524.93
Siang HEP 461.592 461,92
Tatal 1,024.45 1,709.50
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Note no. 4 Intangible Assets

(X in lakhs )
Particulars As at 31" March, 2024 | As at 31" March, 2023 |
Carrying amounts of :
Software 528.88 951.87
Right to use (Forest Land) 7,504.43 7,712.77
Total 8,033.31 8,664.64
As at 31st March 2024 (X in lakhs)
Right to
Particulars Software |use (Forest Total
Land)
Gross Block as at April 1, 2023 2,418.60 8,386.87 10,805.47
Additions 86.13 - 86.13
Adjustment for the period (4.86) B (4.86)
Gross Block as at March 31, 2024 2,499.87 | 8,386.87 10,886.74
Accumulated Impairment as at April 1, 2023
Charge for the period
Accumulated Impairment as at March 31, 2024
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2023 1,466.73 674.10 2,140.83
Charge for the period 508.12 208.34 717.46
Adjustment for the period (4.86) - (4.86)
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2024 1,970.99 882.44 2,853.43
Total Accumulated amortisation and impairment as 1,970.99 882.44 2,853.43
at March 31, 2024
Net block as at March 31, 2024 528.88 | 7.504.43 8,033.31 |
As at 31st March 2023 (X in lakhs)
Right to
Particulars Software | use (Forest Total
Land)
Gross Block as at April 1, 2022 2,132.79 8,386.87 10,519.66
Additions 326.88 - 326.88
Adjustment for the period (41.07) - (41.07)
Gross Block as at March 31, 2023 2,418.60 8,386.87 10,805.47
Accumulated Impairment as at April 1, 2022
Charge for the period
Accumulated Impairment as at March 31, 2023
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2022 872.84 465.76 1,338.60
Charge for the period 636.95 208.34 845.29
Adjustment for the period (43.06) - (43.06)
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 1,466.73 674.10 2,140.83
Total accumulated amortisation and impairment as 1,466.73 674.10 2,140.83
at March 31, 2023
Net block as at March 31, 2023 951.87 7,712.77 8,664.5‘

4(i) Compensation paid for forest land in Possession/use ( 5967,24 Hectres) for setting up of projects (
Kameng Hydro Electric Project, Pare Hydro Electric Project and Tuirial Hydro Electric Project) are

treated as " Right to use".

4(ii) Expenses incurred on maintenance of software system payable annually are charged to revenue.
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4(iii) Disclosure regarding Title deeds/Lease Deeds/Mutuation in respect of leasehold land not held in
the name of the Company has been provided as Annexure- to this note,

Annexure-l to Note 4 (jii): Title deeds/Lease Deeds/Mutuation in respect of leasehold land/Right to use
land not held in the name of the Company as at 31 March 2024
> : Right to
Right to use (Forest Right 1o use
Relevant line item in the Balance sheet use (Forest
Land) Lind) (Forest
Land)
552.24 3517
escription of item of 5380 H
Description of ite i el Hectares Hectares
Gross carrying value (% in lakhs) 1933.25 5,389.40 | 1,064.23
Govt of Govt of
Title deeds held in the name of Govt. of Mizoram Arunachal Arunachal
Pradesh Pradesh
Whether title deed holder is a promoter, director or
relative# of promoter/director or employee of No No No
promoter/ director
Property held since which date 16.03.2000 May'2005 | Nov'2009
i t
Reason for not being held in the name of the T 3 Farastdid Farest
company Land

Annexure-| to Note 4 (jii): Title deeds/Lease Deeds/Mutuation in respect of leasehold land/Right to use
land not held in the name of the Company as at 31 March 2023

. Right to
[_ ; Right to &
A ! Right to use (Forest use
Relevant line item in the Balance sheet use (Forest
Land) Land (Forest
a
Land)
; 552.24 3517
Description of item of property 5380 Hectares
Hectares Hectares
Gross carrying value (Z in lakhs) 1933.25 5,389.40 | 1,064.23
Govt of Govt of
Title deeds held in the name of Govt. of Mizoram Arunachal Arunachal
Pradesh Pradesh
Whether title deed holder is a promoter, director or
relative# of promoter/director or employee of No No No
[promoter/ director
Property held since which date 16.03.2000 May'2005 | Nov'2009
Forest Land [ Forest Lan
Reason for not being held in the name of the Forest Land provided on Right| provided on provided on
company to Use mode Right to Use |Right to Use
I'I"IC)Q!Q _III.QgL_I
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Note no. 4A Intangible Assets Under Development
( X In lakhs)
; Adj
Asaran Additions dj:::me Capitalise it %
Particulars s’a during the 3 d during Ao Asat3
April 2023 during March 2024 | March 2023
year the year
the year
Upfront Premium including 10,096.00 - - 10,096.00 | 10,096.00
Software - 71.15 - 42.83 28.32 -
10,096.00 71.15 - 42.83 10,124.32 10,096.00
Less : Provision for write off 10,000.00 10,000.00 | 10,000.00
==3
Total l 96.00 71.15 - | a283 124.32 96.00

a. Intangible assets under development Aging Schedule

(Xin lakhs )

As at 31" March 2022

Intangible assets under

Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

development h
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years Mor:rsan ¢
|—_YEegrs |
Projects in progress 28.32 96.00 =
Projects temporarily suspend Nil NIL NIL NIL :’
b. Intangible assets under development Aging Schedule
(X in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023

Intangible assets under
development
Less than 1 year

Projects in progress 13.50

Amount in Intangible assets under development for g period of

Projects temporarily suspendé Nil NIL —l

C. Intangible assets under development completion schedule -
exceeded its cost compared to its original plan

Whose completion is overdue or has

As at 31™ March 2024

Intangible assets under

To be completed in

development

Less than 1 year
28.32

1-2 Years
NIL

Projects in progress/Assets *
Projects temporaril

* SAP ERP is under implementation in NEEPCO
d. Intangible assets under development completion schedule -
exceeded its cost compared to its original plan

As at 31° March 2023

2-3 vears
NIL

More than 3 years

Whose completion is overdue or has

Intangible assets under

e To be completed in

development

Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 161.77 NIL NIL NIL NIL
Projects temporarily Nil NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Noteno.5 Investment in subsidiary and Joint Venture companies

(X in lakhs )
Particular Asat 31" March' 2024 |  As at 31" March 2023 |
Quantity ] Amount Quantity Amount
Quoted Investments s
TOTAL AGGREGATE QUOTED INVESTMENTS (A
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid)
Investments in Equity Instruments
- of joint ventures - jointly controlled entities‘
- KSK Dibbin Hydro Power (Equity Share Fully Paid up) 27930000( 3,238.00 27930000 3236.13
TOTAL AGGREGATE UNQUOTED INVEST MENTS (B) 27930000 3,238.00 27930000 3,236.13
Other Investment
TOTAL other investment (c) - 2 - =
TOTAL INVESTMENTS (A) + (B)+(C) 27930000 3,238.00 27930000/ 3,236.13
Less : Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments 2,793.00 2,793.00
- of joint ventures - Jointly controlled entities
TOTAL IMPAIRMENT VALUE (D)
TOTAL INVESTMENTS CARRYING VALUE (A) + (B) + (C)-(D) 27330000 445.00 27930000 443.13
INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES
_‘ﬁ___-____—___ N .
(i) The carrying amount and market value of unquoted Investments is as follows: (% in lakhs )
2 Proportion of Ownershi interest as at
———roportion of Ownership in
'Name of the Companies 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
| KSK Dibbin Hydro Power 30% 30%
Particular Asat31% March' 2024 | Asat3r” March' 2023
(a) Unquoted
Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investments 445.00 443.13
Total carrying amount 445.00 443.13 |

5(i) The cost of unquoted investments approximate the fair value because there is a wide range possible fair value
measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

5(ii) Investment in KSK Dibbin Hydro Power:- Joint venture between KSK Energy Ventures and NEEPCO Ltd for setting up of
a hydro power plant at Arunachal Pradesh.

NEEPCO is under the process of exploring various scopes & opportunities for ensuring viability of M/s KSK Dibbin hydro
Power Pvt Ltd, the Joint Venture Company, including engagement of legal expert to protect the Corporation’s (NEEPCO's)
interest for the investment made. However, considering commercial non viability of the project in its present form as
observed by inter-diciplinary committee of the Company, provision of equivalent amount has been made for the said
investment.

5(iii) The Consolidated Financial Statement (CFS) has been prepared with the unaudited financial statement received from
the JV company through the Nominee Directors appainted by NEEPCO,

Page 33 of 106




Note no. 6 Loans

(X in lakhs )
Particulars Asat 31" March | As at 31% March
2024 2023
Loans and Advances to employees

- Secured, considered good - -
- Unsecured, considered goad 40.02 28.19
- Which have significant increase in credit risk - -

- Credit impaired
Less : Allowance for bad and doubtful advances - -
TOTAL 40.02 28.19

12 installment.

6(ii) There is no outstanding debts due from Directors and other related parties of the Company as
on 31.03.2024 (Previous year NIL).

6(iii) The above loans and advances have been given as per the norms of the Corporation on
recoverable basis,
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Noteno.-7  Deferred tax balances
= [ % inlakhs |
[amas | Particulars As at 31" March 2024 As at 31" March 2023
Deferred Tax Liability
Difference in Book depreciation & Tax Depreciation 1,69,320.94 151,326.48
Less: Deferred Tax Asset
Unabsorbed depreciation [Refer Note 7{i)] 34,141,658 35,550.49
Provisions 10,143.16 10,278.85
Statutory dues 126.31 -
Leave encashment 5,825.31 5,728.29
MAT credit entitiement [Refer Note 7)) 24 525.30
Others [Refer Note 7(iii)] 1,118.96 980.90
Deferred Tax of )V Company 94.03 93.45
Net Defer Tax (Asset)/ Liability 93,534.25 98,881.40 |
_Deferred Tax as on 31.03.2024 (= in lakhs )
Deferred Tax Reconciliation Asat 31" March 2024 |As at 31" March 2023 Effect in PL
Defered Tax Liability as per Ind AS (1,69,320.94) (1,51,326.48) 17,994 46
Defered Tax Asset as per Ind AS 75,786.69 52,445.08 (23,341.561)
Net Defered Tax Liability (93,534.25) (98,881.40) (5,347.15)
Net {Liability)/Asset as per Ind AS [93,534.25) (98,881.40) (5,347.15)
Effect in PL (5,347.15)
Deferred Tax as on 31.03.2023 (% in lakhs )
Deferred Tax Reconciliation Asat 31" March 2023 |As at 31" March 2022 Effect in PL
Defered Tax Liability as per Ind AS (1,51,326.48) (1,34,249.94) 17,076.54
Defered Tax Asset as per ind AS 52,445.08 57,522.11 5,077.03
Net Defered Tax Liakility (98,881.40) (76,727.83) 22,153.57
Net (Liability)/Asset as per Ind AS {98,881.40) (76,727.83) 22,153.57
Effect in PL 22,153.57 |

7(1): NEEPCO s in the husinass of generation and sale of electricity, Electricity generated by various power plants of the Company are sold
putchase agreements, Tariffs for the generating stations are determined by the Central Elactricity Regulatory C
time an "Cast plus basis” Cansidering the CERC determined tar(ff for billing on NEEPCO's beneficiaries,

1 (CERC) in ¢

stations, it is expected that sufficient tavable profit will be available to the Company in futire years,

In comphiance to the Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Company has recognised Deferred Tax
“Unabsorbed depreciation’ with canvincing evidence that sufficient future tavable incame will

lakh during the FY 2023-24, DTA in respect of "Unabsobed depreciation” as on 31 13,2024 stand

Incorme Tax Act, 1561 wherein the Income Tax Authorities have made an addlition an account of
to reduction in unabsorbed depreciation amounting to Rs. 7046 lakhs (DTA of Rs 245215 lakhsl and Rs. 2328 lakhs (OTA of Rs.813.50 lakhs) for AY 2021-22 and &Y 2023-24 respectively

However, the Company isof the strang apinian that the additions were made merely on accou

Tiiik: MAT credit available far the Company sson 31.03.2024 amounts 1o % 34,464 84 |akhs (Previaus year T 24535 30 lakhs),

JLT S

2ii). During the year, the Company has, for the first time, recognised & incorporated in the book
lakhs (31 March 2023 Nil) as the same is likely to give futurs econamic beriefits in the form of

atof technical errors and 2 favourable arder shall be passed

to various beneficiaries under lang-term power
s to the CERC Tariff Regulations issued time to
as well as prevailing power market in India and Plam perfarmances of the genarating

Asset (DTA) amounting to T 34,141 68 lakhs upta the yeai ended 31.03.2024 in respect of
be available against which such DTA can be realized. On adjustment amounting te ¥ 1408 81

< at ® 34,141,688 lakh. The Company has recelved order/imtimation under section 143(1) of the

f inconsistency between tax audit renart & Income tax return filed which has tonsequantly lud

1812866 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil) has been recognised as payable to beneficiaries through regulatory deferral account balances.

in due course of tima.
being the amount as per camputation of tax credit under Sec 115

s of accounts the MAT credit available to the Company in future amounting to Rs 2457530
availability of set off against future income tax lizhility Dut of the above, an amaunt of Rs

ik} Others under Note Na 7, includes deferred tax assets created on provision for Fost Retirement Medical Benefit (PAMB] & award af Gold Coin to superannuated employeas

liv] Refer nate no 28 for detailed disclosure.
Mavement in deferred tax balances

1" March = { Xin !akl-:s |
Particulars A3 ';‘}g;_‘"ﬂ Rec:;ﬁr:;;::;a‘i;:lent Recognised in OCI ! Othei i M:;;;L
Deferred tax liability |
Ditference in book depreciation and tax depreciation 1,51,326.48 17,994 45 | 16932094
|Less: Deferred tax assets T 1 =y - ' 1] = == “dli
Unabsorbed depreciation 35,550.49 (1,408.81) + 34,141.68
Provisions 10,278.85 (135.69) | 10,143.16
Statutory dues {0.00) 126.31 [ 126.31
_ Leave encashment ____ 5728039 9702 | A | 582531
MAT credit entitlemant - 24,525.30 | 24,52530 |
Others 980.90 138.06 1,118.96
Deferred Tax of IV Company 93.45 0.58 94.03
Net tax (assets) / liabilities 98,881.40 (5,347.15) - - 93,534.25
As at 31" March 2023 : (¥ In Lakhs)
z Asat 1" April | Recognised in statement 2 As at 31“—[
Particulars of it e Recognised in OCI Others " s
Deferred tax liability
Difference in book depreciation and tax depreciation 1,34,249.94 17,076.54 - - 1,51,326.48
Less: Deferred tax assets = 7
Unabsorbed depreciation 42,540.99 16,990.50) - - 35,550.49
Provisions 8,963.85 1,315.00 - - 10,278.85
Statutory dues 365.37 {365.37) - - (0.00)
Leave encashment 4,841.55 886.74 - | - 5,728.29
MAT credit entitiement
Others 904.38 76.52 5980.90
Deferred Tax of Jv Company 94.03 (0.58) 93.45
Net tax (assets) / liabilities 76,727.83 22,153.57 = - 98,881.40
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Note no.-8  Other non-current assets

(X in lakhs )
r . As at 31" March
Particulars As at 31" March 2023
2024
Capital Advances
Secured : - -
Un-Secured :
Covered By Bank Guarantee [Refer Note 8(i)] 12,278.17 12,527.67
Others [Refer Note 8(iii)] 27,479.59 2,255.53
Considered Doubtful 255,22 255.22
Less: Allowances for bad & doubtful advances 255.22 255.22
Total 39,757.76 14,783.20
Others:
Interest Accrued on Advances 913.90 1,052.54
Advance tax refundable [Refer Note 8(ii)] 2,858.30 2,343 .46
Total 43,529.96 18,179.20

8(i) Capital advances comprises of Mobilisation Advance and advance against arbitrational award

deposited to escrow account in respect of Projects.

8(ii) Tax refundable relates to AY 2015-16, AY 2016-17, AY 2018-19 are X 439.85 lakhs, X 872.26 lakhs
and X (1597.55) lakhs respectively for which appeals order giving effects are pending with the Income
Tax Authorities. Amount of tax refundable for AY 2020-21 amounting to < 2628.90 is pending for appeal
before the Income Tax Authorities. Amount of tax refundable relate to the AY 2009-10, AY 2011-12 to AY

(3

2014-15 and AY 2021-22 are % 4.87 lakhs, % 3.13 lakhs, X 153,60 lakhs and 18.07 lakhs under “Vivad
Se Vishwas Scheme” and others % 333.48 lakhs and % 0.69 lakhs respectively as assessed during the vear

ended 31.03.2024.

8(iii) Others cansists of advance towards land & other advances to contractors and suppliers.
8(iv) Advance to Directors & other related parties as on 31.03.2024 is NIL (Previous year NIL).

Note no.-9 Inventories (At lower of cost or Net Realisable value) (X inlakhs )
< As at 31" Ma
Particulars %8 feh As at 31% March 2023
2024
Operational stores ::
Stores & Spares 10,737.61 11,602.58
Consumables 815.67 411.85
Others 904.07 501.62
}Qbsolete/ Scrap 812.73 822.77
Total 13,270.08 13,338.82
Less :: Provision for shortages
Provision for obsolete/ unserviciable Items 812.73 822,77
Total Inventories 12,457.35 12,516.05
Included above, goods-in-transit
Stores & Spares -
Total Goods in transit

9(i) Secured, Working Capital Demnand Loan of X 20100.00 lakhs (previous year 2 14500.00 lakhs) was
drawn against hypothecation of the stocks of stores and spares and Book Debt of the Company to the
extent of drawal.

9(ii) The Company is operating in the regulatory environment and as per CERC Tariff Regulations, cost of
fuel and other inventory items are recovered as per extant tariff regulations. Accordingly, the realizable
value of the inventories is not lower than the cost. Stores & Spares includes stores against grants in aid
of ¥ 904.06 lakhs (Previous year X 906.76 lakhs) to be amortised against repairs & maintenance.
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Note no. - 10 Trade receivables

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured
Trade Recelvables considered good - Unsecured 83,664.74

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in
credit risk

Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Allowance for doubtful dehts

TOTAL

10{iv] Amount receivabile from related parties is X 4527.68 lakhs.

Trade Receivables Agein, (% in lakhs )

As at 31" March 2024
Outstanding far following periods from due date of payment

Not due

Faticulies Un-billed | (ie., upto | >45 days to | 6 months 01 yearto |02 years to More than Total
45days) | lessthan6 |to 01 year| g2 years 03 years 3 years
A B i D H I=BTOH
i Trad les — id
(a) Undisputed Trade receivab &s — cansidered good 4163919 | 2005217 6.966.97 (106.39) hdis 53
{b) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
= )
{¢) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit Impaired
{d] Disputed Trade Receivables-consid-ered good 2,189.74 2,660.28 10,369.19 15,219.21
(e} Disputed Trade Receivables —  which have
significant increase in credit risk
(f) Disputed Trade Receivables — cradit Impaired -
Total 41,639.19 | 20,052.17 6,966.97 | 2,083.35 2,553.87 - 10,369.19 | 83664 72
(X in lakhs )

March 2023
Qutstanding for following

>45 days to
less than 6

Not due
{i.e., upto

Particulars
Olyearto |02yearsto More than

02 years 03 years

(a) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 44,382,558

|
(b} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which havef
significant increase in credit risk

() Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired

(d] Disputed Trade Recewablrrs—-consadered good

(e} Disputed Trade Receivabies - which have
significant increase in credit risk

{f) Disputed Trade Receivables ~ cradit Impaired
Total

10{v) Notes on Disputed Trade Receivable:
(a) Disputed trade receivables includes (i) Rs. 431.94 lakh against claim for reimbursement on account of Effective Tax Rate; (i) Rs, 1399 45 lakh against claim for
reimbursement of Foreign Exchange Rate Variatian (FERV) for 2015-16 to 2018-19; (iii) Rs. 57997 lakh against arrear bills arising out of determination of tariff
of TGBPS by CERC for 2017-18 & 2018-19; (iv) Rs. 2737.27 lakh against bills for GTG unit during 2015-16 & 2016.17 prior te COD of STG unit (v) Rs 2663.72 lakh
@gainst arrear hills arising out of determination of revision of Annual Fixed Charges order of TGBPS by CERC for 1st April 2019 to 31st July 2022and (vi) Rs.
2189.74 lakh against claim for reimbursement of Foreign Exchange Rate Variation {FERV) for 2015-16 to 2018-19.
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(b} TSECL has appealed against the above-mentioned bills amounting to % 10368.44 lakh before APTEL The petition has been taken up by APTEL and included in
the “"List of Finals"" to be taken up for hearing in its turn. There are sufficient legal/regulatory grounds as indicated by legal experts to infer that TSECL's petition
will be turned down and judgement delivered in NEEPCD's favour by APTEL.

{c) NEEPCO has approved Ministry of Power (Govt. of India) for invoking of TPA, and based on NEEPCO's request, the Government of India has served noticed on
the Government of Tripura with regard to invacation of the payment security clause of the Tripartite Agreement between Gol, RBI and Govt, of Tripura which
enables the Gal ta divert fund from the state's account maintained with RBI to liquidate the dues payable to NEEPCO by TSECL, including Late Payment Surcharge
on the dues. However, vide the order dated 01st April 2022, Hon'ble APTEL has directed NEEPCO not to take any precipitative action against TSECL for payment
of the dues during pendency of the appeal and for which the process of TPA invocation has been deferred till decision on the matter.

{d) TSECL has offered out-of-court settlement of the above-mentianed dispute regarding bills for T 10368 44 lakh, which has not been accepted by NEEPCO as the
offer entailed sharing the disputed amount an a 50 - 50 basis.

{e) Further, the claim under dispute filed by TESCL to the Appellate Tribunal for Electricity in the current financial year is Rs. 5547.46 lakhs (Rs. 3357.72 lakhs and
Rs. 2189.74 lakhs). The APTEL vide its APL No. 39 OF 2024 & |A No. 1809 OF 2023 dated 29.01.2024 had directed NEEPCO not to take precipitative action against
the Appellant, during the pendency of the appeal, on condition that the TSECL pays 50% of the arrears to the NEEPCD, for the Tariff Block 2019-24, in eight
monthly instalments commencing from 1st February 2024. TSECL for period ended 31.03,2024 had paid Rs. 694.01 lakh to NEEPCO and after adjustment of the
two installment paid by TSECL present claim under dispute is Rs. 4853.45 lakh. Further, the balance 50% of the arrear will be also be examined later when the
appeal is finally heard.

{f} With consideration of the above, disputed trade receivable amounting to Rs 10368.44 lakhs has been considered good and no provision has been provided in
books since there is rio significant credit risk. Further, we expect that the case would be heard and disposed off in the current calender year and the realization of
the aforesaid amount is expected within a period of 12 months from the Balance Sheet date.

10{vi) Notes on Unbilled Revenue-Debtors on account of unbilled revenue comprises of the following:

(% inlakhs )
” Asat31” | Asat31™
Particul
REE March 2024 | March 2023
Sale of Energy {Normal) 17,709.74 | 26,476.88
Sale of Energy (Shortfall of ganeration) 19,245.69 -
Sale of Energy (Trading) 4,527.68 2,400.71
Sale of Energy (Open Cycle) 34.50 -
NERLDC fees and Charges 59.01 129.98
Late Payment surcharge 62.57 47.80
Other arrear billings = 15,327.22
Total 41,639.19 | 44,382.58
Change in trade receivables
(% inlakhs )
Asat31" | asat3r”
Partic
s March 2024 | March 2023
Opening Balance 94,429.78 | 48,776.49

2 Ri i
Add‘ Net Revenue Recognised but not realised (10,765.04)|  45.653.29
during the year

Closing Balance B83,664.74 | 9442978

Trade receivables are further analysed as :

{ #inlakhs )
Allowance
di i
As at March 31,2024 asraeh | oo
risk amount risk amount
losses
Amounts not yet due 61,691.36 - 61,691.36
Mare than 45 days upto six months 6,966.97 - 6,966.97
Maore than six months 15,006.41 - 15,006.41
TOTAL | 83,664.74 = 83,664.74
{ Tin lakhs )
Allowance
G Net credit
As at March 31, 2023 Sross it | et |
risk amount risk amount
losses

Amounts not yet due 76,558.90 - 76,558.90
Maore than 45 days upto six months 6,836.72 - 6,836.72
More than six months 11,034.16 - 11,034.16
TOTAL 94,429.78 - 94,429.78

The Company cansiders its maximum exposure to credit risk with respect to customers as at March 31, 2024 to be ¥ 83,664.74 lakhs (March 31, 2022: %
94,429.78 Iakhs), which is the fair value of trade receivables after allowance for credit losses. The Company’s exposure to customers is diversified and except
TSECL (Tripura), MSPDCL (Manipur) & P&E Mizoram, no other customer cantributes to more than 10% of outstanding dues { i.e. more than 45 days) accounts
receivable as at March 31, 2024 .
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Movement in allowance for credit losses in respect of trade receivables:

Particulars
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Note no.- 11 Cash and Cash Equivalents

(X in lakhs
As at 31" March 2023

Particulars As at 31" March 2024

Balances with banks
Unrestricted Balance with banks

(i) InCurrent Account 1,460.60

(i) In Deposit Account (original matuiry
less than 3 months)

(b) Cheques, drafts gn hand
Cash in hand
Others [Refer Note 11(i) ]

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet 240.10 1,461.34

Disclosure with regard to cash gngd Bank Balances
(a) Earmarked Balances with banks
Earmarked Balance with banks

(i) InCurrent Account

(i) In Deposit Account

1,461.34

11 (i) Others consists of Postage and revenye stamps
Note no.-12 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents

(X inlakhs )
As at 31" March 2023

Particulars As at 31 March 2024

. o R D
Restricted Money [Refer Note 12(i)) 276.46
Total 276.46

Breaku oridM % in lakhs )

As at 31" March 2024 | As at 31" March 2023

DDUGVY scheme of GOl B 272.41
SAUBHAGYA scheme of GO 24,22 14,78
PM- KUSUM (MNRE- Gol) 1.19 1.20
Raof-Top Solar Scheme 3.11
CSR On-going Projects/ CSR Unspent

12(ii) Bank balances other than Cash & cash Equivalent consists of restricted maoney relating to Deen
Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yogana(DDUGJY], Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana
(SAUBHAGYA Scheme), PM- KUSUM & Roof-Top Solar Scheme.

12(iii) The cash and bank balances as above are primarily denominated and held in Indian rupees.
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Note no.- 13 Others

(X in lakhs )
% As at 31" March 2024 As at 31" March 2023
Other Receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good [Refer Note
13(ii)]
Claim Receivable (Unsecured]
Less- Provisions
Contract Assets
Less :: Provision against LPS
Net Contract Assets
Advances to staff
Security Deposits

Interest accrued on deposits and loans
Unsecured, Considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtfy|

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Other financial assets

Advances to staff
Security Deposits

1,187.43
139.04

PM KUSUM, DDUGIY & SOUBHAGYA
Receivable from PRMB tryst
Receivable from NTPC

Receivable NvVN for TDS

Receivable from B¢ WW
Receivable from S — e e 0
Receivable from Lic T e
Receivable from Gratuity Trast SRS e
Recoverable from contractor/supplier &

Othe

—m_ 430.40 -
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13(iii) There is no outstanding debts due from the Directors of the Company.

3(iv) Lloan & Advances to employees includes Interest bearing Computer Advance and Multipurpose

1
Advance. Computer advance is recovered from employees in 60
Advance is recovered in 10 to 12 installments,

equal instalments whereas Multipurpose

: As at 31st March 2024
Particulars ———
0-1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years > 3years

A B C D E t{
@) Undisputed Trade receivables - 13,599.35 |  8,689.05 | 7,083.48 1,677.38
considered good
(b) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in credit
risk |
(c) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit
Impaired
(d) Disputed Trade
Receivab!es-considered good o
(e) Disputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk
(f) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit
Impaired

Total 13,599.35 8,689.05 7,083.48 1,677.38
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13(vii)Contract Assets Ageing As at 31st March 2023
i As at 31st March 2023
Particulars

0-1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years > 3years
A B C D E
(a) lUnd:sputed Trade receivables ~’ 1% A 7,07?.63! 1,684.84[ 781 87
considered good

(b) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
which have significant increase in credit
risk

(c) Undisputed Trade Recejy.
Impaired

(d) Disputed Trade
Receivables-—considered good

“|(e) Disputed Trade Receivables — which
have significant increase in credit risk

5

ables — credit

(f) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit

Impaired
Total 11,490.98 ] 7,077.63
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Note no.- 14 Current Tax Assets/{l.iahilities}

Particulars

’ As at 31% March 2024 | As at 31" March 2023

Advance tax refundable

Advance tax paid incl uding TDS/TCS
Less : Current tax lia bilities
Current year

Adjustment for earlier years

Other Comphrehensive Income
Pertaining to regulatory deferral account balances
Current Tax Asset / (Liabilities) (Net)

14(i) Refer Note No-48 for detailed disclosure on Income Tax.

Note no.- 15 Other current assets

11,071.50

10,252.95
70.94
(1,225.25)
(192.98)
2,165.84

514.84
10,658.62

11,488.84
70.94
(885.11)
1,468.19
(969.40)

(% inlakhs )

Particulars

Prepaid Expenses including prepaid insurance

good
Less : Allowances for doubtful

Scrap /Obsolete assets [Refer Note 15(v)]
Less : Provisions

Advances to Suppliers & Contractors - Unsecured, Cansidered

As at 31" March 2024
2,068.99

458.07
17.58

As at 31% March 2023

2,256.52

1,694.03

S2 AT

13,245.48
13,245.48

12,938.69
12,938.69

15(ii) Advances to suppliers & contractors are the short term
bills. The advances are given as stipulated under the work/supp

15(iii) Advance to Directors and other related parties as on 31.0

15(iv) Assets held for disposal consists of following items

Particulars
Plant & Equipments
Vehicles
Office Equipment
Tools & Plants
Misc . Equipment
Value of Assets held for disposal
Less: Pravision
NRV for Assets held for disposal

advances to be recovered wi
ly order.

2,509.48
—_— SV I.80

2024 is NIL. (Previous year NIL)

As at 31%

3,897.78

insurance , License fee (pollution
reporting date. Prepaid expenses

thin 12 months from the

(¥ in lakhs )

March 2024 | As at 31" March 2023
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15(v) Scarp/Oboslete Assets

<IN lakns
As at 31" March 2024 | As at 317 Mareh 2023 |
Assam GBPS 440.04 510.88

Agartala GBPS 424 89 194.42
Kopili HPS 12,009.36 11,846.38
Ranganadi Hps 86.53 86.53

Kolkata
Tripura GBPS
Tuirial HPS
Rupa (S&1)
Shillong
Guwahati
Wah Umium
New Delhi

0.06
62.46 =
70.95 70.95
= 0.07
12.17 93.18
0.01 0.57
= 0.71
0.79

Doyang HPsS 139.07 134.15
13,245.48 12,938.69

Less: Provision 13,245 48 12,938.69

Note- 16 Regulatory Deferral Accounts Balances

Note- 16.01: Regulatory Deferral Accounts Debit Balance (X in lakhs )

Particulars As at 31* March 2024 As at 31" March 2023

(i) Employees benefit expenses - Gratuity

Opening Balance 5 4,793.47
Addition during the period - (4,793.47)
Closing balance = =

ii) Depreciation - Tuirial HPS

Opening Balance 22,193.30 18,079.69
Addition during the period 4,173.70 4,113.61
Closing balance 26,367.00 22,193.30
(iii) Deferred Tax adjustment against deferred tax liabilities

Opening Balance 39,930.42 29,387.52
Addition during the period 7,980.98 10,542 9p
Realized/Adjustment during the period -
Closing balance 47,911.40 39,930.42
(iv) Deferred Tax Recoverable

Opening Balance 37,171.49 38,623.96
Realized/Adjustment during the period (1,589.79) (1,452.47)
Closing balance 35,581.70 37,171.49
(v) Exchange difference

Opening Balance - 1,459.91
Addition during the period = -
Realized/Adjustment during the period - (1,459.91)
Closing balance s s

Page 45 of 106



(vi) RDA in respect of Tuirial HPS on account of Arbitral Award
Opening Balance =
4,398.98
Realized/Adjustment during the period -
Closing balance 4,398.98
(vii) RDA in respect of Kopili HPS on account of Arbitral Award
Opening Balance -
Addition during the period 470.47
Rea!ized/Adfustment during the period =
Closing balance 470.47
Regulatory deferral dccount Debit balance 1,14,729.55

Addition during the period

Note- 16.02: Regulatory Deferral Accounts Credit Balance (R in lakhs )

March 2024 | As at 31" March 2023

Particulars
MAT Credit to be passed on to beneficiaries
Opening Balance i

18,128.66

Addition during the period
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Note- 17 Equity Share Capital

(% in lakhs )
As at 31" March' 2024 As at 31% March' 2023
Equity Share Capital 3,60,981.04
3,60,981.04 3,60,981.04
Authorised & Issyed Share Capital
% in lakhs

5,00,000.00 5,00,000.00

-~

below:

As at March 31 2024
Closing Balance as on
2023-24 31.03.2024
O T ey

As at 31% March' 2024

Authorised Share Capital
5,00,00,00,000 nos. of equity shares of % 10/- each (Previous year
5,00,00,00,000 nos, of equity shares of X 10/- each)

|

No. of shares

Ordinary shares of 19 each
At beginning of the year
Shares allotted during the year

3,60,98,10,400 3,60,981.04

__ 3609810400] 360981.04
- : Closing Balance ason
Opening balance a on 01.04.2022 ove d 2022-2
| No.ofshares | T iniads e Aohares] Ciniohs | Noarshares | €imiam

3,60,98,10,400

Ordinary shares of ¥10 each
At beginning of the year
Shares allotted during the year

3,60,981.04 3,60,98,10,400 3,60,981.04

L | ieowaan

As at 31* March' 2023

No. of Shares
Held (Face
value of T 10

3,60,98,10,400 3,60,981.04

17(ii) Details of shareho!ding of Fromater/Holdfng Company

As at 31" March' 2024

No. of Shares Held
( Face value of ¥

10 each)

% change
during the

% change
during the
year

% of Total
Shares

Name of Promoter/Holding

% of Total Shares
Company

Accordingly, acquisition of entire equity stake of Government of India in NEEPCO Ltd by NTPC Ltd completed on 27™ March 2020 through
share transfer in Persuant to share purchase agreement dt. 25" March 2020 between Government of india & NTPC Ltd. NTPC Ltd holds
100% ownership interest in NEEPCO Ltd as on 31* March 2024,

17(v) During the immediareiy preceeding five years, the company has neither allgted any share persuant to cantract without payment

being received in cash, nor as honus share nor bought back any shares.
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Note 17A : Investment in Joint Venture

Name of the Joint Ventures 31.03.2024 3% March 2023 _]
KSK Dibbin Total KSK Dibbin Total

Percentage Holding 30% 30%

Equity 9311.00 9311.00

Reserve and Surplus 148232 1476.10 ‘1
Net Assets 10793.32 10787.10

Share of Equity 3238.00] 323800 3236.13 3236.13
Total Equity 3238.00 3236.13
at in stand alone financials 2793.00 2793.00 2793.00 2793.00
Difference to Transition Reserve in 445.00 445.00 443.13 443.13
Differential Entry 1.87 1.87 (1.87) (1.87)
&fer Tax Entry 0.58 (0.58)
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Note no.- 18 Other equity

(R in lakhs )
Particulars As at 31" March 2023 | As at 31° March 2023
General Reserve 1,97,691.68 1,97,691.68
Retained earnings 63,413.46 35,206.59
Bond redemption reserve 65,054.17 65,054.17
Total 3,26,159.31 2,97,952.44
18.1 General Reserve (X in lakhs )
Particulars As at 31" March 2024 | s at 317 March 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year/period 1,97,691.68

Balance at the end of the year/period 1,97,691.68

1,97,691.68
1,97,691.68

18.2 Retained Earnings

(% in lakhs )
Particulars Asat31" March 2024 | s at 31" March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year/period 35,206.59 32,547.98
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 54,813.50 39,688.79
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement
of defined benefit obligation net of income tax (1,606.63) (530.18)
Final dividend paid for the previous year - (1,500.00)
Interim dividend for the current year (25,000.00) (35,000.00)
Balance at the end of the year/period 63,413.46 35,206.59

(i) During the year, the Company has paid 35000.00 lakhs towards interim dividend for the previous
FY 2022-23 approved in the 277th BoD meeting held on 16.03.2023. The same has been paid on
13.04.2023.

(i) Interim Dividend for the current F.Y. 2023-24 amounting to X 25000.00 lakhs was approved in the
284th BaD meeting held on 09.02.2024 & the same has been paid an 08.03.2024.

Retained Earnings are the profit of the Company earned til| date net of appropriation,

(X in lakhs )
As at 31" March 2023
65,054.17

Particulars As at 31" March 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year/period 65,054.17
Movement during the year/period

Balance at the end of the year/period 65,054.17

The nature of reserves are follows:

65,054.17

(b) Bond redemption reserve:-In terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013, read
with Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, the Company should comply with the
requirements with regard to Bond/Debentyure Redemption Reserve. The adequacy of Bond/Debenture
Redemption Reserve is required to be ten percent of the value of the outstanding debentures. As on

during the year,
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Non-current liabilities
Fimgig! Hﬂbi#gieg

Note no.- 19 Long term borrowings (% in lakhs )
Particulars As at 31" March | As at 317 March
2024 2023

A. PRIVATELY PLACE PSU BONDS

1. SECURED BORROWINGS

i. Twenty second Issue

Less ; Bond expense amortisation

Add: Interest accrued but not due
Bond - Twenty second Issue ( Net)

50,000.00
26.30
1,158.36
51,132.06

Creation of charge by way of mo

il. Twenty first Issue
Less : Bond expense amortisation
Add: Interest accrued but not due

16.99

17.86
Bond - Twenty first Issue { Net) 15,000,87
iii. Twentieth issue = 30,000.00
Less : Bond expense amortisation - 12.12
Add: Interest accrued but not due - 960.41
Bond - Twentieth Issua { Net) - 30,948 29

7 years NEEPCO 9.50% Secured, Redeamable, Non-Convertibla, Taxable

2024, 29-11-2024, 29-05-2025,

(The assets attached to the earth as well as other movable assets of the

Kameng Hydro Electric Project, Arunchal Pradesh and the landed property of

the Corporation in the District of Mehsana, Gujarat have been chargad by way

of mortgage through a Trust Deed with the appointed Debenture Trustee), ’

W Nineteenth issue =Yy _‘_—_‘—\|————-——-— —— _I

Less : Bond expense amaortisation
Add: Interest accrued but not due -
Band - Nineteenth issue { Net) = =
10 vears NEEPCO 8.75% Secured, Redeemable, Nnn—CcnvertibIe, Taxable

Bonds of % 10,00,000 each, redeemable at 259 of face value on 06-09-2026;

06-02-2027;06-09-2027 & 06-03-2028 with call Option on 06-03-2023,10-08-

2023,10-02-202 4,10-08-2024, 10-02-2025, 10-08-2025, 10-02-2026,10-08-

2026, 10-02-2027,10-08-202 7,10-02-2028.

(The assets attached to the earth as well as other movable assets of the Pare

Hydro Electric Project, Arunchal Pradesh and the landed property of the

Corporation in the District of Mehsana, Gujarat have been chargeed by way of

mortgage through a Trust Deed with the appointed Dabenture Trustee).
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As at 31" March

Particulars As at 31* March
2024

2023
v. Eighteenth issue 50,000.00 50,000.00
Less : Bond expense amortisation 9.96 1523
Add: Interest accrued but not due 1,447.87 1.441.32
Bond -Eighteenth issye ( Net) 51,437.91 51,426.09

8 years NEEPCO 7.68% Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible, Taxable
Bands of 2 10,00,000 each, redeemable at 50% of face value on 15-05-2025
& 15-11-2025 with call option on 15-11-2022, 15-05-2023, 15-11-2023, 15-05-
2024, 15-11-2024,15-05-2025,

(The assets attached to the earth as well as other movable assets of the Pare
Hydro Electric Project, Arunachal Pradesh and the landed property of the
Corporation in the District of Mehsana, Gujarat have been charged by way of
mortgage through a Trust Deed with the appointed Debenture Trustee),

vi. Sixteenth Issue 90,000.00 90,000.00
Less : Bond expense amortisation 3435 40.08

Add: Interest accrued but not due 2,305.18 2,290.09
Bond -Sixteenth ( Net) 92,270.83 92,250.01

15 years NEEPCO 8.68% Secured, Redeemable, Non—Convertible, Taxable
Bonds of % 10,00,000/- each, redeemable at 20% of face value on 30-09-

(The assets attached to the earth as well as other movable assets of the
Tuirial Hydro Electric Project in Mizoram, Kopili Hydro Electric Project in
Assam and the landed property of the Corporation in the District of
Mehhsana, G ujarat have been charged by way of mortgage through a Trust
Deed with the 3 pointed Debenture Trustee),

vii. Fifteenth issue

12,000.00 24,000.00

Add: Interest accrued but not due 21.00 42.12
Bond -Fifteenth { Net) 12,021.00 24,042.12

10 years NEEPCO 9.15% Secured, Redeemable, Ncn-ConvertibJe, Taxable
Bonds of = 10,00,000/- each, redeemable at 20% of face value on 25.03.
2021; 25-03-2022; 25-03-2023; 25-03-2024 & 25-03-2025.

(The assets of the Agartala Gas Turbine Project (original open-cycle plant) in
Tripura, assets except the Gas Turbines & Steam Turbines in the Assam Gas
Based Project, Assam, assets except Plant & Machinery in the Benerating

Debenture Trustee),

viii. Fourteenth issue 50,000.00 1,00,000.00
Add: Interest accrued but not due - e B
Bond -Fourteenth ( Net) 50,000.00 1,00,000.00
10 years NEEPCO 9.50% Secured, Redesmable, Non—{:enverlible, Taxable

Bonds of % 10,00,000 each, redeemable at 20% of face value an 01-10-2020:

01-10-2021; 01-10-2022; 01-10-2023 & 01-10-2024 . |
I{The d5sets attached to the earth as well as other movable assets of the ‘

Kameng Hydro Electric Project, Arunachal Fradesh and the landad property of
the Corporation in the District of Mehsana, Gujarat have been charged by way
|of pari passu mortgage through a Trust Deed with the appointed Debenture

Trustee).
Sub-total : Privately Placed Psy Bonds (A) 2,71,882.15 3,64,799.44

Page 51 of 108



Particulars As at 31" March | As at 31" March

2024

B. QEQQREQ TERM LOANS
i Rupee Loans:
a. Medium Term Coporate Loan from Canara Bank

Add: Interest accrued but not due
Medium Term Coporate Loan from Canara Bank (Net)

Secured by pari Passu charge over assets of the Kameng Hydra Electric Power
Project (600 MW) situated at Arunachal Pradesh,

The loan is repayble in 16 structured Quarterly installment after 1 year
moratorium from first drawal on 03-02-2020.

National Bank

12,500.00 25,000.00

165.86

25,165.86

87.16
—_ 8716
12,587.16

b. Corporat Term Loan from Punj 81,600.00

Add: Interest accrued but not dye
Medium Term Coporate Loan from PNB (Net)

41,600.00

moratorium from first drawal:
12 equal instaliments of Rs. 17 crore each starting fram 30.12.2022, 8 equal
instaliments of Rs, 34 trore each starting from 30.12.2025 and 4 equal
installments of Rs.93.50 crore each starting from 30.12.2027,

c. Rupee Term Loan from State Bank of India

Add: Interest accrued but not dye
Rupee Term Loan from SB| (Net)

97,500.00

L
97,500.

moratorium from the first date of drawal: Rs 25.00 cr each at the end of the
9th to the 20th Quarter; Rs 50,00 Cr each at the end of the 21st to 28th
quarter; Rs 75.00 Cr each at the end of the 29th to 32th quarter.

d. Term Loan from HDFC Bank

[Secured by hypothecation of fixed assets of the pro
basis at Pare Hydro Power station -Arunachal Pradesh & plant & Machinery
at the Ranganadi HPs (405 MW) and Gas Turbines of the Assam Gas Based
Power Station (291 MW)).

The loan is repayable in the following quarterly installment commencing from
the moratorium period of 2 years from the first drawal (06.10.2022) Rs 15.00
Crores each at the end of the 9th to 20th quarter-Rs 25.00 crores each at the
end of the 21st to 28th Quarter: Rs 30.00 crores each at the end of 29th to
132nd quarter.

50,000.00

Add: Interest accrued but not due 356.71 206.64
Term Loan from HDEC Bank (Net) _ - A0356 71 BD,ZGE.EZH
—— 22N fram HDFC Bank (1 e e e o)

Page 52 of 106



Particulars

e. Term Loan from Axis Bank

(Secured by First Charge over the movable fixed assets {including assets
attached to the earth ) of the Tripura Gas Based Power Station situated in the
sepahijala District of Tripura. The loan is
repayable in the following quarterly instaliments commencing from the
moratorium period of 2.25 years from the date of first drawal (29.09.2023)
Rs.10,00 crore each at the end of the 9th to 18th quarter; Rs.20 crore each at
the end of the 19th to 27th quarter ; Rs.30 crore each at the end of the 28th
to 36th quarter;Rs.50 crore each at the end of the 37th to 40th guarter.

Add: Interest accrued but not due

As at 317 March
2024

As at 317 March
2023

75,000.00

75,000.00

2.UNSECURED QQRROWINQS:

1. PRIVATELY PLACED PSU BONDS

Twenty Third Issue

Less : Bond expense amortisation

Add: Interest accrued but not due

Bond - Twenty Third Issue ( Net)

8 years NEEPCO 7.14% Unsecured, Redeemable, Naon-Convertible, Taxable
Bonds of Rs.10,00,000 each, redeemable at 25% of face value on 22-09-2028;
23-03-2029; 24-09-2028; 22-03-2030 with Call Optian on 24-03-2026; 24-03-
2026, 24-03-2027; 24-09-2027; 24-03-2028; 22-09-2028; 23-03-2029; 24-09-
2029.

20,000.00
3.77
31.21

Term Loan from Axis Bank (Net) s
Sub- Total Secured Term Loans (8) 3,10,243.87 2,36,972.50
Total : Secured Borrowings (A+B) | 58212602 | 60177154

I

20,000.00
4.34
31.30

20,027 44

20,026.96

|

(i) Rupee Loan

subordinate Loans from Government of India

Less : Loan expense amortisation

Add: Interest accrued but not due

subordinate Loans from Government of India ( Net)

29,196.42
69.69

29,196.42 ‘
71.46 |

29,126.73

29,1149&\

(Govt of India has sanctioned subordionate loan of ¥ 29196.42 lakhs at the
interest trate of 1 % p.a . The loan was sanctioned on various date with last
drawal on 6th July 2015 . The loan is repayable in 15 equal annual
installments from the 16th year after commissioning of the Tuirial Hydro
Electric Project, Mizaram| i.e from 30th January 2018.

(ii) Foreign Currency Loan

Loan from KfW, Germany

Less :: Fair Value ( 80 million & 20 Million)
Add: Interest accrued but not due

Loan from KfW, Germany (Net)
(Guaranteed by tha Govt. Of India)

Loan sanctioned for construction of the Pare Hydro Electric Project (110 MW)
at Arunachal Pradesh

I( Loan of 80 millien and 20 million EURO was sanctioned from KFW , Germany
iunder the Indo-German Bilateral Development Cooperation Programme. The
§1oan agreement 80 million and 20 million EURO was executed on G5
Dacember 2008 & 20th December 2017 at fixed interest rate of 346 % p.a. &
0.85% p.a. respectively. The loan is guranteed by Govt of India. The last loan
instaliment of 80 million FURD was received on 03.03,2016 & 20 million
EURO was received on 16.08.2018. The loans are repayble in 30 equal half-
yearly installments w.e.f. 30-12-2013 & 20 equal half-yearly instaliments
w.e.f. 30-12-2020 respectively. )

33,383.29
{159.35)
212.24
33,754.88

39,729.32
{154.22)

255.96

40,139.50
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Asat 31" March | As at 31" March
2024 2023

iif) Medi m Term Loan

Loan Fram png

Add: Interest accrued but not dye
Loan from png (Net)

30,000.00

30,000.00

Unsecured Laan from PNB an 29.11.2023 for Rs. 30000 Lakhs with 3 maturity
period of 7 Years from the date of first drawal. The loan is repayable at the
end of the first, second, third, fourth, fifth year for Rs 1000 Lakhs each j.e on
29.11.2024, 29.11.2025, 29.11.2025, 29,11,2027, 29.11.2028 and Rs. 12500
Lakhs at the end of 6th & 7th Year je. on 28.11.2029 & 28.11.2030. The Rate
of Interest for the loan is 7.75% p.a. @ PNB RLLR-ELITE Scheme

Total Unsecured Borrowing (i + ii) 89,291.42
6,95,035.07
Less : Current Maturities of ( Refer Note 21)

Bands 62,000.00 62,000.00

Rupee Term Loan-Secured 29,300.00 21,800.00
Rupee Term Loan-UnSecyred 1,000.00 -

Foreign Currency Loan - Secured -
Fareign Currency Loan - unsecured 6,616.57
Interest accrued but not dye

6,571.82

Contractual maturities

In one year or less or on demand
Between ane & two years
Between two & tree yegrs

1,06,071.93
86,816.57

96,909.44
1,14,371.82

81,716.57 97,771.82
Between three & four years 1,14,616.57 76,671.82
Between four & five years 1,16,410.46 1,09571.82
More than five years 1,89,402,95 1,95,766.63
Total contractyal cash flows 6,95,035.07 6,91,063.35

Total Borrowin g5 6,95,035 07 6,91,063.36

Note:

a. The tampany has utilised its borrowed fund for the specific Purpose only as per the terms & conditions of lgan
agreement(s),

b. The Quarterly returns or statements of current assets fileg by the Company with banks ar financial institutions
are in agreement with the books of accounts.

¢. The tompany has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.

Financial Liabilities

Note no.-19 A Non current financial liabilities - Lease liabilities _ (X inlakhs )
il R -2 MIS
’ Particulars s at 31" March]
2023 |

Lease Liability - Asset under Lease
Less: Current maturities of lease Iial:nihtnc:s]|
Tota

__.__.___—-_______.
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Note no.- 20 Long Term Provisions

(% Inlakhs )

Particulars

I As at 31" March zou

Other retirement benefits —[_ 303.28
Total

As at 31" March 2023

The provision for employee benefits includes gratuity, Leave Encashment, post retirement medica| benefit, Golgd
Cain at retirement. The increase/ decrease in the carrying amount of the Provision for the current Year is mainly on
account of net impact of incremental charge for current Yearand benefits paid in the current year,

20(i). Defined Contribution Plan

defined contribution plans operated by the Company are as below:

a) Provident fund

In terms of the Guidelines of Department of Public Enterprise (DPE), Govt.of India (GOI) issued vide O.M.
nc.2(70)/08-DPE (wg) / GL-xiv/08 dt.26.11.2008 and OM. No. 2(70)/08-DPE {wc) / GL-vii/09 dt.02.04.2009, the
Company has formulated the NEEPCO Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation Benefit Scheme.

The Companies contribution to the trust managing this scheme for the year was ¥ 2389.13 lakhs (previous year ¥
2338.92 lakhs).

20(ii). Defined benefit plans

a. Post —Retirement Medical Benefit scheme

The Company has a Contributory Scheme for Post —Retirement Medical Facilities for Superannuated Employees,
Under the scheme the retired /deceased emplayee and spouse of retiree/deceased are provided medical facilities
on contributory basis which js as follows:

Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred for indoor treatment restricted to the rates of nearest authorized /
approved hospital.

Far out-patient/ domiciliary treatment taken jn empanelied hospitals, reimbursement are allowed for clinica| tests,
examination, cost of medicines and other OPD EXpenses at actual subject to a ceiling of maximum of last basic per
annum, whichever is less.. The liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuaria valuation.

b. Other retirement benefit on Supera nnuation

To nurture a good organizational culture and appreciate the sincere services rendered by the employee, the
Corporation is providing a Gold Coin to the retiring employee on the date of retirement, The liability for the same is
recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

20(iii). Other Employee benefit

Social Security Scheme

contribution to the scheme. The objective of the scheme is to provide cash benefits to the dependent beneficiaries
in the event of the death of an employee of the Company while in service including permanent total disablement
leading to cessation of employment,
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ﬂﬂ!ﬁm Disclosures a5 Per Ind As19

Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity ngblliﬂ
Summary of results;

Assets / 1ia bility

(_in Lakhs)

-—-
Net assets / (liability) recognized in
balance sheet as provision

Summary of Mmembershi

n Average Past Service (Years) m
0 luagt s
“ weighted average duration

Economic Assump tions:

i) Discuunting Rate

ii) Future salary Increase

data:

Demographic Assumption:
As at

i) Retirement Age (Years)
i) Mortality

Scale of Benefits:
-
-a-
As per the provisions of Payment of Gratuity
Act 1972 as amended,

Same as normal retirement benefit base
service upto the date of exit,

c) Benefit on normal retirement

d on

Same as normal retitement benefit based on
service upto the date of death & no vesting
conditions apply

Past Service Cost includ ing curtailment
n-

Gains or Losses on Non routine,
m_

Net Interest Cost:

31-03-2024 31-03-2023

a) Inte‘rest‘ Cost on  Defineq Benefit, 1,366.66 1378.24
Obligation

b) Interest Income on Plan Assets 1,377.99 1,305.05

) Net Interest Cogt (Income) (11.33) 73.19




-9 % 3

)

)

18468 35

beginning of the wriogd
m--
-——m

ServiceCom

Actuarial (Gain}/Loss on ansing from
Change in Demographic Assumption

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on arising from
Experience Adjustiment

Actuarial Gain/Loss on Plan Asset;
Em e '«-.'mm
Actuarial pain /(loss) for he vear on
Asset
Balance Sheet and related analysis:

Unfunded Liabulity / provision in
Balance Sheet

the  Income

hensive Income (OC1):
N

ot cunuilative unrecignized
actuarial gain /(loss) Opening

Attuarial gain (loss) for the vear on
PBO
Actuarial #ain /(loss) for the v
Asset

Unrecognized actuarial gain/ (loss) for
the year

Change in plan assets -

31-03-2024] 31-03-2023
2 Fairh wl'a!ue of pla_n assets  at  the 1862153 18.64353
beginning of the period
b) Actual retum on plan assets 1,331.13 1,459.55
) Emplover contribution - 1,045.58
dj Benefits paid (2275.69) (2527.13)
o) Fair \ra_lue of plan assets ap fhe end of 17.676.07 18,621 53
the period
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.

Major categories of plan assets (as Percentage of tolal plan assefs):

-* i e ﬁ“"-"mm
-n---
|9 Jriigh Oualty Corporae e ST e s
[ {Equity Shares of bed eomparis I e

Net defined benefip liability at the end
of the period

Present Value o

i 18,038..
ol the period i
Impdcl due o increase of (50% m
“ Impact due to devrease of (.50 % m

b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present Vilue of Obligation at the end 18,038.44
af the periad
“ Impact dite to increase of 0.50%
“ Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %
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'3 9. 9

)

SUmisa of resul

ts:
—
rmwamrowamm L e ——

Fair value of plan assets -

m-— ——
Total Monthly Sala 1y for  (Lakhs)

i

2156.15
leave encashment
:\verage Past Sepvice (Years) u

1) Discounting Rate

i} Future sala 1y Increase

Demographic Assumption:

Up to 30 Years
From 3] 1o 44 yeurs
Above 44 vears

iv) Leave

Leave Availment Rate

Leave Lapse rate while in service

Leave Lapse rate on enit

Leave encashment Rate while in sprvice

Mortality Rates inclusive of disability for specimen ages

Age Rate B Al Rate

15 0.000698 40 0011162

20 0.000924 65 0015932

25 0.000931 70 0.024058

30 0.000977 e (.03822]

35 0.001202 0 0.061985

40 0.00168 85 0.100979

15 0002579 a [ 0.163507 —,
500 0.004436 9% | 0.259706

55 0.007513 100 0.397733
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)

3 D

Scale of Benefits:

Salary for calculation of Earned Leave Last drawn qualifying salary.

s
o o S por Company Py
‘%
absence)
-“
-“
0k bt
Benetit on normal retirement

Benefit on early retirement,
withdrawal / resignation/ death

Same as normal retirement benpfit

Plan Liabili
Date Ending

or Losses
settlements
Total Service Cost

Net Interest Cast-

—‘

Inlerusl Cost on Detined Fk-nel'it
Obligation A

L0 [Net Interest Cont (o) [ |

Present value of abligation as at the
beginning of the period

Gainsy/ 1 osses
Total

Actuarial {Gain)/Loss  on
Oblipation

Present value of abligation as at the

16,392 78

31-03-2024

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on arising from
Experirnce Adjustment
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Actuarial Gain/Loss on Plan Asset:
—m"'
LY Al lnone o P IS S s
: Actuarial gain
t

/(loss) for the vedr on
Asse

Eﬂl@mi_

Net actuarial (gain) / loss revognized

in the period
Expense reg
Statement

Change in Net Defined Benefi Obligation: ]

Nei defined beneit liability at the stan mm
of the peried

As'quisil.ion adjustient _—

-m‘m

n—m‘m

-:——

Benefil paid directly by the enlerprise

Net defined benetit Liabality at the end
of the period
Bifurcation of PRO at the end of year in current and non current:

Current linbility (

ognized in the Income

Amount due within

one year)
Non-Current hability (Amount due

OVEr One year)
Total PBO at the end of year
Expected Expense for the next annuial

reporting periogd

Fre

sent Value of Obligation af fthe end
of the period

b) Impact of the change in salary increase

|

16,670.42

- Fresent Valye of Obligation at the erid _
of the periad

““
“»
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b}

Actuarial Valuation of Post Retirement Medical Benefit Liability

Summary of results:
—
-—ww
m—rm

Net assets / (liability) recognized in
balance sheet as provisi

() Onat Patient treatment
cost
(b)

In-patient treatiment cust

Economic Assumptions;

Future Medival Cost Increase

4) _Cutdoor Treatment

Demographic Assumption:
i) Reliremeny Age (Years)
ii) Mortality rates inclusive of provision Jor disability

s

b}

100% of 1ALM
(2012 - 14

Mortality & Morbidity rates:
allowance tor disability benefits
Mortality Rate

Age Manrtality Rate
45 0.00257¢9

Date Ending 032024 3103.20m)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the periad 15,690.74
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)

)

> & 3

AB204  3ig52my
L el R
Gains  or Losses on Non routine
seltlements
0 Jrow somicm RIS

—§
Obligation |

-a-m

[ 9 N | mw

Net Interest Cost (Income)
ge in Present Benefit Obligation:
o e T
Tresent value of obligation as at the 13,001 .{)2
cinmning ;

31-03-2023

’iﬁ
g

548,60
Benefits Paid

Total  Actuarial (Gain)/Loss  on
Obligation

Actuarial [Gain)/ Loss ap ansmg from
Change in Demographic Assumption

Aclhuarial (Gain)/Loss an ansing from
Change in Financial Assumption

Actuarial (Gain) /Loss on dnsing from
Experience Adjustinent

Actuarial gain /(loss) for the
Assel

LUniunded I_Jdlnltf\'_fpnn isitn in
Balan ¢ Sheet

: liability revogmeed  in
Balance Sheet

The amounts reco gnized in the income statement:

—*W

T e— T e

-a-m—m;
Statement
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) D

)

5 9

Other Com rehensive Income OCI):

Actuanial
Asset

gain /(loss) for the vear on

Actual return on Plan assots

-m

N Y — Tois s 708

— Em T —
the period

-a-§ e
8 e Gonermen souries
-—_-
“ Equity Shares of listad Comipanies —~
-a--_
[ e

Fair value of plan assets a1 the 8383.3]
beginning of the period &

!

“ Net Interest cost (Incomy)
N S
l'_'unll‘il‘uﬁull paid to the Fund m

Currenit liability (
one yvisar)

liability (Amount

OVEr One yedr)
Total PBO at the end or year

P&'esent Value of Obligation at the end

of the period
-m_
“ Impact due to decrease of 0,50 % 7

Preseni Value of Obligation at the end
of the period

Impact due to increase of .50 %
Impact due to decrease of 0.50 %
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Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

(31/03/2024)

Year Amount
a) 0tol Year 10,67,33,602
b) 1 to 2 Year 11,56,08,059
<) 210 3 Year 12,64,682,242
) 3 o4 Year 13,53,36,000
e 4105 Year 14,561,62.879
f) 5106 Year 15,93,17,539
) 6 Year onwards 77,94,33,558
AW, OIN ON RETIREM
Summary of results:
Assets / Liability 31-03-2024
a Present value of obligation 340.91
b Fair value of plan assets =
; Net assets / (liability) recognized in 340
- iR -340.91
balance sheet as provision
5 y of bership data:
As at 31-03-2024
a){Number of emplovees 1666
b) Total Menthly Salary (Lakhs) N/A
) Average Past Service (Years) 2433
d) Average Age (Years) 50.87
&y Average remaining working life 913
(Years)
Fconomic Assumptions:
31-03-2024
i) Discounting Rate 710%
i) Gold Coin Escalation rate 6.50%
Demographic Assumption:
i} Retizemrent Age (Years) 60
i) Mortality Table TALM(2012-14)
Withdrawal
iii) Apes =
Rate (%)
Up 1o 30 Years 0.01%
From 31 to 44 vears 0.03%
Above 44 vears 0.06%
Actuarial Value:
Present value of obligation as at the end of period 340.91

Bifurcation of PBO at the end of vear as per schedule 111 to the companies Act, 2%

31-03-2024
Current hability (Amount due within 17 ea
aj ERl R
ang vear)
51 Non-Current  lability  (Amount due 303.28
QVer one vear)
¢} Total PBO at the end of year 340.91
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Financial Liabilities

0.1

rurrenl !nrrowlngs

(% in lakhs )
Particulars As at 31" March [ As at 31" March
2024 2023
Current borrowings
Loan repayable on demand
From Banks - secured 52,253.97 14,542.85
From Bank - Unsecured - 7,511.51
Tatal (A) 52,253.97 22,054.36
Current maturities of non-current borrowings
Bonds - secured 62,000.00 62,000.00
Foreign currency loans - secured “ “
Foreign currency loans - unsecured 6,616.57 6,571.82
Bank loans - secured 25,300.00 21,800.00
Bank loans - Unsecured 1,000.00 -
Total (B) 98,916.57 90,371.82
G. Total (A + B) 1,51,170.54 1,12,426.18
(% in lakhs )
Notes to Current Financial borrowings - Borrowings
I. Current borrowings:
Working capital Facilties
(i) State Bank of India, Shillong
Working Capital Demand Loan ( Net) s -
Secured against hypothecation of book debts and all other inventories of
the company both present and future to the extent of drawal, The Working
Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) sanctioned b SBI, Shillong on 15.06.2023.
Th: interest is based o[n 91 dJays T-Bill plus :pread. The Iist 91 days T-Bill 20,100.00 14,500.00
plus spread as on 31.03.2024 is at the rate of 7.26% per annum. The tenor
of the facility is valid upto 12.04.2024.
Add: Interest accrued but not due 34.47 42.85
(i) Cash Credit 20134 47 14,542 .85
Secured against hypothecation of book debts and 3l other inventaries of
the company bath present and future to the extent of drawal, The Cash
Credit sanctioned by SBi, Shilleng on 15.06.2023. The interest isi_a manths 1.956.76
MCLR plus NIL margin. The & months MCLR plus NIL margin as on £
31.03.2024 is at the rate of 8.55% per annum. The tenor of the facility is
valid upto 12.04.2024, =
(i) Yes Bank - 7,500.00
Add: Interest accrued but not due - 11.51
Short Term Loan loan [ Net) e 7,511.51
Unsecured Working Capital Demand Loan (WCDL) sanctioned by YES Bank,
shillong on 28.04.2022. The WCDL sanctioned by the Yes Bank is at the
rate of 91 days T-Bill plus spread. The last 91 days T-8ill plus spread as on
31.03.2024 is 7.99% p.a. The tenor of the facilities is valid till 12.04.2024.
{iii) STL from SBI 30,000.00 =
Add: Interest accrued but not due 162.74
Short Term Loan loan { Net) 30,162.74 -
(The loan drawn from SBI on 03.02.2024 of % 30000 lakhs is unsecured in
nature with a maturity period of 1 year from the date of first drawal. Loan
is repayable on the 6th, Sth and 12th monthly anniversary of drawal faor
Rs.100.00 Crore each from the date of first drawal . The rate of interest of
the loan is 7.54% p.a. (S1-Day T-Bill + 0.50%).
Total 52,253.97 22,054.36
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Particulars As at .’.f.ﬂ March[ Asat31* March
2024 2023
II. Current maturities of non-current borrowings (% in lakhs )

par

il As at 31" March | As at 31* March
2024 2023

L. SECURED BORROWINGS

A. PRIVATELY PLACED PSU BONDS

a. Fifteenth issue 12,000.00 12,000.00
10 years NEEPCO 9.15% Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible, Taxable

Bonds of % 10,00,000/- each, redeemable at 20% of face value on 25-03-

2021; 25-03-2022; 25-03-2023: 25-03-2024 & 25-03-2025,

(The assets of the Agartala Gas Turbine Project (original open-cycie plant)

in Tripura, assets except the Gas Turbines & Steam Turbines in the Assam

Gas Based Project, Assam, assets except Plant & Machinery in the

generating station in the Ranganadi Hydro Electric Project, Arunachal

Pradesh and the landed property of the Corporation in the District of

Mehsana, Gujarat have been charged by way of mortgage through a Trust

Deed with the appointed Debenture Trustee).

b. Fourteenth issue 50,000.00 50,000.00
10 years NEEPCO 9.60% Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible, Taxable

Bonds of % 10,00,000 each, redeemable at 20% of face value on 01-10-

2020; 01-10-2021; 01-10-2022; 01-10-2023 & 01-10-2024 .

{The assets attached to the earth as well as other movable assets of the

Kameng Hydro Electric Project, Arunachal Pradesh and the landed property

of the Corparation in the District of Mehsana, Gujarat have been charged

by way of pari passu mortgage through a Trust Deed with the appointed

Debenture Trustee).
B. SECURED TERM LOANS

i. Rupee Loans:

8. Medium Term Coporate Loan from Canara Bank 12,500.00 12,500.00
Secured by pari passu charge over assets of the Kameng Hydro Electric

Power Project (600 MW) situated at Arunachal Pradesh.
The loan is repayble in 16 structured quarterly instaliment after 1 year
maratorium from first drawal on 03-02-2020.

Page 67 of 106



R As at 31° March| As at 31" March |
2024 2023

b. Corporate Term Loan from Punjab National Bank

Medium Term Coporate Loan from PNB (Net)

Secured by pari passu charge over assets of the Kameng Hydro Electric

Power Project (600 MW) situated at Arunachal Pradesh.

The loan is repayble in following quarterly installments after 2 years

maratorium from first drawal: 6,800.00 6,800.00
12 equal installments of Rs. 17 crore each starting from 30.12.2022, 8

equal installments of Rs. 34 crore each starting from 30.12.2025 and 4

lequal installments of Rs.93.50 crore each starting from 30.12.2027.

¢. Rupee Term Loan from State Bank of India

Secured by pari passu charge on the assets of the Kameng Hydro Electric

Power Project (600 MW] situated at Arunachal Pradesh with ather lenders.

The loan is repayble in followin quarterly installments after 2 vyears

moratorium from the first date ofgdrawal: H: 25.00 Cr each at the e:d of 10,000.00 2,500.00
the 9th to the 20th quarter; Rs 50.00 Cr each at the end of the 21st to 28th

quarter; Rs 75.00 Cr each at the end of the 29th to 32th quarter.

External Commercial Borrowing

[Secured by Hypothecation of all movable & immovable assets (including

plant, machinery) created / to be created in respect of Tripura Gas Based

Power Plant , Agartala and Agartala Gas Turbine Projects —Extension,

Agartala, [SBI,Singapore has sanctioned 100 million US Dollar ECB loan @

interest rate of 3 months LIBOR plus 3.05% p.a. as margin ( margin has 2
been reduced to 2.75% p.a. w.e.f 20" March 2018). The agreement was

signed on 9.12.2013. The last drawal was on 4" June 2014. The ECB loan is

repayable in 39 equal quarterly installments w.e.f. 20.06.2014]

Sub-Total 91,300.00 83,800.00

Il Unsecured Borrowings

Foreign Currency Loan

Loan from Kfw, Germany 6,616.57 6,571.82
{Gurarnteed by the Government of India)

{ Loan of 80 million and 20 million EURC was sanctioned fram KFW )

Germany under the Indo-German Bilateral Development Cooperation

Programme. The loan agreament 80 million and 20 million EURD was

executed on 11" December 2008 & 20th December 2017 at fixed interest

rate of 3.46 % p.a. & 0.85% p.a. respectively. The loan is guranteed by Govt

of India. The last |oan installment of 80 million EURQ was received on

03.03.2016 & 20 million EURO was received on 16.08.2018. The loans are

repaybie in 30 equal half-yearly installments w.e.f. 30-12-2013 & 20 equal

half-yearly installments w.e f 30-12-2020 respectively, )
(iii) Medium Term Loan 1000.00 0.00
Loan From PNB

Add: Interest accrued but not due -

Loan from PNB (Net) 1000.00 0.00
Unsecured Lean from PNB on 29.11.2023 for Rs. 30000 Lakhs with a

maturity period of 7 Years from the date of first drawal. The loan is

repayable at the end of the first, second, third, fourth, fifth year for Rs

1000 Lakhs each i.e on 29.11.2024, 29.11.2025, 29.11.2026, 29.11.2027,

29.11.2028 and Rs. 12500 Lakhs at the end of 6th & 7th Year i.e. on

28.11.2029 & 28.11.2030. The Rate of Interest for the loan is 7.75% p.a. @

PNB RLLR-ELITE Scheme.

Sub-Total 7,616.57 6,571.82
Sub total of borrowings 98,916.57 90,371.82




—— As at 31" March | As at 31" March |
2024 2023
Il Interest accrued but not due on:
Bonds 4,992.14 5,941.46
Loans from Kfw 212.24 255.96
External Commercial Borrowing - -
Medium Term Loan 443 87 372.50
Subordinate Loan : -
TCS accrued but not due on sale of goods -
Sub-total 5,648.25 6,569.92
Note no.- 21 A Current Lease Liabilities (2 in lakhs )
st El
Particulars As at 31" March | As at 31™ March
2024 2023
Lease liabilities 1,000.48 607.67
Total 1,000.48 607.67
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Note no.- 22 Trade Payables
(% inlakhs )
Particulars As at 31" March 2024 As at 31" March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
entreprises 1,242.61 424.75
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
entreprises and small enterprises s | B
Total 17,775.74 | 19,140.46

The trade payable includes payment far fuel cost for

the menth March 2024 and provisions made on contractors / suppliers for March 2024,

(X inlakhs )

Particulars As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023
Creditors for supplies and servicas 17,775.74 15,140,468
The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006” has been

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on th

Micra and Small Enterprises are as under;

e basis of information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to

(X in lakhs 1

Description

As at 31" March 2024

As at 31" March 2023

i. The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as
at the end of the year
ii. The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier
as 8t the end of the year
iii. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the
amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed date.

iv. The amount of interest due and payable for the
perind of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period)
but without adding the interest specified under this Act

v. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid,

vi. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprises, for the purpose of disallowances as a
deductible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act.

1,242.61

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL
NIL

The amount payable to MSME as on 31st March 2024 i

accordingly no interest is due on the said outstanding amount.

s not autstanding for more than 45 days from receipt of claims from the vendors &

Trade Payables ageing
Particulars As at 31" March 2024
Qutstanding for following periads from due
v date of payment
Ugb!lled Not Due Less i More Total
o il 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | than3
1 year
years
A B C D E F G |H=BTOG
(i} MSME 1,144.54 98.07 - - = - 1,242.61
(i1) Others 511932 | 9,158.23 | 1,64346| 8905 2373 | 49934 | 16,533.13
iii) Disputed dues = MSME > = - - - -
{iv) Disputed duas — Others = - - - - -
Total 6,263.86 9,256.30 | 1,643.46! 89.05 23.73 499.34 17,775.74
Particulars As at 31" March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due
" date of payment
U:t::::d Not Due Cesnith More Total
eSS tNaN | 12 Vears | 23 Years | than3
1 year
years
A B c D E [} G H=BTOG
(1) MSME 335.27 89.48 - - - 424.75
(i) Others 2,731.14 14,832.24 547.09 135.76 280.91 188.57 18,715.71
[(iil} Disputed dues — MSME - - - -
{iv]) Disputed dues = Others - = 3 -
Total 3,066.41 | 14,921.72 188.57 19,140.46
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Current Liabilities
Note no.- 23 Other Financial Liablities

(X in lakhs )
Baitieiiucs As at 31" March | As at 31" March |
2024 2023
| Interest accrued but not due on:
Bonds 4,992.14 5,941.46
Loans from Kfw 212.24 255.96
External Commercial Borrowing = =
Medium Term Loan 443.87 372.50
Subordinate Loan - -
Sub-total 5,648.25 6,569.92
Il. Other liabilities
Payable for Capital Expenditure
(i) Micro and small enterprises 122.43 287.39
(i) Other than micro and small enterprises 4,816.47 13,089.40
Payables for employees Benefits 7,902.18 7,481.11
Other Provisions 9,866.12 68.52
Interim Dividend current year - 35,000.00
Retelnnon money from Contractors, EMD, SD and other advances 14,335.55 13.426.51
received
Sub-Total 37,042.75 69,352.93
Total 42,691.00 75,922.85

The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small and M

edium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006” has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company. The disclosures relating to Micro and Small Enterprises are as under:

Description

As at 31" March
2024

As at 31" March
2023

I. The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the year
ii. The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of the
year

iii. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the
MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed date.

iv. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
period) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

v. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid.

vi. Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowances as a deductible
expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act.

122.43

The amount payable to MSME as on 31" March 2024 is not outstanding for more than 45 days from receipt of claims
from the vendors & accordingly no interest is due on the said outstanding amount.
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Note no.- 24 Other Current Liabilities (X inlakhs )

Particulars As at 31" March 2024 | As at 31% March 2023

Other Statutory Dues ::
(i) Direct & Indirect Taxes Payables 3,427.03 819.57
(ii) Other Statutory Dues ( CPF,LIP NESSS etc) 1,457.58 1,400.89
Advance from Beneficiaries 1,246.60 3,660.06

Advance from REC for Deen Dayal Upadhaya Gram Jyoti Yogana

& Pradhan Mantri Sahaj Bijli Har Ghar Yojana * $090
Free Electricity to Project Affected People 96.95 =
Total 6,228.16 6,140.42

24(i) Retention money received from Contractors & others relates to security depasit , earnest money deducted from
works/supply bill which will be settled on completion of work after defect liability period as stipulated by the terms of
contract/supply order.

24(ii) Direct & Indirect taxes includes TDS made as on 31% March 2024 & indirect tax like GST deducted from
works/supply bill of March 2024 not due and not deposited upto the reporting date.

24(iii) Other Statutory Dues Payable includes Corporation contribution to Provident fund, LIC premium deducted,
Pension contribution, employees contributian to Pravident fund and other deduction made during March not due & not
deposited upto the reporting date.

Note no.- 25 Short Term Provisions ( Tin lakhs)
Particulars As at 31* March 2024 | As at 31% March 2023
Employee benefits

Gratuity 361.48 -
Medical benefit for retired employees 2,861.23 2,477.76
Leave encashment 16,670.42 16,392.78
Other retirement benefits 37.62 10.17
Total 19,930.75 18,880.71

The provision for employee benefits includes gratuity, Leave Encashment, Post retirement medical benefit, Gold Coin at
retirement. The increase/ decrease in the carrying amount of the provision for the current year is mainly on account of
netimpact of incremental charge for current year and benefits paid in the current year.

25(i). Defined Contribution Plan

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense
recognised in relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by them at
rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the
prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period. The major defined
cantribution plans operated by the Company are as below:

a) Provident fund

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at
a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.Coampany pays fixed contribution at predetermined rates to the
Provident Fund Trust, which invests the fund in permitted securities as per Government guidelines. The Companies
contribution to the fund for the year was ¥ 3469.50 lakhs (previous year ¥ 3536.48 lakhs).The investment has earned
sufficient interest to pay the same to the member as per the rate specified by the Government of India.
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b) Superannuation fund

In terms of the Guidelines of Department of Public Enterprise (DPE), Govt.of India (GOI) issued vide O.M. no.2(70)/08-
DPE (WC) / GL-xiv/08 dt.26.11.2008 and OM. No. 2(70)/08-DPE (WC) / GL-vii/09 dt.02.04.2009, the Company has
formulated the NEEPCO Employees Defined Contribution Superannuation Benefit Scheme.

The Companies contribution to the trust managing this scheme for the year was ¥ 2389.13 lakhs (previous year ¥
2338.92 lakhs).

25(ii). Defined benefit plans
a. Retiring gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered continuous service of five years or
mare is entitled to get gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 x last drawn basic salary plus dearness allowance) for each
completed year of service subject to a maximum of Rs. 20.00 lakhs, on superannuation, resignation, termination,
disablement or on death. The liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 01.04.2013 has approved the creation of Gratuity Fund Trust vide its
Resolution N0.195/16 dt.1.4.2013 in order to meet the requirement of funds for payment of Gratuity to the employees
separated from the services of the Corporation. Accordingly NEEPCO Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Fund Trust
has been constituted on 25™ June'2013 and 3 Master Policy, named as North Eastern Electric Power Corporation Ltd

Employees Group Gratuity —cum- Life Assurance (cash accumulation) Scheme, has been taken from the Life Insurance
Corporation of India on 5th August 2013,

Transactions with LIC during FY 2023-24 for assessing fund balance as on 31.03.2024 are as per books of NEEPCO.

Details of Funded Assets with LIC %in lakhs
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Opening Balance 18,621.53 18,643.54
Transactions during the year (Net Debit) 2,275.70 1,481.56
Interest earned during the year (Net Credit) 1,331.13 1,459.55
Closing Balance 17,676.96 18,621.53

b. Post ~Retirement Medical Benefit scheme

The Company has a Contributory Scheme for Post —Retirement Medical Facilities for Superannuated Employees. Under
the scheme the retired /deceased employee and spouse of retiree/deceased are provided medical facilities on
contributory basis which is as follows:

Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred for indoor treatment restricted to the rates of nearest authorized /
approved hospital.

For out-patient/ domiciliary treatment taken in empanelled hospitals, reimbursement are allowed for clinical tests ,
examination, cost of medicines and other OPD expenses at actual subject to a ceiling of maximum of last basic per
annum, whichever is less.. The liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

c. Other retirement benefit on Superannuation

To nurture a good organizational culture and appreciate the sincere services rendered by the employee, the
Corporation is providing a Gold Cain to the retiring employee on the date of retirement. The liability for the same is
recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

25(iii). Other Employee benefit

a. Leave

The Company provides for earned leave benefits (including compensatory absences) and half pay leave to the
employees of the Company which accrue annually at 30 days and 20 days respectively. Earned leave account is
maintained in one section only i.e. en-cashable. On Superannuation/ separation of the employee from the Corporatian,
entire leave (Earned leave & Maximum 240 days Half Pay Leave) subject to a ceiling of 300 days will be en-cashable. Half
pay leave cannot be commuted. The cash equivalent payable for Half Pay Leave would be equal to leave salary as
admissible for half pay plus Dearness Allowance.The liability for the same is recognized on the basis of actuarial
valuation.
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b. Social Security Scheme

The Company has a Social Security Scheme in lieu of compassionate appointment. The Company makes a matching
contribution to the scheme. The objective of the scheme is to provide cash benefits to the dependent beneficiaries in

the event of the death of an employee of the Company while in service including permanent total disablement leading

to cessation of employment.

Note no.- 26 Other Non-Current Liabilities
(% inlakhs )
Particulars As at 31" March 2024 | As at 31° March 2023
Deferred Revenue
Deferred Revenue arising from Government Grant 21,213.71 22,802.18
Less : Adjusted during the year 1,586.70 1,592.91
Total 19,627.01 21,209.27
Note no.- 26A Deferred Revenue Current
(X in lakhs )
Particulars As at 31° March 2024 | As at 31* March 2023
a ) Deferred Revenue arising from Government Grant 1,586.70 1,592.91
Add : Addition during the year 1,586.70 1,592.91
Less : Adjusted during the year 1,586.70 1,592.91
Sub- total 1,586.70 1,592.91
b ) Deferred Foreign Currency Fluctuation liabilities 9,978.04 9,600.09
Total 11,564.74 11,193.00

Note on Government Grant (Ind AS 20)

NEEPCO's approved Accounting Policy includes policy of recognition and accounting of “Government grant” (para 14 of
note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting Policies).

Govt. of India has approved a Sub-ordinate loan amounting to X 29196.42 Lakh to NEEPCO for implementation of
Tuirial HEP with interest @1% per annum payable from the “Date of Commercial Operation” of the project. Of the
aforesaid loan amount, NEEPCO has received X 29096.42 lakh till 31.03.2015 and the balance % 100.00 lakh has been
received during the FY 2015-16. The loan amount ( ¥ 29096.42 lakh) received till 31.03.2015 has been recognized in
books of NEEPCO as on 01.04.2015 (Ind AS Transition date) at its carrying value in compliance to the Ind AS 101
(Exception to the retrospective application). However, for the loan amount { % 100.00 lakh) received during the FY 2015-
16, the benefit of the loan due to below market rate of interest (considered SBI base rate @9.70% effective as on
lun’15) amounting to X 82.64 lakh has been treated as a govt, grant and recognized in the Books of NEEPCO
accordingly.

Spares out of Grant in Aid

Total value of spares purchased out of “Grant in aid” received from the Central Govt. amounts to ¥ 3659.53 lakh and
accordingly, recognized in books of Assam Gas Based. During the current period, repairs & maintenance has been
debited and Stock of Spares under “Grant in aid” has been credited by an amount of % 2.70 lakhs (Previous year £8.91
lakhs). An equivalent amount has been recognized as income in the statement of Profit & Loss during the year.

Grant from Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region

As per the Investment Approval sanctioned vide the Ministry of Power's letter no.7/7/2009-H-1 dated 14th
January'2011, an amount of X 30000.00 lakh has been sanctioned by the Ministry of Development of North Eastern
Region (MDONER) as a part of the approved funding pattern for the Tuirial Hydro Electric Project, Mizoram. The total
amount of X 300.00 crores are included in Grant in Aid which is subjected to amortisation during normative useful life
of the project since its commissioning. Amount amortized during the FY 2023-24 amounts % 1584.00 lakhs (Previous
year X 1584.00 lakhs). An equivalent amount has been recognized as income in the statement of Profit & Loss during
the year.
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Note no.- 27 Revenue from Operations
{ % inlakhs |
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31-Mar-24|  ended 31-Mar-23
Sale of Energy 3,25,400.29 3,49,174.31
Sale of Energy through trading 85,097.19 91,844.22
Electricity Duty 412.07 2
Revenue from DSM 6,742.40 3,962.75
Revenue from RRAS/TRAS 1,088.68 1,254.35
FERV (Net) from the beneficairies 659.69 467.51
Filling Fees 127.78 71.46
NERLDC Fees & Other Charges from the bereficiaries 895.86 596.86
Sale of Reactive Energy 35.04 -
Sale of Electricity (Net) 4,20,459.00 4,47,371.46
Other operating Revenue ::
Interest from the beneficiaries 1,911.04 6,762.37
Recognition from deferred revenue - Govt. grant 1,586.70 1,592.90
Net Revenue from Operation 4,23,956.74 4,55,726.73

a. Sale of Power is accounted for based on tariff approved by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission [CERC). In case of
power stations where final tariff is yet to be approved by CERC, the sale of energy is pravided for on the basis of provisional
rate considering the Annual Fixed Cost submitted before the CERC through Tariff Petition as per the principles enunciated in
the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms & Conditions of Tariff} Regulations 2019. Far projects for which neither
CERC approved tariff is available nor petition pending with the CERC, sale of energy is accounted for an the basis of tariff as
agreed by the beneficiaries. Revenue from sale of power includes sales delivered to customers but not yet billed, commonly
referred to as "Unbilled revenue”.

b. Sale of Power includes :-

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31-Mar-24|  ended 31-Mar-23

Annua| Fixed Cost {Pending Tariff Order) 9,911.11 10,045.51

Recovery on account of shortfall of energy charges (KaHPS: Rs,3103.37

lakhs, PLHPS: Rs.1785.82 Iakhs, THPS: Rs.10207.08 lakhs and DHPS: 15,245.69 -

R5.4149.42 lakhs)

Earlier year sales arising out of finalization of tariff & Truing up orders® 2,060.92 9,940.46

Compensation for lass of capacity charge due to inadequate availability

of fuel gas ordered by the CERC in NEEPCO's Petition no. 4,622.92

225/MP/2017.

Arrear received in the current financial year on account of Open Cycle 131.04

for AGBPS & AgGBPS for Rs, 52.45 lakhs and Rs. 78.59 lakh respectively.

Rewvision of Auxilliary consumption and NAPAF for TuirialHPS. 1,048.45

Wages impact 304.70 2,935.82

Energy Saving Certificates 69.09 69.59

Additional impact of Gratuity - 6,725.64

Amount recovered/recoverable directly from beneficiaries towards

deferred tax liability pertaining to the period upto 2009 and 1,637.33 1.452.02

materialised during the year.**

Rebate allowed to the beneficiaries (805.29) 12,102.92)
38,225.96 29,066.12

* During the year ended 31.03.2024, NEEPCO recognized revenue amounting to Rs. 2060.92 lakh as "Sale of energy” and Rs.
1911.04 lakhs as “Interest from the beneficiaries” on account of truing up tariff arders for the control periods 2014-19 and
tariff orders for 2019-24 issued by the CERC in respect of Khandong HP5 (2 X 25 MW) , AgGBPS (135 MW) and Turial HFS. The
said revenue under "Sale of Energy” includes Khangdong HPS ( Rs. 413.98 lakhs) & AgGBPS (Rs. 1646.95 Lakhs). Further
"interest from benefeciaries” relates to Khangdong HPS (Rs. 134.07 Lakhs), AgGBPS (Rs. 1255.54 lakhs) & TuirialHPS (Rs.
521.41 lakhs). In addition, provisional revenue recognized in Books of NEEPCO during the year ended 31.03.2024 as per the
Company's Accounting Palicy in case of power stations where final tariff for the contral period 2019-24 is yet to be approved
by CERC amounts ta RS. 9911.11 |akhs.

** In terms of regulation. 67 of the CERC {Terms and conditions of Tariff} Regulations, 2019, deferred tax liabilities for the
period upto 31st March, 2009 whenever they materialise shall be recoverable directly by the generating companies or
transmission licensees or from the beneficiaries or long term transmission customers/DICs, as the case may be. Accordingly,
sales for the year ended 31.03.2024 includes ® 1637.33 lakhs after considering previous year amount of Rs. 47.55 lakh
{previous year * 1452.02 lakhs after adjustment of Rs. 0.45 lakh related to the FY 2021-22).

€. DSM and RRAS is accounted for the year ended 31.03.2024, as per the weekly statements issued by the NERPC.
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Note- 28 Other Income

{ % inlakhs )
For the year For the year
forduin ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23
Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly
attributable to such income)
Interest on deposit with banks 358.77 526.77
Income from execution of Deposit Works 211.80 -
Other Misc Receipts 595.42 357.58
Infirm Power 159.10
Liability/Provision written back
Others 493.32 .77
Delayed Payment Surcharge from the beneficiaries 848,88 545.68
Sub Total 2,667.39 1,437.80
Other gains and losses
Gain /(loss) on disposal of PPE 45.74 293
2,713.13 1,440.73
L!:s‘s;“:"ransfarred to Expenditure during construction Note 34 (E) & 247.04 103.96
TOTAL 2,466.09 1,336.77

28(i) Other Misc. Receipts includes transit hostel rent, recoveries from contractors,
consultancy, recoveries of rents from residential/non-residential building,
recoveries from contractor/suppliers, sale of tender paper etc.

28{ii) Liability/Provision written back - others consists of excess provisian in res

to FY 2019-20 and other provision towards repairs & maintenance works (Rs 127.51 lakhs),

EMD forfeited, income from project
interest from employees on loans, other

pect of PRP payable (Rs 365.81 lakhs) pertaining

Note no.-29 Fuel Cost
(% in lakhs )
Hartioutics For the year For the year
ﬂﬂdﬁiﬂﬂa&lﬁ___endgdjkhdﬂ-li_.

Purchase of Gas 1,24,616.69 1,44,849.84
Transportation charges for Gas 1,025.55 2,837.58
TOTAL 1,25,642.24 1,47,687.42

Note- 30 Employees Remuneration and Benefit Expenses
{ X in lakhs |

| Far the year For the year
Particniars ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23

Salary & Wages 38,994.51 42,561.99
Contribution to Provident Fund 3,469.50 3,536.48
Gratuity 723.62 1,013.86
Caontribution to NEDCSS 2,389.13 2,338.92
Leave Encashment 3,154.79 5,770.72
Staff welfare expenses 101.84 136.41
Post Retirement Medical Benefit 732.04 676.44
Total 49,565.43 56,034.82
Amount transferred to IEDC - Note 34(A) & 34 (F)(ii) 6,279.65 4,628.68
Carried forward to Statement of Profit & Loss 43,285.78 51,406.14
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30(i).Interest subsidy an House Building Advance is payable to the eligible employees subject to submission of their application
duly following the prescribed procedure & acceptance of the same by the competent authority. Accordindingly interest subsidy
are recognised in the books of accounts based on actual payment basis as allowed by the appropriate authority.

30(ii). Employees’ remuneration and benefits include the following for

the Directors including the Chairman & Managing

Director,
Current year Previous year
vy it)_za-;u 12022-2\;
Salary and allowances 140.58 88.54
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 20.71 13.11
Other benefits 27.53 3591
Total 188.82 137.56

30(ill). Staff welfare expenses includes employees Past reirement
interest subsidy on House building loan, lease accomodation etc.)

medical benefits, other service welfare benefits (gald coin,

Note- 31 Finance Costs
(% inlakhs )
3y For the year For the year
PRt ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23
A.Interest Expenses
Interest on Short Term Borrowing including CC and WCDL 2,807.56 427.69
Interest on Bonds 29,477.83 38,873.73
Interest on Long, Medium & Corporate Term Loan 23,407.05 13,854.76
Interest on Kfw Loan 949.38 1,075.22
Interest on Loans from Govt. of India 291.96 291.96
Interest on ECB Loan - 44469
Exchange Rate Fluctuation-Loss/(Gain) 9356 757.22
Interest Expense - Asset under Lease 210.01 125.94
Interest expenses - Others - 204.91
B. Finance Charges
Guarantee fee on foreign Loan net of EIR 496.15 540.81
C.Other Borrowing Costs 72,42 164.02
Total 57,805.92 56,760.95
Amount transferred to IEDC - Note 34(B) & 34(F)(iv) 4,967.87 3,093.82
Amount carried forward to Statement of Profit & Loss 52,838.05 53,667.13
Note- 32 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
{ % inlakhs )
For the year For the year
sl ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23
PPE Depreciation{ Note No- 2) 85,086.61 82,828.51
Intangible Assets { Note No-4) 717.46 845.29
Sub total 85,804.07 83,673.80
Amount transferred to IEDC - Note 34 (C ) & 34 (F) (iii) 323.43 123.64
Carried forward to Statement of Profit & Loss 85,480.64 83,550.16

Page 77 of 106



Note no.-33 Other Expenses

{ X inlakhs )
For the year For the year

senka ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23
GENERATION EXPENSES
Repairs & maintenance :
Roads & buildings 4,270.84 3,150.11
Power house 10,558.69 9,317.43
Hydraulic works 2,507.14 1,312.46
Line & sub-stations 423,51 452.99
Others 1,570.70 993.18
Stores & spares (against Grant-in-Aid) 2.70 8.91
Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction 1,460.38 1,908.23
Note No. - 34(D)

Sub Total 17,873.19 13,326.85
ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Travelling expenses 593.05 564.83
Advertisement expenses 554.19 90.48
Insurance charges 7,324.45 8,128.30
Rents 56.10 50.67
Rates & taxes 22.23 19.13
Entertainment expenses 178.40 34.74
Audit fees & expenses [Refer Note 33(i)] 23.48 18.46
Transport expenses 1,574.30 1,584.88
Hire Charges - 1.98
Printing & stationery 69.68 61.28
Postage 3.39 3.37
Medical expenses 1,690.98 1,379.43
Licence & registration 30.68 33.91
Newspaper & periodicals 0.44 1.44
Uniforms & liveries 516.54 1,018.08
Honorarium 11.96 2.26
Electricity charges 321.01 478.55
Bank charges 26.53 237.10
Social welfare 1,386.77 1,245.30
Consultancy charges 428.52 509.19
Professional Charges 137.82 96.52
Preliminary Expenses 10,955.68 :
Security arrangement 4,874.84 4,219.78
Training expenses 260.43 211.63
Staff recruitment expenses 39.04 0.27
Hospital facilities 71.52 85.10
Subscription & membership fees 44111 240.81
Communication expenses 312.56 179.85
Office furnishing 34,52 15.50
Miscellanecus expenses 555.07 986.79
I.B. expenses 372.93 376.22
Laboratory & meter testing charges 2.13 3.50
Environment & Ecology 453.93 176.44
Photographic records 1.55 0.56
Loss of Stack/Advance written off [Refer Note 33(ii)] 1.81 18.56
EDP Expenses 1,119.94 950.24
Loss on sale of fixed Assets 63.96 16.66
Employee Family Economic Rehab Scheme 454.42 422.42
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Particulars

For the year
ended 31-Mar-24

For the year
ended 31-Mar-23

Incidental Expenditure Saubhaghya
Assets Damaged/un-traceable [Refer Note 33(ii)]

395.71 179.80
Compensation 265.95 14.68
Board meeting expenses 70.92 52.83
Publicity expenses 588.42 203.12
Legal charges 910.26 522.24
Filing fees ta CERC 146.81 95.28
NERLDC Fees & Charges 1,089.21 731.07
Research & Development Expenses 2.92 59.88
Corporate Social Responsibility & SD [Refer Note 46] 764.20 508.78
RRAS/TRAS- Expenditure 4,418.31 4,303.86
Reactive Energy Charges 12.70 -
Trading Expenses 923.32 5,285.14
Energy Conservation expenses 8.66 g
Tender expenses 0.05 -
Covid 19 Expenses 13 13.46
Swachh Bharat Expenses 10.18 4.71
Interest On Late Payment 0.50 285.56
Less: Transferred to Expenditure during Construction 13,894.29 2,633.86
Sub Total 30,679.79 33,100.78
Other Expenses
Electricity Duty 197.04 416.49
DSM charges/payable 1,488.41 636.87
PM Kusum - 311.48
Arbitration Award [Refer Note 33(ji)] 6,711.84 -
Roof-Top Solar Programme . 170.71
Azadi Ka Amrit Mahotsav 7.08 86.76
Pravision for Write off- Others [Refer Note 33(ii)] - 4,852.11
Sub Total 8,404.37 6,474.42
Total 56,957.35 52,902.05
33(i) Details in respect of Audit Expenses (% inlakhs )
g For the year For the year
Rartienlars ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23
As Auditor:
Audit Fee 14.96 10.80
Limited Review 6.81 6.48
In other capacity:
Other Services (Certification fee) 1.7 1.18
Total 23.48 18.46
33{ii)Provision for (X inlakhs )
= For the year For the year
Particulars

ended 31-Mar-24

ended 31-Mar-23

Loss/Shortage of Stock/Doubtful loan & Advances 1.81 18.56
Assets Damaged/un-traceable 395.71 179.80
Arbitration Cases 6,711.84 -
Provision for Write off-Others* - 4,852.11
Total 7,109.36 5,050.47

* Provision for Write off-Others includes mainly Provision against LPS receivable from TSECL and other

provisions for asset and inventories write off.
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Note no.-34

INCIDENTAL EXPENDITURE DURING CONSTRUCTION

(% inlakhs )

Particulars

For the year
ended 31-Mar-24

For the year
ended 31-Mar-23

Salary & Wages

(A) Employees Remuneration and Benefit Expenses

2,383.00 3599.08
Contribution to Provident Fund 223.40 288.63
Gratuity 40.47 62.02
Contribution to NEDCSS 149.27 193.62
Leave Encashment 165.28 476.22
Staff welfare expenses 6.75 9.11
Sub Total 2,968.17 4,628.68
(B) Interest & Finance Charges
i. Interest Expenses
Interest on Long, Medium & Corporate Term Loan 4,227.28 3,075.67
Interest Expense - Asset under Lease 9.18 17.04
iii. Other Borrowing Costs 1.11
Sub Total 4,236.46 3,093.82
C. Depreciation- Sub Total 116.27 123.64
D. GENERATION EXPENSES
Repairs & maintenance :
Roads & buildings 318.58 285.65
Power house, other plant & Equipments 563.42 1,144.09
Others 578.38 478.49
Sub Total 1,460.38 1,908.23
E. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Travelling expenses 46.16 46.50
Insurance charges 838.58 800.57
Rents 41.81 38.05
Rates & taxes 0.11 0.17
Entertainment expenses 4.89 0.51
Transport expenses 160.84 221.29
Printing & stationery 5.01 6.42
Postage 0.06 0.27
Medical expenses 77.69 98.17
Licence & registration 067 1.67
Newspaper & periodicals 0.07 0.01
Uniforms & liveries 27.08 72.04
Electricity & Water charges 259.43 165.23
Bank charges 0.38 4.87
Social welfare 7.61 1.00
Consultancy charges = 92.64
Professional Charges 99.92
Preliminary Expenses 10,949.26
Security arrangement 447.00 665.84
Training expenses 10.05 17.00
Hospital facilities 4.06 7.58
Communication expenses 20.29 13.00
Office furnishing 0.08 2.04
Miscellaneocus expenses 41.53 347.95
I.B. expenses 4,58 11.50
Environment & Ecology 284.39
EDP Expenses 10.00 19.44
Covid 19 Expenses - 0.10
Sub Total 13,341.55 2,633.86
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F. Corporate Office/Regional Office Expenses
i. Other Income (1.88) 3
ii. Employee Benefits Expenses 3,311.48
iii. Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 207.16 :
iv. Interest & Finance Expenses 731.41 -
v. Other Expenses 552.74 T
Sub Total 4,800.91 -
Grand Total 26,923.74 12,388.23
G. Less: Non-operating receipts
Interest from advances - 0.13
Transit hostel recoveries 0.18 -
Recovery of Rent 14.30 1.78
Miscelleneous Income* 71.58 102.05
Infirm Power 159.10 -
Sub Total 245.16 103.96
Net Total 26,678.58 12,284.27

*Miscelleneous income includes recoveries from contractor, sale of tender paper,amartisation of Computer

advance & furniture advance etc.
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Note no.- 35 EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following table reflects the income and shares data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share computations.
(X inlakhs )
Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31-Mar-24 | ended 31-Mar-23
(a) |Profit after tax & before regulatory Deferral Accounts (% in lakhs ) 57,314.84 34,206.32
(b)|Profit after tax & after regulatory Deferral Accounts (X inlakhs ) 54,813.50 39,688.79
Less: Amount to be paid for diluted portion (net of tax)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - for Basic EPS 54,813.50 39,688.79
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders - for Diluted EPS 54,813.50 39,688.79
(c) | Weighted average no. of Ordinary Shares for Basic EPS 3609810400 3609810400
Weighted average no. of Ordinary Shares for Diluted - EPS 3609810400 3608810400
(d){Nominal value of Ordinary Shares (%) 10.00 10.00
(e)| Earnings per equity share before regulatory Deferral Accounts ¢
(i) Basic (in %) ( Not Annualised) 1.59 0.95
(ii) Diluted (in %) 1.59 0.95
(f) | Earnings per equity share after regulatory Deferral Accounts -
(i) Basic (in X ) { Not Annualised) 1.52 1.10
(ii) Diluted (in %) 1.52 110
Note no.-36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
(% in lakhs )
Particulars oL
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Contingent liabilities :
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt in respect of:
- Pending litigation against Capital Works 2,86,685.70 2,75,242.36
- land compensation cases 638.00 2,365.00
- Disputed Income tax demand 1,992.06 27,614.24
- Others # [Refer Note 36(i)] 23,295.00 19,239.00
Total 3,12,610.76 3,24,460.60
Commitments :
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital contracts and = =
not provided for (net of advances and deposits)
Property , Plant & Equipment 11,708.02 37,718.70

36(i) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts as on 21st March 2024 includes demand from the Income tax
authorities for payment of tax upon completion of their tax assessment for the A.Y. 2020-21 amounting to X 1992.06 lakh.
#Others as on 31.03.2024 consists of various cases pending due to court procedure related to gratuity amounting to Rs 32.00
lakhs, EPF amounting to Rs 64.00 lakhs, Money Suits totalling Rs. 665.00 lakhs and writ petition challenging termination notice
passed by the Commissioner / Secretary (Power) Government of Arunachal Pradesh of New Meling HEP and Sew Nafra Power
Corporation Ltd. against contracts awarded and realiaziation of a balance from NEEPCO against the completion of the rural
electrification in two districts of the State of Tripura amounting to Rs 22534.00 lakhs.

36(ii) There are few cases pending before the Arbitration Tribunal / Courts, for which amount of claims are yet to be
acsertained.

36(iii) The company is contesting the demand and the management including its tax advisors believes that its position will likely
be upheld in the appellate process.The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

36(iv) The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The
Company’s management does not reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will
have a material and adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or financial condition.

36(v]The pending litigation against capital work for Tuirial HPS Vs D.A Khuma for Rs 195.34 lakhs for which the lower court has
passed order dated 31.03.2024 in favour of contractor. The Corporation s in the process of ascertaining the merit of the case.
However, the contractor has sought for settlement of the case under "Vivaad Se Vishwas Scheme - I1". Matter is under
examination at Project site.
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Note no. 37 Movement in Regulatory Deferral Accounts Balances

Nature of Rate Regulated Activities

The company is primarily engaged in the business of generation and sale of electricity. The tariff based on which the Company bill to
its beneficiaries for electricity sold to them is determined by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) in compliance to
the CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, as applicable from time to time.

The said regulations allow the Company to recover its costs for providing the goods or services plus a fair return.

Recognition and measurement

= During determination of Annual Fixed Cost (AFC) of the Tuirial Hydro Electric Project (TrHEP) of North Eastern Electric Power
Corporation Ltd (NEEPCO) for the control period of 2013-2024 by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC), order for
which issued on 16.04.2021, the Hon'ble Commission has allowed depreciation @2% based on the petition submitted by NEEPCO
for the said purposes in line with the decision of the Public Investment Board (PIB) of the Govt. of India during meeting dated
04.06.2010 held for considering RCE of the project {TrHEP).

* The rates and methodology as per the CERC tariff regulations based on which depreciation for TrHEP has been calculated and
charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss of NEEPCO for the period under consideration vary from that allowed to recover through
tariff as per the CERC order. Due to higher rate of depreciation as per the CERC regulations, depreciation charged to the Statement of
Profit & loss Account for the first 12 (twelve) years of operation TrHEP since its Date of Commercial Operation (COD) will be more
than that of the depreciation recoverable through tariff, which will be reversed in future periods during remaining period of
normative life of the generating station. Accordingly, the lower depreciation realized as “Revenue” for the generating station during
the earlier period of its operation will be recovered/adjusted during later period.

* In view of above, the difference of depreciation to the extent recoverable/adjustable in future period has been recognized on an

undiscounted basis as “Regulatory deferral account debit/credit balances” by credit/debit to the “Movement of Regulatory Deferral
Account Balances”.

* “Regulatory deferral account debit balances” recognized on account of the above during the year ended 31.03.2024 is as follows:

Particulars Amount (% in lakhs)

Depreciation as per CERC Schedule of rates 6,987.08

Depreciation @2% as allowed by CERC vide the tariff order dated 09.10.2018 2,813.38
Difference (Recognized as "Regulatory Deferral balances") 4,173.70

Regulatory Deferral Account balances in respect of Employees benefits expenses for Gratuity:
Ministry of Labour and Employment vide their Gazette notification dated the 29th March 2018 has notified the Payment of Gratuity
(Amendment) Act, 2018 (12 of 2018) and thus has increased the limit of gratuity upto X 20.00 (Twenty) lakh from the existing % 10
(Ten) lakh.
Regulation 8 (3) of the CERC (Terms and conditions of Tariff) Regulations 2014 provides that “The Commission shall carry out truing
up of tariff of generating station based on the performance of fallowing Uncontrollable Parameters:

i) Force Majeure;, i) Change in Law; and iii} Primary Fuel Cost
The increase in gratuity expenses due to enhancement of limit upto 20.00 lakh as per the Payment of Gratuity [Amendment) Act,
2018 falls under the category of “Change in law”
Accordingly, an amount of X 4793.47 lakh to the extent expected as recoverable from the beneficiaries in subsequent period as per
CERC Tariff Regulations recognized as “Regulatory Deferral Account Balances” in books of NEEPCO (the Company) as on 31.03.2018.
The Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) vide order dated 23.01.2023 in NEEPCO's petition no. 718/MP/2020 has
allowed reimbursement of the impact of the aforesaid enhancement of gratuity limit as “Additional O&M expenses” far the control
period 2014-19. Accordingly, the amount allowed by the Hon'ble Commission has been recognized under "Revenue from
operation” with reversal of X4793.47 lakh lying under “Regulatory Deferral Account balances” during the FY 2022-23 in respect of
Employees benefits expenses for Gratuity.
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Regulatory Deferral Accounts Balances in respect of deferred adjustment on Deferred Tax Liabilities for projects under operation:

NEEPCO has long term Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with the States of the North Eastern Region (referred to as the
‘Beneficiaries’) for selling electricity generated from its generating stations in operations. Tariff for generating stations of NEEPCO are
determined by the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) in compliance to their notified tariff regulations issued from
time to time. As per the CERC Tariff Regulations 2019, ROE is grossed up with effective tax rate as applicable for the respective
financial year. Accordingly, deferred tax accrued during the year on income generated from sale of electricity and further
adjustable/reversal in future periods when the related deferred tax liability will form a part of current tax & recoverable from the
beneficiaries has been accounted as “Deferred tax adjustment against deferred tax liability”, which has been recognized as

“Regulatory income” and presented as a movement in “Regulatory Deferral Accounts Balance” as a separate line item in compliance
to the relevant provisions of Ind AS 114.

Regulatory Deferral Account balances due to reclassification of deferred tax recaverable from beneficiaries

As per Regulation 67 of the CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tariff Regulations) 2019, Deferred tax liabilities for the period upto 31st
March, 2009 whenever they materialise shall be recoverable directly by the generating companies or transmission licensees from the
then beneficiaries or long term customers, as the case may be. Till 31" March, 2019 the deferred tax recoverable from beneficiaries
in future years was presented as an adjustment to deferred tax liability and was not recognised as “Regulatory Deferral Accounts
balances”. The same has been reviewed during the FY 2023-24 in line with Ind AS 114 and has been reclassified as Regulatory

Deferral Account balance. The regulated assets (+)/liability (-) recognized in the books to be recovered from or payable to
beneficiaries in future periods are as follows:

(% _Inlakh)
Sl. No. Particulars Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
A, Opening balance as on 01.04.2023 37,171.49
B. Addition during the Financial Year ended 31.03.2024 (assets (+)/ liability (-) =
C. Amount collected (-)/refunded (+) during the period (1,589.79)
D. Regulatory income/(expense) recogniz?}i in the Statement of Profit and Lass (B (1,589.79)
E. Closing balance as on 31.03.2024 (A+D) 35,581.70

Regulatory Deferral Account balances in respect of exchange differences on Foreign Currency Monetary items

Para 28 of the Ind AS 21-“The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” provides that exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or an translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial
recognition during the period or in previous financial statements shall be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Further, para D13 AA of the Ind AS 101 - “First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards” provides for a first-time adopter may
cantinue the policy adopted for accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency monetary
items recognised in the financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial
reporting period as per the previous GAAP. Accordingly, for periods beginning on or after 01.04.2016, all exchange differences
arising on translation/ settlement of monetary items other than exchange difference on borrowings to the extent treated as an
adjustment to interest cost during canstruction period are to be charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Regulation 69 of of the
CERC (Terms and Conditions of Tarift) regulations provides that every generating company and the transmission licensee shall
recover the foreign exchange rate variation on year-to-year basis as income or expense in the period in which it arises.

Regulatory Deferral Account balances in respect of MAT Credit to be passed on to beneficiaries:

During the year, the Company recognised MAT Credit entitlement for the period commencing from 1 April 2018 amounting to Rs
24525.30 lakhs (Previous year Nil). Utilisation of MAT Credit will result in lower effective tax rate in future years.

Accordingly, ‘Regulatory deferral account balance’ of Rs 19143.61 lakhs (Previous Year Nil) corresponding to the said MAT Credit
entitlement has also been recognised pertaining to the beneficiaries.
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Regulatory Deferral Account balances in respect of Tuirial HPS-Arbitral Award:

During the course of the execution of the construction activities, it was during 2004, a bandh and road blockade were called by the
Tuirial Compensation Claimant Association, leading to the suspension of civil works at the project site. The Ministry of Power (MaP)
initially instructed the NEEPCO to only proceed with preparatory work, following which, it was clarified, pursuant to directions
obtained from the Ministry of Power that civil works in respect of the project stood suspended indefinitely on and from 09.06.2004.
Although the construction activities were kept on hold during the aforesaid period, but the all the administrative activities were in
vogue in the Project. However, technical and administrative work at the project continued. The construction work at the project
resumed from 14.01.2011 on the CCEA clearance for the project as intimated by the Ministry of Power dated 14.11.2011 and the
project was commissioned in the FY 2017-18.

Due to the suspension of the work at the Plant, the contractor filed cases under Arbitration.

In terms of Arbitral award dated 21-08-201g (Lot-1/11/111) & 14-10-2016 (2- Roads) and subsequent orders from the Honorable High
Court dated 30-05-2023 & the Honorable Supreme Court favoring the contracter, a provision was created in the books of account as
of 31.03.2024.

CERC Tariff Regulations allow the inclusion of such costs for the fixation of tariff if the cessation of construction activities was beyond
the control of the Project Developer. Accordingly, and in line with the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities and Ind AS 114,
the aforementioned expenditure has further been recognized as Regulatory Deferral Account {Debit) balances.

The amount charged to the statement of Profit & Loss in the boaks of accounts as per ind AS 16 is recognized as Regulatory Deferral
Account balances under Ind AS 114 in respect of the arbitral award of Tuirial Hydro Power Station. The amount capitalized in the
books of accounts will be amortized/liguidated in proportion to depreciation following the rates and methodology notified under
CERC Tariff Regulations over the life of the Project, i.e., 40 years. The interest part of the Arbitral award charged to the Statement of
Profit & Loss Accounts will be recovered from the beneficiaries in line with Clause No. 91 of Tariff Regulations for the period 2024-29
notified by CERC.

Accordingly, Management considers that adverse changes in Tariff Regulations are not likely to be a significant area of risk for the
future recovery of RDA balances recognized in respect of Tuirial Hydro Power Station.

Regulatory Deferral Account balances in respect of Kopili HPS-Arbitral Award:

The contract for construction of Khandong Dam an Kopili River and Umrong Dam on Umrong Stream for Kopili Hydro Electric Project
was awarded in the FY 1977-78

During execution of works, disputes arose with the contractor for Extra/Additional expenses due to carriage of sand from longer
distance and establishment of new quarry. The matter was referred to Arbitration for the settlement of the aforesaid claim.
Meanwhile, the contractor raised its claims through Vivad se Vishwas -l Scheme (VSV-Il). The said proposal was accepted and
settlement agreement was signed and the claimed was paid to the contractor in the current financial year.

CERC Tariff Regulations allow the inclusion of such costs for fixation of tariff for the activities was beyond the contral of the Project
Developer. Accordingly, and in line with the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities and Ind AS 114, the aforementioned
expenditure has further been recognized as Regulatory Deferral Account (Debit) balances.

The amount charged to the statement of Profit & Loss in the books of accounts as per Ind AS 16 is recognized as Regulatory Deferral
Account balances under Ind AS 114 in respect of the arbitral award settlad through Vivad se Vishwas -1l Scheme {VSv-11).

The amount capitalized in the books of accounts will be amortized/liquidated in proportion to depreciation following the rates and
methadology notified under CERC Tariff Regulations over the life of the Project. The interest part of the Arbitral award charged to
the Statement of Profit & Loss Accounts will be recovered from the beneficiaries in line with Clause No. 91 of Tariff Regulations for
the period 2024-29 notified by CERC.

Accordingly, Management considers that adverse changes in Tariff Regulations are not likely to be a significant area of risk for the
future recovery of RDA balances recognized in respect of Kopili Hydro Power Station.
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Regulatory deferral accounts balances - recognized (Refer Note 16):

The regulatory assets recognized in the books to be recovered/payable from/to the beneficiaries in future periods are as follows:

(X in lakhs )
Fetliin Asat31" March | Asat31® March
2024 2023
A. Opening Balance 99,295.21 92,344.55
B. Movements during the year due to
(i) Turial Depreciation 4,173.70 4,113.61
(ii) Deferred Tax Adjustment against Deferred Tax Liability 7,980.98 10,542.90
(iii) Deferred Tax Recoverable (1,589.79) (1,452.47)
{iv) Tuirial HPS-Arbitral Award 4,398.98 -
(v) Kopili HPS-Arbitral Award 470.47 -
{vi) MAT Credit to be passed on to beneficiaries (18,128.66)
(vii) Employee Benefit-Gratuity - (4,793.47)
(viii) Exchange Difference - (1,459.91)
Total movement during the year (2,694.32) 6,950.66
C. Amount Collected / refunded during the year -
E} Regulatory Deferral Account Balances recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss (B- (2,694.32) 6,950.66
E. Closing Balance (A+D) 96,600.89 99,295.21
F. Net movements in regulatory deferral account balances (1) (2,694.32) 6,950.66
G. Tax on net mavements in regulatory deferral account balances (1) (192.98) 1,468.19
H. Total amount recognised in the statement of profit & loss during the year (1-11} (2,501.34) 5,482.47

Rate of return/Discounting rate considered for recognition of Regulatory Deferral Account Balance is “Zero” Risk/uncertainty

associated with future recovery of Regulatory Deferral Account Balances

* Demand risk: Recovery of regulatory deferral balances are subjected to billing to its beneficiaries and accordingly assaciated with
related normal risks, such as, attitude of the customers towards settlement of their dues, availability of alternate source of supply

etc.

* Regulatory risk: On account of Changes, if any, in Regulations and submission or approval of a rate setting application or the

entity's assessment on the expected future regulatory actions.
Period over which expected to recover

* Others: The Company is expected to recover/adjust the carrying amount of the regulatary deferral account balances over the

period of normative useful life of the projects/generating stations.
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Note no.- 38: Related party disclosures
The required information with respect to Related Party Disclosure as per Ind AS-24 is given as under;

(a) LIST OF RELATED PARTIES

A. HOLDING COMPANY : NTPC Ltd.
Government of India held 100% ownership interest in NEEPCO Ltd till 26" March 2020. However, acquisition of

entire equity stake of Government of India in NEEPCO Ltd by NTPC Ltd completed on 27" March 2020 through

share transfer in persuant to share purchase agreement dt. 25" March 2020 between Government of india & NTPC

Ltd. NTPC Ltd holds 100% ownership interest in NEEPCO Ltd including & as on 31st March 2024

B. Joint Ventures ;

KSK Dibbin Hydro Power Private Limited, 8-2-293/82/A/431/A, Road No.22, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad — 500 033,
India. NEEPCO Ltd.holds 30% of share in this Joint Venture.

C. Names of the Companies /bodies corporate which are subsidiaries / Joint Ventures of the Holding Company

1. NTPC Mining Limited

2. NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited

3. NTPC EDMC Waste Solutions Private Ltd.
4. Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited

5. Patratu Vidyut Utpadan Nigam Limited
6. Meja Urja Nigam Private Limited

7. NTPC Electric Supply Company Ltd.

8. THDC India Limited

9. Energy Efficiency service Ltd.

10. Hindustan Urvarak & Rasayan Limited
11. Ihabua Power Ltd.

12. Ratna giri Gas & Power Private Ltd.

13. TUSCO Limited

14, Utility Powertech Ltd

15. NTPC-GE Power Services Private Ltd.
16. NTPC-SAIL Power Company Ltd.

17. NTPC Tamil Nadu Energy Company Ltd
18. Aravali Power Company Private Ltd.

19. NTPC BHEL Power Projects Private Ltd.
20. Transformers and Electricals Kerala Ltd.
21. National High Power Test Laboratory Private Ltd.
22, CIL NTPC Urja Private Ltd.

23. Anushakti Vidhyut Nigam Ltd.

24, Trincomalee Power Company Ltd

25. Bangladesh-India Friendship Power Company Private Ltd

D. COMPANIES IN WHICH DIRECTORS ARE DIRECTORS
1. NHPC Limited

2. North East India Ayush Consortium Ltd.

3. Loktak Downstream Hydro-electric Corporation Ltd.
4. NHDC Limited

5. NTPC Renewable Energy Ltd.

6. TREDCO Rajasthan Limited

7. TUSCO Limited
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E. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF NEEPCO
(i) Whole time Directors :

1 Shri R.K.Vishnoi

2. Shri Gurdeep Singh
3. Shri B. Maharana

4. Shri Ranendra Sarma
5. Shri Dilip Kumar Patel

Director (Technical) w.e.f, 18.04.2023

to 24.09.2023
6. Major General Rajesh Kumar Jha, Director (Personnel) w.e.f. 25.09.2023
VSM (Retired)

Holding additional charge of CMD w.e.f. 02.06.2022 to 31.05.2023 and
Director (Technical) 02.06.2022 to 17.04.2023

Holding additional charge of CMD w.e.f. 01.06.2023
Director (Finance) cum Chief Finance Officer.

Director (Personnel) w.e.f. 18.07.2023 to 31.07.2023 and w.e.f. 14.09.2023

(ii). Independent Directors :

1. Dr Viveka Nand Paswan
2. Shri Bimal Chand Oswal

Independent Director
Independent Director

(iii). Nominee Directors

1. Shri Ujjwal Kanti Bhattacharya
2. Shri Jai Kumar Srinivasan

3. Shambhu Nath Tripathi

4. Shri lithesh John

5. Piyush Singh

Nominee Director, NTPC Ltd.

Nominee Director, NTPC Ltd. upto 30.11.2023

Nominee Director, NTPC Ltd. w.e.f. 15.12.2023
Nominee Director of Govt. of India upto 30.11.2023
Nominee Director of Govt. of India w.e.f. 20.02.2024

(iv) Company Secretary

[Shri Abinoam Panu Rong ICompany Secretary
b) Transaction with related parties
(% in lakhs )
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Sales and purchase of goods and services
Sale of goods to associates - =
Purchase of raw materials : 2
Sale of Energy through trading :: NVVN 86,619.72 91,844.22
Sale of Energy through trading :: PTC .
86,619.72 91,844.22
Other transactions
Paid/Payable to NTPC Ltd towards dividend
(A) Final Dividend for F.Y. 2021-22 - 1,500.00
(B) Interim Dividend for F.Y. 2022-23 35,000.00
(B) Interim Dividend for F.Y. 2023-24 25,000.00 =
NVVN Ltd for trading expenses - Prafessional fee 75.65 133.68
PTC Ltd for trading expenses - Professional fee - S
NTPC Ltd 56.46 5.19
Energy Efficiency Service Ltd for hire charge E-Vehicle 8.01 7.88
NEEPCO Employees' Provident Fund Trust 9,707.39 9,412.55
NEEPCO Ltd. Employees' Defined Contribution Superannuation Scheme Trust 3,724.08 3,742.62
NEEPCO Employees' Post Retirement Medical Benefit Trust 2,477.76 2,477.76
NEEPCO Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Fund Trust - 892.41
NEEPCO Employees’ Social Security Scheme Trust 41,71 4431
Loan and Advances in the nature of loans to Subsidiaries/JV - -
Companies/Firms & Cos. In which Directors are interested
Total 41,091.06 53,216.40
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¢) Compensation for Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) (% inlakhs )
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Salary and allowances 163.21 109.71
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 24.00 15.24
Other benefits 31.07 38.41
Sitting fees 16.99 16.11
Total 235.27 179.47
d) Outstanding balances with related parties
(X inlakhs )
(i) Amount recoverable from 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NEEPCO Employees' Provident Fund Trust - -
NEEPCO Ltd. Employees' Defined Contribution Superannuation Scheme Trust - -
NEEPCO Employees' Post Retirement Medical Benefit Trust 174.71 246.17
NEEPCO Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Fund Trust - 153.17
NEEPCO Employees' Social Security Scheme Trust - -
NTPC Ltd for reimbursement of expenses 554 11.03
NVVN Ltd for TDS 0.33 2.05
Receivable from NVVN 4,527.68 2,401.46
(% inlakhs )
(i) Amount payable to 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
NEEPCO Employees' Provident Fund Trust 875.14 780.88
NEEPCO Ltd. Employees' Defined Contribution Superannuation Scheme Trust 305.12 305.79
NEEPCO Employees' Post Retirement Medical Benefit Trust 2,861.23 2,477.76
NEEPCO Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Fund Trust 361.48 -
NEEPCO Employees' Social Security Scheme Trust 339 3.55
NTPC Ltd - Interim Dividend for the FY 2022-23 = 35,000.00
Energy Efficiency Service Ltd for hire charge E-Vehicle 1.38 0.59
NTPC Ltd 43.76 -

Name and nature of relationship with Government

Other Entities with joint control or significant influence over the Company under the same Government:

Name of the Company

Nature of Relationship

Government of India

Shareholder in Holding Company having control over Company

NTPC Limited

Holding Company (100%)

Transaction with the related parties which are under the control of the same Government which has control

over the halding Company (NTPC Ltd).

(% in lakhs )

Name of the Company Nature of Transaction by the 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Company

Oil India Limited Purchase of Gas 80829.20 83051.09
BHEL Supply of Spares 5298.93 4860.20
IOC LTD Purchase of Gas / HSD /Lubricant 189.01 2168.19
ONGC Purchase of Gas 15862.41 16707.66
GAIL (India) Ltd Purchase of Gas 28165.56 42187.31
TOTAL 130345.11 148974.45

(X inlakhs )
Significant transaction with Government that has control over the holding 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Guarantee Fee on Foreign Loan to Government of India (GOI) 491.03 528.35
Interest on Subordinate Loan paid by the Company to GOI 291.96 291.96

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with the related parties are made on normal commercial terms and canditions and at arm length

price
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Note No. 39  Additional disclosures

A. The company has used the borrowings from bank and other financial instituation for the specific purpose for which it was taken as on the
reporting date,

B. Relationship with Struck off Companies: No transaction & outstanding balances with struck-off companies during the current Financial Year &
previous Financial Year,

L= in fakhs )
SLna Name of struck off Compan Nature of transactions | Balance outstanding o s . \ Relationship with the struck off
pany with struck-off Company | as at 31 March 1024 03 :;::::‘2;;: company

ML

C. (i) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial nstitutions are in agreement with the bogks
of accounts.

(ii) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lenders.

D. The company has not granted any loans or advances to promaters, directors, KMP's and the related parties that are repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms aor period of repayment

E. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami praperty under the Benami Transactions
[Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

F. The company has no cases of any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyend the statutory time limits.

G. The provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable to
the company as it is a Government Company as per Section 2{45) of the Companies Act, 2013,

H. The company doesnot hold any Invetsment Property in its books of accounts, so fair valuation of investment property is not applicable,

I During the year the company has not revalued any of its Property,plant and equipment.

1. During the year, the company has not revalued any of its Intangible assets.

K. The company has not provided nor taken any loan or advance to/from any other person or entity with the understanding that benefit of the
transaction will go to a third party, the ultimate beneficiary.

L. No scheme or arrangement have been approved by the competent authority in terms of section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act' 2013

M. Undisclosed income: The company has not surrendered or disclosed as inceme or any transaction during the year in the tax assessment under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, No search or survey under the Income Tax Act’ 1961 has taken place during the year. Further, the company does not have
any previously unrecorded income & related assets (Previous year NIL),

N. Crypto or Virtual Currency: The company has not traded or invested in Crypto or virtual currency during the current Financial Year (Previous Year
NiL)
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O. Disclosure of Ratios

Ratio

Numerator

Ason 31.03.2024

As on 31.03.2023

* Variance | Reason for Variance

Current ratio

Current Assets

Current Liabilities

0.554

Far the current F v,
Current assets is
lower while Current
liabilities are higher

in comparison to

{3.29)

Rebt-equity ratio

Paid-up debt capital (Long term
barrowings+Shart term horrowings)

Sharehalder's Equity {Total
Exuity)

1.088

1.082

DI‘EI!““ EY

Inthe eurrent Y.,
the tatal debis
increased cempared
to the previous year,
while the total

0.49| equity increased
over ta previous
pericd , which has
resulted increass in
ratio over the
previous F.Y.

Debt service
coverage ratio

Profit for the year+Finance costs+
Depreciation and amortiation
expenses:Exceptional items

Finance Costs + lease
payments+Scheduled
principal repayments af
leng term borrowings

1.142

Due to decrease in
debt services over
previous F.Y the
ratio has improved

033

Return on equity
ratic

Profit for the year

Average Shareholder's
Equity

008

oos

Oue ta incraase in

the Profit over the

previous year, the
ratio is better

33717

Inventory turnover
ratio

Revenue fram operations

Average inventory

13495

33.01

[iue to decrease in
the sverage
487 | inventory aver the
previous year, the
ratio has improved

Trade receivables
nirmpaver ratio

Revenue from operations

Average trade receivables

475

636

Due tu decrease in
average debtors for
(25.20]| the current period
the ratio ison the

lower sicde

Trade payables
turnover ratia

Total Purchases (Fusl Cost + Cther
Expenses+Closing Inventory-Opening
Inventary)

Closing Trade Payables

889

14.40

Due to decraase in
the Net Credit

purchase the ratia is

on the lower side

(31.31)

Net capital
Turnover ratio

Revenue from operations

Working Capitalscurrent
maturities of long term
borrowings

3.65

4.16

Due to increase in

working capital over

previous year, the

{14.43) | ratio appeared to be

an the lower side

over the previgus
EY

Net prafit ratio

Profit for the year

Revenue from operations

013

0,09

Due to increase in
the FAT cver the
4845 | previous year, the
ratia s batter in
CULERTEY

Return on capital
employed

Earning before interest and taxes

Capital Emphoyedi{i}

0,07

o059

The decrease of
EBIT and incredse in
Capital employed
over the previous
perind resilted in
the decrease of ratio

[15 88)

Returrion
inestmant{s}
Ifwestments in
subsidiary and

JEint venture
|——Lompanies

{MAVITT) = MVITE] — Sum [clril

{MVITO) + Sum Wit *
=42}

The investment for
the NEEFTO is NIL
for both the £ ¥ s

Return an
imvestraent|i}-
Investments in

othiers

{MY(T1) ~ MVITO) = Sum [Clea)])

MVITE) + Sum [Wit) *
chaj

The investment
feither in the STDRs
ar othar
Investments) for the
NEEPCQ is NIL for
theF¥s

** Denominator is Negative
{1} Capital Employed= Tangible Net Worth » Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liabilities
{iiiReturn on Investment whers

T1=Endof time period
%

t = Specific date faling between T1 and 70
MVITL) = Market Value ot T1
MWVITO| = Market Value at T0
Cit;) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date ncluding dividend received
Clty) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date excluding dividend received
Wit} = Weight of the net cash flow (i.=. either net inflow ar net outflow) on day ¥, calculated as |[T1 -t} / 71
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(1) Disclosure on Kopill HPS (50%4 MW

(i) Penstock | - feading 02 (twe) units 150 MW each) of Kopili Hydro Power Station, Umrongso, Assam of the Company got ruptured on 07.10.2012 following a Load
through off and tripping of Unit -1 (50 MW). 03 {three} other units were in full load during the mishap. fupture happ at three locations of P Including at
lecation immediately downstream of Valve House, Penstock protection valve closing mechanism was damaged in the incident and therefore, the Valye cauld not be
closed to isolate the Penstock, consequently thereafter, the Powsr House was flooded upto FOT Crane beam leve! within a very short period, Repair, Renovation ang
Modernization (RRM) activities of the s8id generating plant is £9ing on and as on the end of the reporting period, out of four units of on Kepili HPS (50K4 MW), the COD
of three units were already recommissianed i.e. Unit 2 4: COD declared w.e.f. 00:00 hrs of 20.08.2023, Unit# 3; cop declared wee f. 00:00 hrs of 03.09.2023 and Unit #

2: COU declared w.e.f. 0000 hrs of 12.11.2023. The Turbine shaft free activity completed. Generatar erection Is under progress. The final unitie, Unita is @xpectad
within May 2024,

1) Disclosure an Khandang Hps (2 X 25 MW) and Kopili Stage 11 {1 % 25 MW) HPs:
Asa consequence of unprecedented dry season fioad in Kopili river, the Bundh constructed at the approach channel for taking up plarned repair and renovation works

are completed, The plant layel Engineering for EM package/ approval of drawings and design memorandum, forging, Casting, machining and fabrication of different
companent of Turbine & Generator and the switchyard are in Progress. The work is scheduled 1o be completed by May & July 2025,

1{) Renewable Energy (Solar project- Phase-1), 300 Mw:

The Renewshle Energy (Sclar project- Phase-1), 300 MW |s located at Bhanipura, Bikaner, Rajasthan, The annual generation of the Project is 762,30 MU with De. AC ratia
ef 1.5 (Fived tilt system). The LOI is issued 1o M/t Waaree Renewabie Technolegies Limited and the contract sgreement was made an 22.03.2024, The contractor has
offered private leasehold land (455 Ha) in Solar Park in Bhanipura, Blkaner, Rajasthan and L5 km transmission line at 220 ky for Interconnection at PGCIL, Bikane:-ii
substation. The contractar had submitted Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG) on 27.03 2024 and the Advance Bank Guarantee {ABG) on 27.03.2024 10 MNEEPCO.

1{IV) Tato-1l HEP (700 MW), Heo HEP {240 MW) and Tato-1 HEP (186 Mw):

The Ministry of Power yvide letter dated 22,17 2021 Indicated 240 MW Heg HEP. 186 MW Tato-l HEP {an Yarjep river} and 700 MW Tato- || HEP (en Siyom River} in Siang
Basin amongst another study

for execution of gach of these three prejects,

The Board of Directors vide its meeting held on 10,11 2023 has appraved the pre-investment expenditure these three projects. A brief summary of these projects |s
stated as under

Tato-Il HEP (700 Mw):

The Present-Day Cost: Hard Cost: % 603518 Cr., IDC: R1096.01 Cr at Total Cast: ® 7131.19 Cr (PL: Jul 2023), The 1st Year Tariff: 2831 funit and Levelized Tariff: &
5.28/unit. The Techno Economic Clearance transferred in favour of NEEFCO with validity up to 30.09.2025. The Enviranment clearance was transferred in favour of
NEEPCD en 01.01.2024. The Forest clearance application for grant of FCH submitted on PARIVESH partal an 13.01.2024. PSCl clearsd on 27.03,2024. The Land
Compensation amaunt relessed to the Districe Administration on 05.02.2024 Disbursement of compensation to land owners by District Authorities js under progress
PSC-|| under process by the concerned DFO, The Confirmatary Survey using LIDAR is under Progress, the tender for Diversion tunnel works floated on 30.11.2023, the
bid feva) consultancy work awarded and the draft PIB Memg submitted to MOP. Reply to the observations will be sentafter updating cast estimate

Hea HEP (240 pw):

The Present-Day Cost. Hard Cost: %1614 55 Cr IDC: 215867 Cr., Total Cost: #1773.22 cr {PL; Jul 2023}, The 1st Year Tariff: %3.73/unit and Levelized Tariff: 2375 unit,
The Techne Econamic Clearance transferred in favour of NEEPCO with validity up to 30.09 2025, The Environment clearance was transferred in favour of NEEPCO on
01.91.2024. The Forest Clearance User 3gency in FC transferred in favour of NEEPCO an 31.01.2024. Revised demand notes of APCCF amounting Rs. 16 64 Cr for
Compensatory levies received on 07.03.2024. Onlline Payment released on 09.04.2024, The Land and property survey Is being carried out by Bistrier Administration
tomimencing on 08.02 2024, The Confirmatary Survey using LIDAR is under Progress. Draft PIE Memo subrmitted to MOP. Reply to the bhservations will be sent after
updating cost pstimate.

Tato-1 HEP (185 Mw):

The Present-Day Hard Cost: £1461.43Cr IDC: X 142,84 Cr. Total Cost: R1604.27 Cr. (PL: Jul 2023) with 1st vear Tariff: ®%4.52/unit and Levelized Tariff 4,77 /unir

The Techno Econamic Clearance transferred in favour of NEERCO with validity up to 30.08.2025. The Environment ciearance was transferred in favour of NEEPCO an
01.01 2004

The Forest Clearance User AgEnCy in FC-l transferrad in favour of NEEPCOQ on 31,01.7074, Revised dernand nares of APCCF amaounting Ra.14.04 Cr for tompensatory
levies received on 07.03.2024 and payment relessed an 09.04.3024.

The Lang and praperty Land and property survey is being carried out by District Administration cammencing on 08.02.2024. The Confirmatory Survey using LIDAR is
under progressand the Draft PIB Mema submitted ta Mop. Reply to the cbservaticns will be sent after updating of cost estimate

1Vl wah Umiam Stage-1ll HEP (g5 MW), Meghalaya:

The MOA was signed between the Government of Meghalaya and NEERCO ar 20th Aprif 2012, The CEA accorded appraisal in respect of the project on 26th July 2021,
The Enviranments| Clearance fas been recommended in February 2018 by Expert Appraiss! Committes IMoEF&LL), Govt. of India subject to Stage-l Farest Clearance
[FC1). FCt is presently under Pracess with Integrated Regional Gffics {IRQ), Shillong, MOEF&CE, The Land demarcation survey of about 60 Ha, out of the required g
JIVI) Kurung HEP (330 MW, Arunachal Pradesh:

Mod was signed with Gout. of drunachal Pradesh on 27.01.2015, The Pre-investment 2pproval was accerded in September 2021 The warks for preparation of DFR has
been awarded in March 2023 and DPR preparation activities are in process. The Rreparation of E1A/ EMP was awarded in May 2023 and is under process,
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K. Disclosure as per ind AS 116 ‘Leases

(1) Transition to tng AS 116
The Company has applied the followi £ practical expedients on initia) application of Ind AS 115
(il Applied a single discount rate 1o 5 portfollo of leasas of 5imilar Assets in similar meonomic environment with a similar end date,
{11} Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets ang liabilities for |eases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial apalication,
{iil) Excluded the injtial direct costs, if any, from the measurement of the right of-use asset at the date of initial application,

Tecognised under Ind A5 116 is 8.69 %, For 2greements

liil) On transition e Ind AS 116, the weighted average incremental bnrruwlng rate applied ta lease liabilities
relating to the FY 2023.24 the weighted

() Company as Lessee

ge in 1l borrowing rate |s taken a5 7.75 %,

Closing Balance

Interest cost during the year
- Payment of lease fiabilities
e e S s

Particulars

ended
31" March 2021

Opening Balance

- Additions in fegse liabilities
- Amortization during the period
Closing Balance
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(V) The following are the amaunts recognised in profit or luss: : ® in lakhs )
Particulars Far the Year ended |For the Year ended
31" March 2024 | 31" March 2023
ey = =y
Deprociation expense for right-of-use assets 903.29 512.04
Interest expente on lease labilities 210.02 125.94
Expense relating to short-tarm leases - =
(V1] Details of Contractual Maturities of Lease Liabilities are:

L% in lnkk|
Particulars For the Year ended |For the Year ended

31" March 2024 | 317 March 2023

Less than ane year 1,000.48 607 .67 I
Between ene and two years 594.48 341.20
Between two and three years 273.54 127.37
Between three and four years 147 05 10.086

Between four and five years
More than five years

Total 2,015.55 1.m.sn|

L Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2023 as required by Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Micra, Small and
Medium Enterprises De velopment Act, 2006 {MSMED Act)

Particulars

a] Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier-
Principal amount

Interest due therean

b) Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along-with the amount paid to - -
the suppliers beyend the appointad day,
) Amount of interest due ang payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been - -
Paid but beyond the appointad day during the year) but withaut adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act,

d} Amount of interest acerusd and remaining unpaid

e} Amaunt of further interest remaining due and payable ever |n the succeeding years, until such date -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises, far the purpase of
disallowances as a deducrible expenditure under Section 23 of MSMED Act

The payment to the venders are made as and when they are due, as per terms and
M. Changes in Accounting Policies/Change in Estimate:

During the year, changes/modification have bean made in Accounting Policies in compliance ta the amendment through newly inserted para 117A.8,C pertaining to disclosure

conditions of respective cantracts,

of material aceounting policies as laid down under the isian of ind A5 1 “p 1en of Financial Statements”. There is no impact on the financial statements due to
these modifications in the material Accounting policy.

Change in Estimate:

Based on the technical assessment, feedback from the OEM, by the gas and I ' tonducted by the c d technical con by the

management, the useful lifeof Assam Gas Based Power Statign (AGBPS) 291 MW, is estimated 1o be increased by another 15 years and therefore the petition befare the CERC
Proposing an extension of the Pawer station up 1o 31.03.203% has been filed,

Accardingly, depreciation on the assets capitalized during last five years {2013-24] for the current financial year till the finai order from CERC is obtained wiuld be caleufated at
the normative rate prescribed by the CERC Subsequently, after the receipt of the order these assets would be depreciated over the remaining useful extended Iife of the
power station,

Considering the sbove change in estimate, financial impact in depreciation during the current financial year is shown below:

Depreciation during the period considering original |ife of the Power Station © As11,735.09 lakhs
Depreciation of the pawer station considering revised lifa Rs 5,308.97 lakhs
Decrease in depreciation during the year ‘Rs 582712 akhs
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Note no.- 40 Capital Management

The Company’s capital Management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the
Company,

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan, coupled with long term and short term strategic
investing plan. The funding requirements are met through equity, convertible and nen- convertible debt securities, and ather short term and long
term borrowings. The Company's policy is aimed at combination of short term and long term borrowings.

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the
Company.

Note no.- 41 Disclosure on Financial Instruments
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheat
items that contain financial instruments,

The details of significant accounting palicies, including the criteria for recognition, the basls of measurement and the basis on which income and
EXpenses are recognized, in respact of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note no.1 to the
financial statements

Financial assets and liabilities

The fallowing table presents the carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets & liabilities as at March 31, 2024 & March 31,
2023

(% inlakhs )
Fair value Derivative Derivative
through Fairvalue | instrume nts Hetrmas Amortised | Total Carrying Total Fair
As at March 31, 2024 statement i v not in
through OCI| in hedging Cost Value Value
of profit & hedging
loss PRl sl relationship
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances 240.10 240.10 24010
Other Bank Balances 276.45 276.46 276.46
Trade receivables 83,664.74 83,664 74 83,664.74
Loans 40.02 40,02 40.02
Other linancial assets 32,756 .40 32,756.40 32,756.40
Total 1,16,927.72 1,16,977.72 1,16,977.72
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 17,775.74 17,775.74 17,775.74
Borrowings 6,95035.07 | 6,95,035.07 6,52,020.01
Cash Credit/WCDL/STL 52,253.97 52,253.97 52,253.97
Lease obligation 2,015.55 2,015.55 2,015.55
Payable for Capital expenditure 4,938.90 4,938.90 4,938.90
Other financial liabilities 23,416.55 23,416 55 23,416.55
| Total | 79543578 | 79543578 7.52,420.72 |
{3 in lakhs )
[_ Fair value v Derivative
through Bgrivinive instruments " :
Fair value | instruments Amortised | Total Carrying Total Fair
As at March 31, 2023 statement A ) not in
of profit & through OCI| in hfadgm_g hedging Cost Value Value
relationship -
loss relationship
Financial assets ] Crahe '
Cash and bank balances 1,461.34 1,461.34 1,461.34
Other Bank Balances 291,50 291,50 291.50
Trade receivables 94,429.78 94,429.78 94,429.78
Loans 28.19 28.19 28.19
Other financial assets 23,221.47 23,221.47 23,221 .47
Total 1,19,432.28 1,19,432.28 1,18,432,28
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 15,140.46 19,140 46 19,140.46
Borrowings 6,91,06336 | 6,91,063.36 6,82,905.59
Cash Credit/WCDL 22,054 .36 22,054.36 22,054.36
Lease abligation 1,086.31 1,086.31 1,086.31
Payable for Capital expenditure 13,376.79 13,376.79 13,376.79
Other financial liabilities 49,119.55 49,119 55 45,119,585
Total 7.95,840.83 7,95,840.83 ?,87,68326_‘
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Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): This level of hierarchy includes financisl assets and liabilities

« measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as

prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from

(< in lakhs J
r Ptk As at March 31, 2024 =
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial assets measured at fair value [ ;!
(1) Trade receivables 83,664.74 - - 83,664.74
(i) Cash and Bank Balances 516.56 - > 516.56
(i) Loans 40.02 - - 40.02
{iv ) others 32,756.40 - - 32,756.40
Total financial assets measured at fair value 1,16,977.72 - - 1,16,977.72
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
(i) Borrowings 7,04,273 98 = - 7,04,273.98
{ii ) Trade & Other payables* 22,714.64 - - 22,714.64
(iil ) Other financial liabilities | 25,432.10 3 25,432.10
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value 7,52,420.72 I =] 7,52,420.72
{X inlakhs )
Particulars As at March 31, 2023
| Llevell | tevaiz Level 3 Total
Financial assets measured at fair value ’ ==
{1 ) Trade receivables 94,429 78 - - 94,429 78
(i1 ) Cash and Cash equivalents 1,752.84 - - 1,752.84
{iil ) Loans 28.15 - - 28.19
| iv ) others 23,221.47 - - 23,221.47
Total financial assets measured at fair value 1,19,432.28 | - - 1,19,432.28
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
(i ) Borrowings 7,04,959 95 - = 7,04,959.95
{ii ) Trade & Other payables* 32,517.25 - - 32,517.25
( iii ) Other financial liabilities 50,205.86 - 50,205.86
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value 7,87,683.06 | f 7,87,683.06

* Trade & Other payables includes trade Payables & payables for capital expenditure
The shart-term financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortized cast which is approximately equal ta their fair value.

The fair value in respect of the unquoted equity investments cannot be reliably measured.

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any
estimation technique Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented ahove are not necessarily indicatjve
of all the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of the financial

Page 96 of 106



Transfer of financial assets
There have been no transfers of financial assets during the 2023-24
Financial risk management

Market Risk : - Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that
the price of a financial instrument. The value of 2 financial
exchange rates, quity price fluctuations, liquidity and other
reasonable accuracy

may result from a change in
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency
market changes. Future specific market movements cannot be narmally predicted with

service debt according to the contractual terms or
creditworthiness as well as cancentration risks,

the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective af liguidity risk management is

The following table shows a maturity
liabilities on an undiscounted basis,

analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest payable for the Company's nan derivative financial
which therefore differ from both carrying value and fair value.

{ ¥ /n Lakhs)

The cost of unguated investments approximate
represents estimate of fair value within that range,

Note No. - 42 Operating Segment

As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying Contractual | Less than1 |Between1i-s5 More than 5
amount cash flows year years years
Non- derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 7,04,273.98 7,04,273 98 1,15311.08 3,99,560.19 1,85,402.95
Trade payables 22,714.64 22,714.64 17,775.74 4,938 90
Other financial liabilities 25,432.10 25,432.10 24,417.03 1,015.07 -
Total non- derivative financial liabilities 7,52,420.72 7,52,420.72 1,57,503.85 4,05,514.16 1,89,402.95
Derivative financial liabilities
{ & in Lokhs)

ot As at March 31, 2023 5]

Particulars Carrying Contractual | Lessthan 1 Between 1-5| More than 5

amount / cash flows year [ years r years
Non- derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 7,04,559 95 7.04,959 a5 1,17,811.20 4,06,318 99 1,80,829.75
Trade payables 32,517.25 32,517.25 19,140.46 13,376.79
Other financial liabilities 50,205.86 50,205.86 48.727.21 478.64 -
Total non- derivative financial liabilities 7.87,683.06 7,87,683.06 1,86,678.87 4,20,174.42 1,80,829.75
Igrivative financial liabilities
. R NSy
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Note No 43 Financial Risk Management
(i) Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit éxpasure. The maximum expasure to credit risk at the

reporting date was
(% in lakhs )

Particulars As at 31“ As at 31"
March 2024 March 2023

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit
Losses (ECL)
Non-current investments
Non-current loans 40.02 28.19
Other non-current financial assets 445.00 443.13
Cash and cash equivalents 240.10 1,461.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 276.46 291.50
Current loans 1,131.94 1,187.43
Other current financial assats* 610.39 998.72

Total (A) 2,743.91 4,410.31

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using life-time Expected Credit Losses
{ECL) as per simplified approach

Trade receivables 83,664.74 83,664.74
Contract Assets 31,049 26 21,035.32

Total (B) 1,14,714.00 1,04,700.06
L Total (A+B) 1.17,457.91—1 1,09,110.37

Excluding Contract Asets (Refer Note 13)
(ii) Provision for expected credit losses

(a) Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 month expected credit losses
The Company has assets where the tounter-parties have sufficient Capacity to meest the obligations and where the risk of
defauit is very low. Accordingly, no loss allowance for impairment has been recognised.

The Company has customers (State government utilit ies) with capacity to meet the obligations and therefore the risk of
defauit is negligible or nil. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amaounts that are past due by more than
default is negligible or nil. Further, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30
days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. Hence,

(iii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables is as below: (% in lakhs )
Notdue | 0-30days | 31-60 days | 61-90days | 91.120 days | More than 120 Total

past due past due past due past due days past due

Ageing

Gross carrying
amount as on 31st
March 2024
Gross carrying
amount as on 31st
March 2023

61,691.36 6,687.43 279.54 - - 15,006.41 83,664.74

76,558,590 6,822.65 11,034.15

e o R e

94,429.78

Liquidity Risks
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach ta managing liguidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liahilities when due, under both norma and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The Company has an appropriate liquidity risk management framewaork for the management of short, medium ang long term
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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Typically, the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand o meet expected operational expenses for a month,
including the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot
reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters

As part of the CERC Regulations, tariff inter-alia includes recovery of capital cost. The tariff regulations also provide for
recovery of energy charges, operations and maintenance expenses and interest on normative working capital requirements,
Since billing to the customers are generally on a monthly basis, the Company maintains sufficient liquidity to service financial
obligations and to meet its operational requirements,

(i) Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

(T in lakhs)
Particulars Asat31-03-2024 | As at 31-03-2023

Fixed-rate borrowings
Foreign currency loans L 3
Floating-rate borrowings
Cash Credit /WcDL 1,17,944.48 99,011.00
Term loans - 20,000.00
Foreign currency loans

Total |

(i} Maturities of financial liabilities
Th

e following are the contractual maturities of derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities, based on contractual cash
flows:

1,19,011.00

31" March 2024 (% in lakhs )

Contractual cash flows

Contractual maturities of

financial liabilities A minnthior 3-12 months | 1-2 years 2-5 years Morethn 4
less years

Non-derivative financial

Secured bonds 4,960.93 I 62,000.00 50,000.00 1,19,000.00 36,000.00 2,71,960.93

—_______E\—________

Unsecured bonds 31.21 | : ! 20,000.00 20,031.21
Rupee term loans from banks 7,768.87 } 54,475.00 30,200.00 1,76,800.00 1,01,000.00 3,70,243.87
Rupee term loans from others ‘ - I - - r - 29,196.42 29,196.42
Finance lease obligations ! 250,12 750.36 594.48 420.59 - 2,015.55

Secured Foreign currency loans - : = ; s

Unsecured foreign currency
loans from banks and financial = 5 = : 2 =
institutions

T i -
naecured forelgn currency 352053 | 330829 5,515.5?‘ 17,443.61 2,706.53 13,595.53
loans uaranteed by GO
Cash credit /WCDL/STL 22,253.97 |  30,000.00 -] - : 52,253.97
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liabilities

31" March 2023 (% inlakhs )
Contractual maturities of kmonths = Contractual cash flows More than §
financial liabilities 3-12 months | 1.2 years 2-5 years Total
less years
Non-derivative ncial

Secured bonds

Unsecured bonds

5,799.44 |  62,000.00 77,000.00 | 1,53,500.00 66,500.00 3,64,799.44

Secured Foreign currency loans

26.96 - - 1 : 20,000.00 20,026.96
Rupee term loans from banks 5,191501 16,975.00 30,300,00{ 1,10,800.00 73,20000 | 236,97250
Rupee term loans from others (?1.45}} : . AL : 29,196.42 29,124.96
Finance lease obligations 151,92 455,75 341.20 J 137.43 - 1,086.30

uaranteed by GOI)

oreign  currency z = 3 2 . = ]
loans from banks and financial
institution

oreign  currency 3,696.09 3,285.91 6,571.82 19,715.46 6,870.22 40,139.50

Cash credit /wcpL

22,054.36 = -

22,054.36

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that ch

anges in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the

Company's income. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting up of policies and procedures to manage market risks of the Company. All
such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the risk management committee.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk an certain transactions that are deneminated in a currency other than
entity’s functional currency, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The risk is that the functional currency value
of cash flows will vary as a result of movements in exchange rates.

The currency profile of financial

31" March 2024

assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 are as below

{ % in lakhs )

Financial Assets
Trade other receivables
Cash and Cash equivalent
Other Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Secured Foreign Currency loans

Trade payables & other financial

31" March 2023

Unsecured Foreign Curreny loans from banks & financial institution

Particulars

Total

33,595.53

33,595,53
liabilities
Total

33,595.53

{2 in lakhs )
Particulars Usp Euro Total
Financial Assets
Trade other receivables - X ;
Cash and Cash equivalent J 4 2 I
Other Financial Assets . 2 L
Total | z > :
Financial Liabilities
Secured Foreign Currency loans < =
Unsecured Foreign Curreny loans from banks & financial institution 40,139.50 40,139.50
Trade payables & other financial liabilities - = =
Total - 40,139,50 40,139.50
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Out of the above, na amount is hedged by derivative instruments. In respect of the balance exposure, gain/{lass) on account
of exchange rate variations on all foreign currency loans and foreign currency monetary items (up to COD) is recoverable fram
beneficiaries. Therefore, currency risk in respect of such exposure would not be very significant.

Sensitivity analysis
Since the impact of strengthening or weakening of INR against USD, Euro, JPY and ather currencies on the statement of profit
and loss would not be very significant; therefore, sensitivity analysis for currency risk is not disclosed.

Interest Rate risk

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments is as follaws:

(% in lakhs )
I Particulars 31" March 2024 31" March 2023 |
Financjal Assets
Fixed Rate Instruments
Bank Deposits 276.46 291.@_
Total 276.46 291.50
Financial Liabilities
Fixed Rate Instruments
Bonds 2,91,909.59 3,84,826.40
Foreign currency loans 33,754.88 40,139.50
Rupee tarm loan 29,126.73 29,124.96
Lease obligations 2,015.55 1,086.31
Total 3,56,806.75 4,55,177.17
Variable-rate instruments
Foreign turrency loans - .
Rupee term loan 3,10,243.87 2,36,972.50
Cash Credit 52,253.97 22,054 36
3,62,497.34 | 2,59,026.86
Total 7,19,304.59 | 7,14,204.03

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company’s fixed rate instruments are carried at amortised cost, They are therefare not subject to interest rate risk, since

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments S

A change of 50 basis points In interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the
amounts shown below, This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for tha previous year.

(% inlakhs )
| il s Profit or loss
s == Paiculars -tk = 1= 50 bp increase ____50bpdecrease =<
31-Mar-24
Foreign currency Inans {143.71) 143.71
Rupee term loans (3,322.78) 3,322.78
Cash credit/wcDL (12.96) 12.96
Total (3,479 45) 3,479.45
31-Mar-23
Foreign currency loans (204.43) 204.48
Rupee term loans (2950.31) 2,950.31
Cash credit/wcDL (2.14) 2.14
Total (3156.93) 3156.93
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Note No. 44 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
(% in lakhs )
=3 Particulars Level As at 31" March 2024 As at 317 March 2023
Carrying Fair value Sheryie Fair value
amount amount

Financial assets

Loans 3 40.02 40.02 28.19 28.19
Trade receivables 3 83,664.74 83,664.74 94,429.78 94,429.78
Cash and cash equivalents 3 240.10 240.10 1,461.34 1,461.34
Bank balances other than cash and cash 3 276.46 276.46 291.50 291.50
equivalents

Other financial assets 3 32,756.40 32,756.40 23,221.47 23,221.47
Financial liabilities

Bonds 3 2,91,909.58 | 2,97.620.69 3,84,826.40 3,95,797.48
Foreign currency loans - KFw 3 33,754.88 32,772.95 40,139.50 35,091.55
Foreign currency loans - ECB 3 - -
Rupee term loans 3 3,10,243.87 3,10,243.87 2,36,972.50 2,36,972.50
Government Subordinate Loan 3 29,126.73 11,382.50 29,124.96 11,044.06
Lease obligations 3 2,015.55 2,015.55 1,086.31 1,086.31
Borrowings - current 3 52,253.97 52,253,97 22,054.36 22,054.36
Trade payables and payable for capital 3 22,714.64 | 22.714.64 32,517.25 32,517.25
expenditure
Eﬂr financial liabilities 3 37,752.10 | 37,752.10 49,119.55 49,119.55

| ‘

The carrying amounts of current trade receivables, current trade payables, payable for capital expenditure, investment in
subsidiary and joint venture companies, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and liabilities are considered to
be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values for loans, borrowings, non-current trade payables and payable for capital expenditure were calculated based
on cash flows discounted using a current discount rate, They are classified at respective levels based on availability of quoted
prices and inclusion of observable/non observable inputs.

Note No 45 Disclosure as per Ind AS 115, ' Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Nature of goods and services

The revenue of the Company comprises of income from energy sales, sale of energy thraugh trading and other services. The
following is a description of the principal activities;

{a) Revenue from energy sales

long-term Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) entered into with the beneficiaries, Further, the Company sell electreity
through Power Exchanges available with them under "Merchant Power",

Below are the details of nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms under
contracts for energy sales:




[—‘_- Product/ Service
a9

Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms

Energy sales

The Company recognises revenue from contracts for energy sales over time as the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company. The
tariff for computing revenue from energy sales is determined in terms of CERC Regulations
a5 notified from time to time. Sale of Power is accounted for based on tariff approved by the
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission {CERC). In case of Fower sta;fvni m][[t ﬂnal

[ﬂ”ﬂ Ig UUI Tﬂ hﬂ ﬂbhraverj Ly CERC, the sale of energy is provided for on the basis of
pravisional rate considering the Annual Fixed Cost submitted before the CERC through Tariff
Petition as per the principles enunciated in the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations 2019, For projects for which neither CERC
approved tariff is available nor petition pending with the CERC, sale of energy is accounted
for on the basis of tariff as agreed by the beneficiaries. The amounts are billed on a monthly
basis and are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

|

[b) Revenue from energy trading, consultancy and other services
Sale of Energy through trading

Below are the details of nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms under
contracts for sale of energy through trading;

Product/ Service I

Sale of energy through trading

Company. The tariff for tomputing revenue from sale of energy through trading is
determined as per the terms of the agreements. The amounts are billed as per periodicity
specified in the Contract and are payable within contractually agreed credit period.

Il. Disaggregation of revenue

In the following table, revenue is disageregated by type of product and services, geographical market and timing of revenue

recognition:
r— Particulars [_Generation of energy Others Total
For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Geographical markets
India 4,10,497.48 4,41,018 53 13,459.26 14,708.20 4,23,956.74 4,55,726.73
e Others 4
4,10,49?.43] 4,41,018.53 13,459.26 14,708.20 4,23,956.74 4,55,726.73
Timing of revenue recognition |
:’r;"’nds‘f‘;:f:'d”g::r“t’;::: 4,10,497.43‘ 4,41,018.53 13,459.25' 14,708.20|  4,23,95674| 4:55726.73
=5 : _F4,1o,49?.4g{ 841018.53) 13,459.26] 1470820 4,23956.7a] 4,55,726.73
lll. Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price: { % inlakhs )

Particulars For the year For the year
ended 31 March 2024 ended 31 March 202?-__ﬁ
Cantract price 4,26,284.56 4,57,522.38
Adjustments for:
Rebates (2327.82) | (1795.65)
Revenue recognised 4,23,956.74 [ 4,55,726.73

IV. Contract balances

The following table provides information about trade receivables, unbilled

revenue and advances from customers /

payable to beneficiaries: (% inlakhs )
Particulars | Asat31March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Trade receivables 83,664.74 94,429.78 -
Contract Assets 31,049.26 21,035.32 -
:::::::,j::m customers / payable to 1,246.60 ] 3,660.06 -
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Note No 46 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issued by Department of Public Enterprises, GOI, the
Company is required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made
during the three immediately preceding financial vears in accordance with its CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses for the

year are as under;

(% inlakhs |
[ Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
{i) Amount required to be spent by the 762.99 508.57
Company during the year
(i) Amount of expenditure incurred # 764.20 508.78
(iii) Shortfall at the end of the year Nil Nil
(iv) Total of previous years shartfall Nil Nil
{v) Reason for shortfall Not applicable Not applicable
(vi) Nature of CSR activities
(a) Construction/acquisition of any asset 634.51 271.88
(b) On purposes other than (a) above 129.69 236.90
(vii) Details of related party transactions, e.8, Nil il
contribution to a trust controlled by the
Company in relation to CSR expenditure as
per relevant Accounting Standard
{viii) Movement in CSR liahility (% in lakhs )
Particulars For the year ended For the year
31 March 2024 ended
31 March 2023
Opening Balance CSR Liability (A) 320.70 540.67
Paid / adjusted during the year (B) 239.70 444 55
Addition during the year { C) 44361 224.58
Closing balance as at the year end (D=A-B+C) 524.61 320.70
L]
(vii) Break up CSR expenses under major heads: (% in lakhs )
Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
1. Eradicating Hunger and Proverty, Health 26807 5406
Care and Sanitation s 81.0
2. Education, Sports and Skill Development 303.11 105.99
3. Rural Development 192.02 121.73
Total 764.20 508.78

# For the FY 2023-24 ; Rs. 764.20 lakh includes expenditure incurred over sanction Rs. 1,22 lakhs.
The amount appearing in the CSR Ongoing Projects & CSR Unspent balance as on 31.03.2024 (Breakup FY Wise)

FY CSR ON GOING PROIJECTS CSR UNSPENT
2023-2024 Rs 409.45 Lakhs Rs 14.85 Lakhs
2022-2023 Rs. 33.20 Lakhs Rs. 15.89 Lakhs
2021-2022 Rs. 51.08 Lakhs Rs. 0.14 Lakhs
Total Rs. 493.73 Lakhs Rs, 30.88 Lakhs

## Balance under "CSR Onging Project : Rs. 493.73 Lakh and balance under CSR Unspent Rs. 30.88 Lakh
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Note No. 47 Disclosure on Inventories
(a) Amount of inventories consumed and recognised as expense during the year is as under (X in lakhs )
: For the year For the year
Particulars
N ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23
Fuel Cost 1,24,616.69 1,44,849.84
Others ( included in Note 33 - Other expenses)* 4,445 .84 2,430.11
Total 1,29,062.53 1,47,279.95

* includes imported material consumed during the year ended 31st March 2024 amounts to Rs. 547.67 lakhs ie.,

0.42% of total inventories consumed (Previous year Rs. 21.07 lakhs i.e, 0.01% of total inventories consumed)

Note No 48 Income Tax related disclosures
48(i) Disclosure as per Ind AS 12 "Income Tax"
(a) Income Tax Expense

i) Income tax recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss (X inlakhs )
For the year For the year
Particuiags ended 31-Mar-24 ended 31-Mar-23

Current Tax expense
Current year 10,252.95 5,676.88
Taxes for earlier years - -
Pertaining to regulatory deferral account balances (A) (192.98) 1,619.88
Total current tax expense (B) 10,059.97 7,296.76
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ( C) (5,347.15) 14,819.16
Less : MAT credit entitlement [Refer Note 48 (ii)]
Income Tax Expense ( D= B+C-A) 4,905.80 20,496.04
Pertaining to regulatory deferral account balances (192.98) 1,619.88
Total tax expense including tax on movement in regulatory 4,712.82 22.115.92
deferral account

MAT credit available to the Company in future but not recognised:

48 (ii): MAT credit for the current financial year available to the Company in future but not recognised as at 31 March 2024 is
Rs 9,939.54 |akhs.

(ii) Income tax recognised in other comphrehensive income (X inlakhs )
[ For the year ended
Paiticalars 31" March 2024 31st March 2023
B ; T
Before Tax 5 Net of Tax | Before Tax i Net of Tax
Expense Expense

Net actuarial loss on defined benefit
p;ns . [ (1946.77)| (340.14)| (1606.63)| (1582.69) | (276.53) (1306.16)
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(X inlakhs )
e For the year ended For the year ended 31™
31" March 2024 March 2023
Profit before tax includi i f
rofit before tax including movement in regulatory deferral 59,526.32 43,345.29

account balances
Tax using the Company's domestic rate of 17.472% ( 31st
March 2024 -34.944% SRS0043 SR
Tax effect of :
Non deductible tax expense (340.14) (276.53)
Tax free income - -
Deferred Tax Expense (5,347.15) 14,819.16
Previous year Tax liability . -
Minimum alternate tax adjustments
Total tax expense recognised in the statement of profit & 4,713.15 22,115.92
Loss
Note no. 49 Confirmation of Balances

Balances shown under Capital advances to Contractors, Trade Payable and material in transit/with contractor/issued
on loan, Trade receivables, Accounts receivable are subject to confirmation/reconciliation and consequential
adjustment, if any.

Note No. 50 Impairment loss

Property Plant and Equipment has been tested for impairment where indicators of impairment existed. Based on
the assessment, the Company do not recognize any impairment impact during the previous year and also during the
year ended March 31, 2023.

Note No. 51 Previous year figures

During the period of migration from existing accounting software (Matfin) to SAP-ERP accounting software, the
company followed both the existing Accounting Software (Matfin) & SAP-ERP accounting software for recording
financial transactions. However, from the current Financial year, the company has been following only SAP (ERP) for
recording transactions and preparing the financial statements. Therefore, the financial statements of the current
year have been regrouped/reclassified for a better presentation. The figures of previous period are
regrouped/reclassified except in cases where there is no material financial impact.

In terms of our report of even Date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors For R.N Goyal & Co
Date: Chartered Accountants |
Place F.R.N. 309128E
A. P.Rong rana Gurdeep Sfngh Manis Gayal
Company Secretary Directof (Finance)-cum-CFO  Chairman & Managing Director Partner
DIN: 09263864 DIN: 00307037 Membership No-061194
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NORTH EASTERN ELECTRIC POWER CORPORATION
LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of NORTH EASTERN ELECTRIC
POWER CORPORATION LIMITED (the “Venturer Company™) and its Jointly controlled entity
(collectively referred 10 as “the Company™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the vear
ended on that date and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred 1o as the “Consolidated Financial
Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given (o us, due
consideration of unaudited Financial Statements of joint venture entity referred to below in the “Other Matter”
Paragraph, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the “Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act. ("Ind AS™) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as ai
March 31, 2024 and its consolidated profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
its consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Finaneial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate (o provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Branch Office : Kolkata, Malbazar, Islampur, Jaigaon (West Bengal), Guwahati (Assam), Bengalury (Karnataka)
Back Office : Mukund Das Road, Milanpally, Siliguri-734005



We draw attention to the following matters in the Notes to the Consol idated Financial Statements: Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

. Note No.10 (v) read with Material Accounting Policy 1 (B) (4) regarding disputed trade receivable amount
from TSECL (Tripura State Electricity Corporation Limited) amounting to Rs. 10369.19 Lakhs (due for
more than three (3) years) and Rs. 4850.02 Lakhs (due for more than six (6) months but less than two (2)
years), the company expects it to be realized within 12 months from the reporting date and accordingly
classified it as Current Assets. Further, the Company has also not provided for any Expected Credit Loss
(ECL) because its business activities are governed by the CERC Regulations, power purchase agreements,
tripartite agreements and various guidelines/notifications issued by the appropriate authorities and the
aforementioned customer is also a State Government controlled entity.

=

Note No. 8(ii) regarding Income Tax refundable for those cases which have been settled via Vivad Se
Vishwas Scheme of Income Tax Department amounting to Rs. 180.67 Lakhs have been standing
receivable for more than 3 vears. As per the scheme the company is entitled to refund without an y interest,

3. Note No. 5(iii) regarding inclusion of the unaudited financial statements of the jointly controlled entity
"KSK Dibbin Hydro Power Private Limited" in the Consolidated Financial Statements which is solely
based on the unaudited & unapproved financial statements provided by the jointly controlled entity to the
Venturer Company through its nominee director.

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

Our Audit Procedure :
‘e have obtained an understanding of the CERC
ariff regulations, orders, circulars, guidelines and
he company’s internal circulars and procedures in
respect of recognition and measurement of revenue
from sale of energy comprising of capacity charges
and energy charges and adopted the following Audit
rocedures;

Recognition and Measurement of Revenue
rom sale of energy

The Company records revenue from sale of
energy based on tariff approved by the Central
lectricity Regulatory Commission (CERC)
and where final tariff is yet to be approved by
ERC, provisional revenue is recognized on
he basis of provisional rate considering the
Annual Fixed Cost submitied before the
ERC through tariff petition. The provisional
evenue recogmzed during the FY 2023-24 is

1. Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the
company’s design of internal controls relating

"
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Lamuuming to Rs. 9,.911.12 Lakhs for Kameng

hich may be vulnerable to impairment,

Assels",

to recognition and measurement of revenue
Hydro Power Station (600MW) situated at trom sale of energy.
Arunachal Pradesh.
Where neither approved tariff is available nor 2. Verified the accounting of revenue from sale of
petition is pending with the CERC, sale of energy as well as accounting of provisional
energy is accounted for on the basis of tariff revenue from sale of energy hased on
as agreed by the beneficiaries, provisional tariff computed as per the principles
adopted by the Company.
(Refer note no. 27 read with Summary of
Material Accounting Policy No. C 10.1)
2) ecognition and Measurement of Revenue Qur Audit Procedure:
rom sale of energy due to shortfall in We have obtained an understanding of the CERC
eneration of energy beyond the control of tariff regulations, orders, circulars, guidelines and
he generating stations th: company's internal circulars and procedures in
respect of recognition and measurement of revenue
rsuant to recent changes and notification of |from sale of energy comprising of capacity charges
atest CERC tariff regulations for the tarff and energy charges and adopted the following Audit
riod 2024-29 vide memo no No.l- Procedures:
11/268/2022/CERC on 15th March 2024, the |I, Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the
“ompany records revenue from sale of energy company’s design of internal controls relating
Eur: to shortfall in generations of electricity 10 recognition and measurement of revenue
uc 10 reasons beyond the control of the from sale of energy.
enerating stations (Hydro) amounting to Rs.
19,245.69 Lakhs from Kameng Hydro Power 2. We have relied on the work of another expert
Station (600MW) - Rs, 3,103.37 Lakhs, who has assessed the related
Ranganadi Hydro Electric Power Project assumptions/considerations used for classifying
405SMW) - Rs. 1,785.82 Lakhs, Tuirial the shortfall in energy between controllable and
Hydro Electric Power Project (60W) - Rs, uncontrollable along with the caleulations. We
10,207.08 Lakhs, Doyang Hydro FElectric have tested the calculations and understood the
Project (7SMW) - Rs. 4,149 42 Lakhs. underlying calculations and methodology to
arrive at the said revenuc.
We consider this a key audit matter as the
revenue includes shortfall for the last five [3. We have sought external balance confirmation
Erears (2019-24 tariff period) and this would from the debtors confirming the receipt of
be subject to the truing up in the subsequent invoice and balances as on 31.03.2024 and also
petitions to be filed by the company and reconciled the amount from Payment
directly billed to the customers. Ratification And Analysis in  Power
procurement for bringing T ransparency in
{Refer note no. 27 read with Summary of Invoicing of generators (PRAAPT] Portal).
Material Accounting Policy No. C 10.1)
3) Impairment Assessment of carrying value Our Audit Procedure:
of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) We have adopted the following Audit Procedure:
The Company has a material operational asset
base (PPE) relating to generation of electricity |1, Obtained and read the Company’s Account; ng
nd is one of the components for determining Policies with respect to impairment in
thic tariff as per the CERC Tariff Eegulations, accordance with Ind AS 36 “Im pairment of
[




2. Performed test of controls over key financial
We considered this as a key audit matter as controls related to accounting, valuation and
the Camrying value of PPE requires recoverability of assets through inspection of
impairment assessment based on the future evidence.
expected cash flows associated with the
Power Plants (Cash Generating Units). 3. Performed substantive audit procedures
including:
(Refer Note No. 50 read with the Material i) Obtained the management's impairment
Accounting Policy No. C 15), assessment.
if) Evaluated the key assumptions including
projected generation, fuel prices, exchange rate,
energy prices and power purchase agreement,
where available,

4. Reliance has been placed on management
projections for completion timeline, volume of
generation and resultant revenue based on
expected tariff there against.

4) ontingent Liability Our Audit Procedure:
ere are a number of litigations/claims
gainst the company pending before various [I. We have obtained the details of
orums. cases/disputes/claims pending before various
laims made against the company are courts/ Arbitrations/ quasi-judicial Forums etc.
ignificant and the management’s judgment is as on 31.03.2024 from the Management along
equired for estimating the amount involved with the latest status and management’s
nd their proper disclosure. assessment for the same,
E’isclosu:re of the same involves a significant 2. We have also obtained the Company’s
degree of Management’s judgment in Accounting policy in this regard and their
F':lnlerpreting the cases and assessment of the |  disclosure in notes to the Consolidated
robability of occurrence of the liability Financial Statements for the same.
which may be subject to Management bias. '
3. We understood and tested the design and
(Refer Note No. 36 to the Consolidated operating effectiveness of control as established
Financial Statements read with the Material by the Management for obtaining all relevant
Accounting Policy No. C §). information for pending litigation/ cases.

4. We discussed with Management regarding their
basis of assessment and any material
development thereto and also possible
outcomes of the claims/ disputes.

5) Deferred Tax Asset relating to MAT credit [Qur Audit Procedures
entitlement and corresponding Regulatory
Deferral Liability l. We have obtained an understanding for
The company has recognised deferred tax recognition of deferred tax assets relating to
ssets relating to MAT credit entitlement. MAT eredit entitlement and corresponding
tilization of MAT credit will result in lower liability of the same in the Regulatory Deferral




outflow of Income Tax in future years and
pecordingly Regulatory Deferral Liability
corresponding to the said MAT credit

requirement of judgment in forecasting future
taxable profits for recognition of MAT credit
ctitlement considering the recoverability of
such tax credits within allowed time frame as
per the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961,

(Refer Note No. 7, 16, 37 & 48 1o the
Consolidated Financial Statements, read with
the Material Accounting Policy No, C.13)

Account the

Judgment.

including management’s

entitlement has also been recognised, Payable 2. We have further relied on the work of another
to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as expert who has assessed the related forecasts of
per CERC Tariff Regulations. The future taxable profits and evaluated the
recoverability of this deferred tax asset reasonableness of the
relating to MAT credit entitlement is considerations/assumptions underlying the
dependent upon the generation of sufficient preparation of these forecasts along the
future taxable profits to utilize such regulatory  deferral account balance
entitlement  within  the stipulated period corresponding to the said MAT credit payable
prescribed under the Income Tax Act, 1961, to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods.
However, we have broadly reviewed the
We identified this as a key audit matter calculations along with (he underlying
because of the importance of this matter to the assumptions.
intended users of the Consolidated Financial
Statements  and s materiality; and (3. Based on the above procedures performed, the

recognition and measurement of Deferred tax
assets relating to MAT credit entitlement and
corresponding  Regulatory Deferral Liability
towards beneficiaries, are considered adequate
and reasonable.

Information Other than the Consolid;

The Venturer Company’s Board of Directors
other information comprises the information i

does not include
tatements and our auditor’s report thereon.
vailable to us after the date of this Auditor’s

ited Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
I

is responsible for the preparation of other information. The
ncluded in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report,
Director’s Report including Directors Responsibility Statement, Report on Corporate Governance and other
information included in the Annual Report, but
Consolidated Financial S
1s expected to be made a

the Consolidated Financial Statements,
The Other Information as stated above
Report.

Qur opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated,

When we read the Other Information as stated above and if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter (0 those charged with governance and describe necessary




actions required as per applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statement

The Venturer Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated financial performance, including other comprehensive
income, Consolidated changes in equity and Consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under and as per the Electricity
Act, 2003 and relevant Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) regulations and other recognised

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the directors of the
Company as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to hiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Venturer Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process of the Venturer Company and of its jointly controlled entity.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidaied Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will al ways detect 4 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in a ggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
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evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the mana gement.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate Audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business activities
of the Venturer Company and its joint venture to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of only such business activities included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements of which we are the independent Auditors, For the business activities included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have not been audited, their directors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of it. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the econemic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider Quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in :

i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
ii) To evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regardi ng, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial
controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevani ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those rg,aﬂéi'i_'ﬂfﬁ‘ﬂe\m
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of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in oyr auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report hecause the adverse consequences of doing so would

d by

We did not audit the Financial Statements of the jointly controlled entity “KSK Dibbin Hvdre Power Privgte
Limited”. The unaudited and unapproved Financial Statement of the jointly controlled entity has been
furnished to us by the Management of the Venturer Company. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us by the Management this Financial Statement is not material to the Company.

The financial statements of the above-referred Joint Venture reflect total assets of R, 12,698.77 Lakhs at the
31st March, 2024, total revenye of Rs. 31.94 Lakhs and net cash flow amounting to Rs. (8.89) Lakhs for the
year ended on the date considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Consolidated Financia
Statements reflect investments carried at Rs. 445 lakhs in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March
2024, and share of profit of joint venture at Rs. | .87 lakhs on the Consolidated Profit & Loss, based on such
unaudited and unapproved Financial Statements of such Joint venture as at 31 March, 2024, accounted for
under the Equity method. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as if relates to the
amounts and disclosure included in respect of the jointly controlled entity, and our report in terms of section
143(3) and 143(11) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled entity, is based solely
on such unaudited Financial Statements,

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on other Legal and Regulatary
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
unaudited Financial Statements provided by the Management of the jointly controlled entity.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the unaudited
Financial Statements of the jointly controlled entity as noted in the *Other Matters' paragraph above. we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and €xplanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements,

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Venturer Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated




a)

b)

Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

Being a Government Company, pursuant to the notification no. GSR 463(E) dtd. 5th June 2015 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub sections (2) of section 164 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Venturer Company..

As per notification no. GSR 463 (E) dtd. 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, section 197 of the Act, as regards managerial remuneration, is not applicable to the
Government Companies. Accordingly, reporting in accordance with the requirements of provisions of
section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable to the Venturer Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in ‘Annexure A',

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the unaudited financial statements
of the joined controlled entity:

The Venturer Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Consolidated Financial Statements. Refer Note No. 36 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Venturer Company has made provision, as required under applicable law or Indian Accounting
standards for material foreseeable losses, if any, on the long term contracts.

The Venturer Company has no case of transferring any amount to the Investor, Education and Protection
Fund as per the provisions of the Act,

The Management of the Venturer Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
nvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Venturer Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (*Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Venturer Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like to
or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Management of the Venturer Company has represented, that, to the best of jts knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individuall Yy or in the aggregate) have been received by the Venturer
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Venturer Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
by or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;




Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 1o believe that the representations under sub-clause (1)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The final dividend proposed in the previous vear, declared and paid by the Venturer Company during the
year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Venturer Company during the year and until the date of
this report is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Venturer Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 3 1, 2024 which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
4cross any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

The financial statements of the Jointly controlled entity which is not material to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company, is unaudited and therefore we are unable to comment on the reporting
requirement under Rule | I(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 in respect of the jointly
controlled entity.

As per proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11{ £) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial vear ended
March 31, 2024,

For R.N.Goyal & Co,

Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.300 }2%

\Swﬁ'oyal

Partner
(Membership No. 061194)
UDIN: 24061 194BKAMKF4145

Place: Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Aet, 2013 (the “Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated F inancial Statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls of North Eastern Electric Power
Corporation Limited (*the Venturer Company’) and its Jjointly controlled entity which is a company
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the desi En,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of jis business, including adherence to respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of relisble financial information, as
required under the Act,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 1o
Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the exteni
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included obiaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error,




We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements,

Me atements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statemenis

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols with reference to Consolidated Financial

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper Management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in place and such internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements were operating cffectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal co




Our aforesaid report under sec op [43(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operative effectiveness of the
Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements in 80 far as it relates 1o
the jointly controlled entity, which is g company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
unaudited Financial Statements of such Company incorporated in India. Oyr opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls with reference 1o the Consolidated Financia Statements
of the Company, as explained by the Management, is not affected as the unaudited financial statements of the
Joint venture company is not material 1o the Venturer Company,

For R.N.Goyal & Co,
Chartered Accountants .
(Firm's Registration No.309128). “ 21 N

Partner
{Memhe:rship No. (161]94)
UDIN: 24067 | 94BKAMKF4145

Place: Delhi
Date: May 14, 2024




